HSBC GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS

investment company with variable capital incorporated in Luxembourg

PROSPECTUS

NOVEMBER 2014

L'apposition du visa ne peut en aucun cas servir d'argument de publicité Luxembourg, le 2014-12-19 Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

du Secteur Financiei

Contents

IMPORTAN	T INFORMATION	4
SECTION 1	GENERAL INFORMATION	6
1.1.	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES OF THE COMPANY	6
1.2.	PROFILE OF THE TYPICAL INVESTOR CATEGORIES	6
1.3.	SHARE CLASS INFORMATION	7
1.4.	GENERAL RISK CONSIDERATIONS	10
1.5.	RISK-MANAGEMENT PROCESS	14
SECTION 2	COMPANY DETAILS	16
2.1.	SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL FEATURES	16
2.2.	Shares	16
2.3.	How to buy Shares	17
2.4.	How to sell Shares	19
2.5.	FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS	21
2.6.	How to convert between Sub-Funds / Classes	21
2.7.	SUSPENSION OF THE CALCULATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE AND ISSUE, ALLOCATION, CONVER	RSION,
	REDEMPTION AND REPURCHASE OF SHARES	22
2.8.	PRICES OF SHARES AND PUBLICATION OF PRICES AND NAV	22
2.9.	DIVIDENDS	24
2.10.	CHARGES AND EXPENSES	24
(1)	Explanation of the Charging Structure	24
(2) (3)	Management Fee Performance Fees	
(4)	Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses / Operating Currency Hedging Fees	
(5)	Charges and Expenses of the Subsidiaries	28
(6)	Other Charges	
2.11.	MANAGEMENT COMPANY AND INVESTMENT ADVICE	28
2.12.	DEPOSITARY BANK AND PAYING AGENT	29
2.13.	ADMINISTRATION Administration A gent	30
(1) (2)	Administration Agent	
(3)	Domiciliary Agent	
2.14.	DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES	31
(1)	Hong Kong Representative and Distributor	
(2) (3)	Representative in the United KingdomSingapore Representative and Distributor	
2.15.	MEETINGS AND REPORTS	31
2.16.	AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS	32
2.17.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	32
2.18.	Taxation	32
(1)	Taxation of the Company	33
(2)	Taxation of shareholders	
2.19.	LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY/TERMINATION OF SUB-FUNDS	37
(1) (2)	Liquidation of the Company and Amalgamation of Sub-Funds Termination and Amalgamation of Sub-Funds	
(- /	rommation and rimingumation of our randomment and management and randomment and randomment and random or our rando	50

SECTION 3	SUB-FUND INFORMATION	39
3.1.	LIST OF SUB-FUNDS AVAILABLE	39
3.2.	SUB-FUND DETAILS	41
3.3.	SUB-FUND SPECIFIC RISK CONSIDERATIONS	104
APPENDICE	:s	110
APPENDIX 1	GLOSSARY	110
APPENDIX 2	2 GENERAL INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	113
APPENDIX 3	RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENTS	117
APPENDIX 4	ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS	120
APPENDIX 5	5 DIRECTORY	123

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

HSBC GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS is an investment company ("Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable") incorporated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and qualifies as an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (UCITS) complying with the provisions of Part I of the 2010 Law.

No dealer, salesman or any other person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Prospectus and in the documents referred to herein, in connection with the offer hereby made, and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Company.

The delivery of this Prospectus (whether or not accompanied by any reports) or the issue of Shares shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the affairs of the Company have not changed since the date hereof.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not lawful or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

The Company is a recognised collective investment scheme in the United Kingdom under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "Act").

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of the Shares may be restricted in certain jurisdictions. It is the responsibility of any persons in possession of this Prospectus and any persons wishing to apply for Shares to inform themselves of, and to observe, all applicable laws and regulations of any relevant jurisdictions. Prospective subscribers for Shares should inform themselves as to legal requirements so applying and any applicable exchange control regulations and taxes in the countries of their respective citizenship, residence or domicile.

The key investor information document of each Class of each sub-fund ("Key Investor Information Document"), the latest annual and any semi-annual reports of the Company are available at the registered office of the Company and will be sent to investors upon request. Such reports shall be deemed to form part of this Prospectus.

The Key Investor Information Documents are available on www.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/fundinfo. Before subscribing to any Class and to the extent required by local laws and regulations each investor shall consult the Key Investor Information Documents. The Key Investor Information Documents provide information in particular on historical performance, the synthetic risk and reward indicator and charges. Investors may download the Key Investor Information Documents on the website mentioned above or obtain them in paper form or on any other durable medium agreed between the Management Company or the intermediary and the investor.

Statements made in this Prospectus are, except where otherwise stated, based on the law and practice currently in force in Luxembourg and are subject to changes therein.

The Board of Directors and the Management Company accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts or omissions of which would make any statement misleading.

In Hong Kong, the Company and a number of its sub-funds have been authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission ("SFC"). SFC authorization is not a recommendation or endorsement of a scheme nor does it guarantee the commercial merits of the scheme or its performance. It does not mean the Company is suitable for all investors nor it is an endorsement of its suitability for any particular investor or class of investors.

Investors in Hong Kong should read a separate Explanatory Memorandum of the Company obtainable from the Hong Kong Representative at HSBC Main Building, 1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

If you are in any doubt as to the contents of this Prospectus, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other financial adviser.

It should be remembered that the price of Shares and the income from them can go down as well as up and that investors may not receive, on redemption of their Shares, the amount that they originally invested.

At the discretion of the Management Company, Share Classes of the sub-funds may be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. For so long as the Shares of any sub-fund are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Company shall comply with the requirements of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange relating to those Shares.

Shareholders are informed that their personal data or information given in the Application Form, as well as details of their shareholding, will be stored in digital form and processed in compliance with the provisions of the Luxembourg Law of 2 August 2002 on data protection. The shareholder accepts that the Management Company, being responsible for the processing of personal data, has authorised the HSBC Group as promoter and any distributor that is also a member of the HSBC Group to have access to data concerning him/her for the purpose of shareholder service and the promotion of products relating to the Company or any other products of the HSBC Group and thus process them in accordance with the provisions of the Law of 2 August 2002. By subscribing or purchasing Shares, shareholders also accept that their telephone conversations with the Management Company, any company of the HSBC Group or the Registrar and Transfer Agent, may be recorded and thus processed within the meaning of the Law of 2 August 2002. Investors are also advised that their personal data will be held in the register of shareholders maintained by the Registrar and Transfer Agent while the contract by which the Management Company appoints its Registrar and Transfer Agent remains in force. The latter will thus process the personal data relating to investors as the processor acting on behalf of the Management Company with responsibility for the processing of personal data. In accordance with the provisions of the Law of 2 August 2002, investors are entitled to request information about their personal data at any time as well as to correct it.

The Board of Directors and the Management Company draw the investors' attention to the fact that any investor will only be able to fully exercise his/her/its investor rights directly against the Company, notably the right to participate in general meetings of shareholders if the investor is registered himself/herself/itself and in his/her/its own name in the Company's register of shareholders maintained by the Registrar and Transfer Agent. In cases where an investor invests in the Company through an intermediary investing into the Company in his/her/its own name but on behalf of the investor, it may not always be possible for the investor to exercise certain shareholder rights directly against the Company. Investors should seek advice from their salesman or intermediary on their rights in the Company.

SECTION 1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company offers investors, within the same investment vehicle, a choice of investments in one or more sub-funds (each a "sub-fund"), in respect of which a separate portfolio of investments is held, which are distinguished among others by their specific investment policy and objective and/or by the currency of denomination (a "Base Currency"). Within each sub-fund, Shares may be offered in different Classes which are distinguished by specific features, as more fully described in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

In accordance with Article 181 (5) of the 2010 Law the assets of a sub-fund are exclusively available to satisfy the rights of shareholders in relation to that sub-fund and the rights of creditors whose claims have arisen in connection with the creation, operation or liquidation of that sub-fund.

In this Prospectus and in the reports, the short names of the sub-funds are used. They should be read with HSBC Global Investment Funds preceding them.

1.1. Investment Objectives and Policies of the Company

The Company aims to provide investors with access to a choice of sub-funds with diverse investment objectives including, but not limited to, total return, growth and/or income and investing in transferable securities and other eligible assets.

In carrying out the investment objectives of the Company, the Board of Directors at all times seeks to maintain an appropriate level of liquidity in the assets of the sub-funds so that redemptions of Shares under normal circumstances may be made without undue delay upon request by shareholders.

Whilst using their best endeavours to attain the investment objectives, the Board of Directors cannot guarantee the extent to which these objectives will be achieved. The value of the Shares and the income from them can fall as well as rise and investors may not realise the value of their initial investment. Changes in the rates of exchange between currencies may also cause the value of the Shares to diminish or to increase

On occasion, sub-funds may include capital provided by an entity of the HSBC group as an initial investment, otherwise known as 'seed capital'. This seed capital allows HSBC to support the operations of the sub-fund in its early existence prior to material external investment. As the size of the sub-fund increases, the relevant entity of the HSBC group will have the right to withdraw all seed capital, but will manage any withdrawal with the best interests of the remaining shareholders in mind.

The Board of Directors may from time to time, by amendment of this Prospectus, establish further sub-funds which may have different investment objectives and policies to those detailed in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details", subject however to these conforming to the UCITS status of the Company.

1.2. Profile of the Typical Investor Categories

To determine if specific sub-funds are suitable, it is recommended that investors consult a stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant, representative bank or other financial adviser.

The Investment Advisers have defined the following five categories - Stable, Core, Core Plus, Dynamic and Unconstrained - when describing the investment horizon for the investor, the likely returns and anticipated volatility of the sub-funds.

Category	Definition
Stable category	Sub-funds in the Stable category are suitable for investors with a short to medium term investment horizon. These sub-funds are intended as a core investment where there is a low expectation of capital loss and where income levels are expected to be regular and stable.
Core category	Sub-funds in the Core category are suitable for investors with a medium to long term investment horizon. These sub-funds are intended as a core investment where there is exposure to the fixed income securities markets as defined in the individual sub-fund's investment policy but where investment is principally made in bonds rated Investment Grade in markets which may be subject to moderate volatility.
Core Plus category	Sub-funds in the Core Plus category are suitable for investors with a medium to long term investment horizon. These sub-funds are intended as a complementary investment to funds in the Core category where a high proportion of the assets may be invested in equity, or equity—related securities, or in bonds rated below Investment Grade in markets which may be subject to moderately high volatility.
Dynamic category	Sub-funds in the Dynamic category are suitable for investors with a long term investment horizon. These sub-funds are intended to provide additional exposure for more experienced investors within a portfolio where a high proportion of the assets may be invested in Emerging Markets and smaller capitalisation securities, which may restrict liquidity and increase the volatility of return.
Unconstrained category	Sub-funds in the Unconstrained category are suitable for sophisticated investors. These sub-funds are intended to provide exposure to different asset classes actively allocated, mainly achieved by using financial derivative instruments. These sub-funds may invest in assets which may restrict liquidity and increase the volatility of returns.

The descriptions and suitabilities defined in the above categories should be considered as indicative and do not provide any indication of likely returns. They should only be used for comparison with other sub-funds of the Company.

The Profile of the Typical Investor for an individual sub-fund is indicated in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

1.3. Share Class Information

The Management Company may decide to create different Classes of Shares in one or several sub-funds. Details of the characteristics of such Share Classes offered by one or several sub-funds will be determined from time to time.

(1) List of Share Classes

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company has the following Share Classes available. A completed and up-to-date list of Share Classes may be obtained from the registered office of the Company or the Management Company:

Class	Description		Minimum Initial Investment	
Ciass	Description	M	linimum Holding	
Class A	A Shares are available to all investors.	USD	5,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class B	B Shares are available in the United Kingdom, Jersey and the Netherlands through specific distributors selected by the Global Distributor. B Shares may also be available in other countries through specific distributors, selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company, who have a separate fee arrangement with their clients.	USD	5,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class E	E Shares are available in certain countries, subject to the relevant regulatory approval, through distributors selected by the Global Distributor. E Shares will incur annual management fees equivalent to that of the Class A Shares plus 0.3% to 0.5% per annum of the Net Asset Value of Class E Shares, which may be payable to the selected distributors in certain countries.	USD	5,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class I	I Shares are available to all investors through distributors selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company.	USD	1,000,000	
Class J*	J Shares are available to funds of funds managed by the HSBC Group or managed by specific entities selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company.	USD	100,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class L*	L Shares are available through distributors selected by the Global Distributor, provided that the investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law.	USD	1,000,000	
Class M*	M Shares are available to all investors.	USD	5,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class N*	N Shares are available in the United Kingdom, Jersey and the Netherlands through specific distributors selected by the Global Distributor. N Shares may also be available in other countries through specific distributors, selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company, who have a separate fee arrangement with their clients.	USD	5,000	
Class P	P Shares are available in certain countries or through certain distributors selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company.	USD	50,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	
Class R*	R Shares are available in certain countries, subject to the relevant regulatory approval, through distributors selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company. R Shares will incur annual management fees equivalent to that of the Class M Shares plus 0.3% to 0.5% per annum of the Net Asset Value of Class R Shares, which may be payable to specific distributors in certain countries.	USD	5,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"	

Class S**	S Shares are available in certain countries or through distributors selected by the Global Distributor provided that the investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law.	USD	100,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"
Class W	W Shares are available through distributors that will also be members or affiliated entities of the HSBC Group as selected by the Global Distributor provided that the investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law. No Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses will be charged to Class W Shares. All the fees and charges allocated to this Class will be paid directly by members or affiliated entities of the HSBC Group.	USD	100,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"
Class X	X Shares are available through distributors selected by the Global Distributor provided that the investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law and fall into one of the following categories: companies or company pension funds, insurance companies, registered charities or funds managed or advised by an HSBC Group entity and other such institutional investors, as agreed by the Board of Directors.	USD	10,000,000 Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"
Class Y	Y Shares are available in certain countries through distributors selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company.	USD	1,000
Class YP*	YP Shares are available in certain countries through distributors selected by the Global Distributor on application to the Company.	USD	1,000
Class Z	Z Shares are available to investors who have entered into a discretionary management agreement with an HSBC Group entity and to investors subscribing via distributors selected by the Global Distributor provided that such investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law.	USD	1,000,000
Class ZP*	ZP Shares are available to investors who have entered into a discretionary management agreement with an HSBC Group entity and to investors subscribing via distributors selected by the Global Distributor provided that such investors qualify as institutional investors within the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law.	USD	1,000,000

^{*} Successive J, L, M, R, YP and ZP Share Classes in a given sub-fund may be numbered 1, 2, 3 ... and would be referred to as J1, J2, J3, (...), L1, L2, L3 (...), M1, M2, M3 (...), N1, N2, N3, (...), R1, R2, R3, (...), YP1, YP2, YP3 (...) and ZP1, ZP2, ZP3 (...), respectively (see Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund details" for further information on the different Share Classes offered in relation to each sub-fund).

Distribution Shares are identifiable by a "D" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g.: Class AD), with the exception of Monthly Distribution Shares which are identifiable by an "M" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g.: Class AM) and Quarterly Distribution Shares which are identifiable by a "Q" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g.: Class AQ).

In derogation from the above table, Monthly and Quarterly Distribution Shares are available only in certain countries, subject to the relevant regulatory approval, through specific distributors selected by the Global Distributor.

The subscription proceeds of all Shares in a sub-fund are invested in one common underlying portfolio of investments. All Shares of the same Class have equal rights and privileges. Each Share is, upon issue, entitled to participate equally in assets of the relevant Class of the sub-fund to which it relates on liquidation and in dividends and other distributions as declared for such sub-fund. The Shares will carry no preferential or pre-emptive rights and each whole Share will be entitled to one vote at all meetings of shareholders.

Investors purchasing any Class of Shares through a distributor should note that they will be subject to the distributor's normal account opening requirements.

If as a result of redemptions or conversions, the minimum holding in a Class of a sub-fund is less than the amount determined by the Board of Directors for each Class, the Board of Directors may consider that the shareholder has requested to convert or redeem its entire holding in such Class. The above is not applicable in case the value of an investor's holding falls below the minimum holding threshold by reason of market movements affecting the portfolio value.

Restrictions apply to the purchase of B, E, I, J, L, N, P, R, S, W, X, Y, YP, Z and ZP Shares, Monthly and Quarterly Distribution Shares. First time subscribers should contact their local HSBC distributor before submitting an Application Form for these Classes of Shares.

The minimum initial investment amount may be waived or reduced at the discretion of the Company.

There is no requirement on minimum subsequent investment. All figures shall, in principle, be construed to refer to equivalent amounts in other major currencies. However, certain distributors may impose different minimum initial investment, minimum subsequent investment and minimum holding amounts. Further details may be obtained from the relevant distributors.

^{**} Successive S Shares Classes will be issued in one or different sub-funds, and numbered 1, 2, 3 etc. and named S1, S2, S3, etc. for the first, second and third S Class launched respectively (see Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" for further information on the different Share Classes offered in relation to each sub-fund).

(2) Share Class Denominations

Within each Share Class of a sub-fund, the Company shall be entitled to create different sub-classes, distinguished by their distribution policy (Capital-Accumulation (C), Distribution (D) Quarterly Distribution (Q) and Monthly Distribution (M) Shares), their Reference Currency, their hedging or currency overlay activity (H) and/or by any other criteria stipulated by the Board of Directors.

The different Classes offered in relation to each sub-fund are described in the relevant table in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

(2.1) Currency hedged Share Classes and currency overlay Share Classes

Within a sub-fund, separate currency hedged Share Classes or currency overlay Share Classes may be issued (suffixed by "H" and the currency into which the Base Currency is hedged or the currency into which the currency the sub-fund total assets are primarily invested in, is hedged. These currency hedged Share Classes or currency overlay Share Classes will be named: "ACHEUR" or "ACHGBP" for a Capital-Accumulation Share Class hedged into Euro or Pound Sterling).

Currency hedged Share Classes are offered for sub-funds which are:

 wholly, or almost wholly, exposed to their Base Currency (or another currency to which the sub-fund is predominately exposed).

or

(ii) managed with the aim to obtain a total return calculated in their Base Currency whilst the underlying investments of the subfund are exposed to multiple currencies.

Currency overlay Share Classes are offered for sub-funds which have no direct economic exposure to their Base Currency and whereby all investors in these Share Classes will be exposed to the exchange rate movements of the underlying portfolios' currencies against the Base Currency.

However, there is no guarantee that the currencies will appreciate against the Base Currency or that the currency overlay objective will be achieved. Currency overlay Share Classes are offered for the following sub-funds only: Global Emerging Markets Local Currency Rates, Global Emerging Markets Local Debt and RMB Fixed Income. Currency overlay Share Classes in other sub-funds may be available on application to the Company. Where currency overlay Share Classes are issued for a sub-fund, that sub-fund will not also issue currency hedged Share Classes. Similarly, where a sub-fund issues currency hedged Share Classes, that sub-fund will not also issue currency overlay Share Classes.

Subscriptions and redemptions are only accepted in the currency of the currency hedged Share Class and currency overlay Share Class.

For a currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class, the Administration Agent or other appointed parties are entitled to any fees relating to the execution of the currency hedging policy, which will be borne by the currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class. These fees are in addition to the Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses detailed under Section 2.10. (4) "Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses / Operating Currency Hedging Fees". Where the Administration Agent or other appointed parties takes these fees, the maximum rate for fees relating to the execution of the currency hedging policy is 0.06% per annum subject to a minimum annual fee of EUR 15,000 per each currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class.

Any gains or losses from the currency hedging shall also accrue to the relevant currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class. Currency hedged Share Classes and currency overlay Share Classes will be hedged irrespective of whether the target currency is declining or increasing in value. No assurance can be given that the hedging objective will be achieved.

A list of all currently available currency hedged Share Classes and currency overlay Share Classes may be obtained at the registered office of the Company or from the distributors.

(2.2) Share Class Reference Currencies

The Management Company may decide to issue within a sub-fund Share Classes having a different Reference Currency (currency denomination) which denotes the currency in which the Net Asset Value per Share will be calculated. In principle, Share Classes may be issued in the following reference currencies: Euro, Hong Kong Dollar and Pound Sterling ("Share Class Reference Currencies").

Share Classes in other Share Class Reference Currencies may be available on application to the Company.

A Share Class Reference Currency is identified by a standard international currency acronym added as a suffix, e.g. "ACEUR" for a Capital-Accumulation Share Class expressed in Euro.

Unless otherwise provided for in the Prospectus, subscriptions and redemptions are only accepted in the currency of the Share Class Reference Currency.

Where Share Classes are issued in a Share Class Reference Currency other than the Base Currency of the relevant sub-fund, the portfolio remains exposed to the currencies of the underlying holdings. No hedging is undertaken for those Share Classes except otherwise provided in the Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

(2.3) Dealing Currencies

In addition to Share Class Reference Currency, currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class, Shares may be available in the Base Currency of the relevant sub-fund and in the following dealing currencies ("Dealing Currencies"): Euro, Pound Sterling, Hong Kong Dollar, Singapore Dollar and US Dollar.

Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Japanese Yen, Polish Zloty and Swiss Franc may be available as Dealing Currencies in certain Classes or through selected distributors and/or in certain countries. Other Dealing Currencies may also be available on application to the Company.

Where Share Classes are issued only in different Dealing Currencies, the underlying portfolio remains exposed to the currencies of the underlying holdings. No hedging is undertaken for those Share Classes except otherwise provided in the Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

1.4. General Risk Considerations

Investment in any sub-fund carries with it a degree of risk, including, but not limited to, those referred to below. Potential investors should review the Prospectus in its entirety and the relevant Key Investor Information Document and consult with their legal, tax and financial advisors prior to making a decision to invest.

There can be no assurance that the sub-funds of the Company will achieve their investment objectives and past performance should not be seen as a guide to future returns. An investment may also be affected by any changes in exchange control regulation, tax laws, withholding taxes and economic or monetary policies.

Specific risk considerations are defined in Section 3.3. "Sub-Fund specific risk considerations".

(1) Market risk

The value of investments and the income derived therefrom may fall as well as rise and investors may not recoup the original amount invested in the Company. In particular, the value of investments may be affected by uncertainties such as international, political and economic developments or changes in government policies.

(2) Emerging Markets

Because of the special risks associated with investing in Emerging Markets, sub-funds which invest in such securities should be considered speculative. Investors in such sub-funds are advised to consider carefully the special risks of investing in emerging market securities. Economies in Emerging Markets generally are heavily dependent upon international trade and, accordingly, have been and may continue to be affected adversely by trade barriers, exchange controls, managed adjustments in relative currency values and other protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with which they trade. These economies also have been and may continue to be affected adversely by economic conditions in the countries in which they trade.

Brokerage commissions, custodial services and other costs relating to investment in Emerging Markets generally are more expensive than those relating to investment in more developed markets. Lack of adequate custodial systems in some markets may prevent investment in a given country or may require a sub-fund to accept greater custodial risks in order to invest, although the Depositary Bank will endeavour to minimise such risks through the appointment of correspondents that are international, reputable and creditworthy financial institutions. In addition, such markets have different settlement and clearance procedures. In certain markets there have been times when settlements have been unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. The inability of a sub-fund to make intended securities purchases due to settlement problems could cause the sub-fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security caused by settlement problems could result either in losses to a sub-fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security or, if a sub-fund has entered into a contract to sell the security, could result in potential liability to the purchaser.

The risk also exists that an emergency situation may arise in one or more developing markets as a result of which trading of securities may cease or may be substantially curtailed and prices for a sub-fund's securities in such markets may not be readily available.

Investors should note that changes in the political climate in Emerging Markets may result in significant shifts in the attitude to the taxation of foreign investors. Such changes may result in changes to legislation, the interpretation of legislation, or the granting of foreign investors the benefit of tax exemptions or international tax treaties. The effect of such changes can be retrospective and can (if they occur) have an adverse impact on the investment return of shareholders in any sub-fund so affected.

Investors in Emerging Markets sub-funds should be aware of the risk associated with investment in Russian equity securities. Markets are not always regulated in Russia and, at the present time, there are a relatively small number of brokers and participants in these markets and when combined with political and economic uncertainties this may temporarily result in illiquid equity markets in which prices are highly volatile.

The relevant sub-funds will therefore only invest up to 10% of their net asset value directly in Russian equity securities (except if they are listed on the MICEX - RTS Exchange in Russia and any other Regulated Markets in Russia which would further be recognised as such by the Luxembourg supervisory authority) while the sub-funds will invest in American, European and Global Depositary Receipts, respectively ADRs, EDRs or GDRs, where underlying securities are issued by companies domiciled in the Russian Federation and then trade on a Regulated Market outside Russia, mainly in the USA or Europe. By investing in ADRs, EDRs and GDRs, the sub-funds expect to be able to mitigate some of the settlement risks associated with the investment policy, although other risks, e.g. the currency risk exposure, shall remain.

The sub-funds' investments are spread among a number of industries, however the BRIC countries' markets are comprised of significant weightings in the natural resources sectors. This means that the sub-fund's investments may be relatively concentrated in these sectors

and the performance of the sub-fund could be sensitive to movements in these sectors. Risks of sector concentration are outlined below. In selecting companies for investment, a company's financial strength, competitive position, profitability, growth prospects and quality of management will typically be evaluated.

(3) Interest rate risk

A sub-fund that invests in bonds and other fixed income securities may fall in value if interest rates change. Generally, the prices of debt securities rise when interest rates fall, whilst their prices fall when interest rates rise. Longer term debt securities are usually more sensitive to interest rate changes.

(4) Credit risk

A sub-fund, which invests in bonds and other fixed income securities, is subject to the risk that issuers may not make payments on such securities. An issuer suffering an adverse change in its financial condition could lower the credit quality of a security, leading to greater price volatility of the security. A lowering of the credit rating of a security may also offset the security's liquidity, making it more difficult to sell. Sub-funds investing in lower quality debt securities are more susceptible to these problems and their value may be more volatile.

(5) Foreign exchange risk

Because a sub-fund's assets and liabilities may be denominated in currencies different to the Base Currency, the sub-fund may be affected favourably or unfavourably by exchange control regulations or changes in the exchange rates between the Base Currency and other currencies. Changes in currency exchange rates may influence the value of a sub-fund's Shares, the dividends or interest earned and the gains and losses realised. Exchange rates between currencies are determined by supply and demand in the currency exchange markets, the international balance of payments, governmental intervention, speculation and other economic and political conditions.

If the currency in which a security is denominated appreciates against the Base Currency, the value of the security will increase. Conversely, a decline in the exchange rate of the currency would adversely affect the value of the security.

A sub-fund may engage in foreign currency transactions in order to hedge against currency exchange risk, however there is no guarantee that hedging or protection will be achieved. This strategy may also limit the sub-fund from benefiting from the performance of a sub-fund's securities if the currency in which the securities held by the sub-fund are denominated rises against the Base Currency. In case of a hedged class, (denominated in a currency different from the Base Currency), this risk applies systematically.

(6) Counterparty risk

The Company on behalf of a sub-fund may enter into transactions in over-the-counter markets, which will expose the sub-fund to the credit of its counterparties and their ability to satisfy the terms of such contracts.

For example, the Company on behalf of the sub-fund may enter into repurchase agreements, forward contracts, options and swap arrangements or other derivative techniques, each of which expose the sub-fund to the risk that the counterparty may default on its obligations to perform under the relevant contract. In addition, some fixed income structures such as asset backed securities can incorporate swap contracts that involve counterparty risk. In the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency of a counterparty, the sub-fund could experience delays in liquidating the position and significant losses, including declines in the value of its investment during the period in which the Company seeks to enforce its rights, inability to realise any gains on its investment during such period and fees and expenses incurred in enforcing its rights.

There is also a possibility that the above agreements and derivative techniques are terminated due, for instance, to bankruptcy, supervening illegality or change in the tax or accounting laws relative to those at the time the agreement was originated. In such circumstances, investors may be unable to cover any losses incurred. Derivative contracts such as direct swap contracts or swap contracts embedded in other fixed income structures entered into by the Company on behalf of a sub-fund on the advice of the Investment Adviser involve credit risk that could result in a loss of the sub-fund's entire investment as the sub-fund may be fully exposed to the credit worthiness of a single Approved Counterparty where such an exposure will be collateralised.

(7) Sovereign risk

Certain developing countries and certain developed countries are especially large debtors to commercial banks and foreign governments. Investment in debt obligations ("Sovereign Debt") issued or guaranteed by governments or their agencies ("governmental entities") of such countries involves a high degree of risk. The governmental entity that controls the repayment of Sovereign Debt may not be able or willing to repay the principal and/or interest when due in accordance with the terms of such debt. A governmental entity's willingness or ability to repay principal and interest due in a timely manner may be affected by, among other factors, its cash flow situation, the extent of its foreign reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a payment is due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy as a whole, the governmental entity's policy towards the International Monetary Fund and the political constraints to which a governmental entity may be subject.

Governmental entities may also be dependent on expected disbursements from foreign governments, multilateral agencies and others abroad to reduce principal and interest arrearage on their debt. The commitment on the part of these governments, agencies and others to make such disbursements may be conditioned on a governmental entity's implementation of economic reforms and/or economic performance and the timely service of such debtor's obligations. Failure to implement such reforms, achieve such levels of economic performance or repay principal or interest when due may result in the cancellation of such third parties' commitments to lend funds to the governmental entity, which may further impair such debtor's ability or willingness to service its debt on a timely basis. Consequently, governmental entities may default on their Sovereign Debt. Holders of Sovereign Debt, including a sub-fund, may be requested to participate in the rescheduling of such debt and to extend further loans to governmental entities. There is no bankruptcy proceeding by which Sovereign Debt on which a governmental entity has defaulted may be collected in whole or in part.

Where a sub-fund may have investment exposure to Europe in the context of its investment objective and strategy, in light of the fiscal conditions and concerns on sovereign debt of certain European countries, such a sub-fund may be subject to a number of risks arising from a potential crisis in Europe. The risks are present both in respect of direct investment exposure (for example if the sub-fund holds a security issued by a sovereign issuer and that issuer suffers a downgrade or defaults) and indirect investment exposure, such as the sub-fund facing an increased amount of volatility, liquidity, price and currency risk associated with investments in Europe.

Should any country cease using the Euro as its local currency or should a collapse of the Eurozone monetary union occur, such countries may revert back to their former (or another) currency, which may lead to additional performance, legal and operational risks to the sub-fund and may ultimately negatively impact the value of the sub-fund. The performance and value of the sub-fund may potentially be adversely affected by any or all of the above factors, or there may be unintended consequences in addition to the above arising from the potential European crisis that adversely affect the performance and value of the sub-fund.

(8) Non-Investment Grade Debt

A sub-fund which invests in Non-Investment Grade fixed-income securities carries higher credit risk (default risk and downgrade risk), liquidity risk and market risk than a sub-fund that invests in investments in Investment Grade fixed-income securities.

Credit risk is greater for investments in fixed-income securities that are rated below Investment Grade or which are of comparable quality than for Investment Grade securities. It is more likely that income or capital payments may not be made when due. Thus the risk of default is greater. The amounts that may be recovered after any default may be smaller or zero and the sub-fund may incur additional expenses if it tries to recover its losses through bankruptcy or other similar proceedings.

Adverse economic events may have a greater impact on the prices of Non-Investment Grade fixed-income securities. Investors should therefore be prepared for greater volatility than for Investment Grade fixed-income securities, with an increased risk of capital loss, but with the potential of higher returns.

The market liquidity for Non-Investment Grade fixed-income securities can be low and there may be circumstances in which there is no liquidity of for these securities, making it more difficult to value and/or sell these securities. As a result of significant redemption applications received over a limited period in a sub-fund invested in Non-Investment Grade fixed-income securities, the Board of Directors may invoke the procedure permitting the deferral of shareholder redemptions (See Section 2.4 (6). "Deferral of Redemption").

(9) High Yield Debt

A sub-fund which invests in high yield fixed-income securities carries higher credit risk (default risk and downgrade risk), liquidity risk and market risk than a sub-fund that invests in Investment Grade fixed-income securities.

High yield fixed income securities include fixed income securities rated below Investment Grade (i.e. Non-Investment Grade) and higher yielding fixed income securities rated Investment Grade but of comparable credit quality to Non-Investment Grade rated securities.

Credit risk is greater for investments in high yield fixed-income securities than for Investment Grade securities. It is more likely that income or capital payments may not be made when due. Thus the risk of default is greater. The amounts that may be recovered after any default may be smaller or zero and the sub-fund may incur additional expenses if it tries to recover its losses through bankruptcy or other similar proceedings.

Adverse economic events may have a greater impact on the prices of high yield fixed-income securities. Investors should therefore be prepared for greater volatility than for Investment Grade fixed-income securities, with an increased risk of capital loss, but with the potential of higher returns.

The market liquidity for high yield securities can be low and there may be circumstances in which there is no liquidity for these securities, making it more difficult to value and/or sell these securities. As a result of significant redemption applications received over a limited period in a sub-fund invested in high yield fixed-income securities, the Board of Directors may invoke the procedure permitting the deferral of shareholder redemptions (See Section 2.4 (6). "Deferral of Redemption").

(10) Volatility

The price of a financial derivative instrument can be very volatile. This is because a small movement in the price of the underlying security, index, interest rate or currency may result in a substantial movement in the price of the financial derivative instrument. Investment in financial derivative instruments may result in losses in excess of the amount invested.

(11) Futures and Options

Under certain conditions, the Company may use options and futures on securities, indices and interest rates, as described in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" and Appendix 3 "Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments" for the purpose of investment, hedging and efficient portfolio management. In addition, where appropriate, the Company may hedge market and currency risks using futures, options or forward foreign exchange contracts.

Transactions in futures carry a high degree of risk. The amount of the initial margin is small relative to the value of the futures contract so that transactions are "leveraged" or "geared". A relatively small market movement will have a proportionately larger impact which may work for or against the investor. The placing of certain orders which are intended to limit losses to certain amounts may not be effective because market conditions may make it impossible to execute such orders.

Transactions in options also carry a high degree of risk. Selling ("writing" or "granting") an option generally entails considerably greater risk than purchasing options. Although the premium received by the seller is fixed, the seller may sustain a loss well in excess of that amount. The seller will also be exposed to the risk of the purchaser exercising the option and the seller will be obliged either to settle the option in cash or to acquire or deliver the underlying investment. If the option is "covered" by the seller holding a corresponding position

in the underlying investment or a future on another option, the risk may be reduced.

(12) Credit default swaps

Credit default swaps may trade differently from the funded securities of the reference entity. In adverse market conditions, the basis (difference between the spread on bonds and the spread on credit default swaps) can be significantly more volatile.

(13) Total Return Swaps

A sub-fund may utilise total return swaps instruments to replicate the exposure of an index or to swap the performance of one or more instruments into a stream of fixed or variable rate cash-flows. In such cases, the counterparty to the transaction will be a counterparty approved and monitored by the Management Company or the Investment Adviser. At no time will a counterparty in a transaction have discretion over the composition or the management of the sub-fund's investment portfolio or over the underlying of the total return swap.

(14) OTC Financial Derivative Transactions

In general, there is less governmental regulation and supervision of transactions in the OTC markets (in which currencies, forward, spot and option contracts, credit default swaps, Total Return Swaps and certain options on currencies are generally traded) than of transactions entered into on organized exchanges. In addition, many of the protections afforded to participants on some organized exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of an exchange clearing house, may not be available in connection with OTC financial derivative transactions. Therefore, a sub-fund entering into OTC transactions will be subject to the risk that its direct counterparty will not perform its obligations under the transactions and that a sub-fund will sustain losses. The Company will only enter into transactions with counterparties which it believes to be creditworthy, and may reduce the exposure incurred in connection with such transactions through the receipt of letters of credit or collateral from certain counterparties. Regardless of these measures, the Company may seek to implement to reduce counterparty credit risk, however, there can be no assurance that a counterparty will not default or that a sub-fund will not sustain losses as a result.

From time to time, the counterparties with which the Company effects transactions might cease making markets or quoting prices in certain of the instruments. In such instances, the Company might be unable to enter into a desired transaction in currencies, credit default swaps or Total Return Swaps or to enter into an offsetting transaction with respect to an open position, which might adversely affect its performance. Further, in contrast to exchange-traded instruments, forward, spot and option contracts on currencies do not provide the Investment Adviser with the possibility to offset the Company's obligations through an equal and opposite transaction. For this reason, in entering into forward, spot or options contracts, the Company may be required, and must be able, to perform its obligations under the contracts.

(15) Securities lending and repurchase transactions

Use of the techniques and instruments set out in Appendix 3 "Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments" involves certain risks and there can be no assurance that the objective sought to be obtained from such use will be achieved.

In relation to repurchase transactions, investors must notably be aware that (a) in the event of the failure of the counterparty with which cash of a sub-fund has been placed there is the risk that collateral received may yield less than the cash placed out, whether because of inaccurate pricing of the collateral, adverse market movements, a deterioration in the credit rating of issuers of the collateral, or the illiquidity of the market in which the collateral is traded; that (b) (i) locking cash in transactions of excessive size or duration, (ii) delays in recovering cash placed out, or (iii) difficulty in realising collateral may restrict the ability of the sub-fund to meet redemption requests, security purchases or, more generally, reinvestment; and that (c) repurchase transactions will, as the case may be, further expose a sub-fund to risks similar to those associated with optional or forward derivative financial instruments, which risks are further described in other sections of this Prospectus.

In relation to securities lending transactions, investors must notably be aware that (a) if the borrower of securities lent by a sub-fund fail to return these there is a risk that the collateral received may realise less than the value of the securities lent out, whether due to inaccurate pricing, adverse market movements, a deterioration in the credit rating of issuers of the collateral, or the illiquidity of the market in which the collateral is traded; that (b) in case of reinvestment of cash collateral such reinvestment may yield a sum less than the amount of collateral to be returned; and that (c) delays in the return of securities on loans may restrict the ability of a sub-fund to meet delivery obligations under security sales or payment obligations arising from redemptions requests.

(16) Liquidity risk

A sub-fund is exposed to the risk that a particular investment or position cannot be easily unwound or offset due to insufficient market depth or market disruption. This can affect the ability of a shareholder to request the redemption of his Shares from that sub-fund, and can also have an impact on the value of the sub-fund.

Although the sub-funds will invest mainly in liquid securities in which the shareholders are entitled to request the redemption of their Shares within a reasonable timeframe, there may be exceptional circumstances in which the liquidity of such securities cannot be guaranteed. Absence of liquidity may have a determined impact on the sub-fund and the value of its investments.

(17) Risks associated with performance fees

The Management Company is also entitled to a performance fee for certain Classes of Shares in certain sub-funds. A sub-fund's valuation may include both realised and unrealised gains and a performance fee may be paid on unrealised gains which may not subsequently be realised. Due to the way in which the performance fee is calculated (please refer to the Section 2.10. "Charges and Expenses"), a shareholder may incur a performance fee even though ultimately such shareholder does not receive a positive return.

(18) Taxation

Investors should note in particular that (i) the proceeds from the sale of securities in some markets or the receipt of any dividends or other income may be or may become subject to tax, levies, duties or other fees or charges imposed by the authorities in that market including taxation levied by withholding at source and/or (ii) the sub-fund's investments may be subject to specific taxes or charges imposed by authorities in some markets. Tax law and practice in certain countries into which a sub-fund invests or may invest in the future is not clearly established. It is possible therefore that the current interpretation of the law or understanding of practice might change, or that the law might be changed with retrospective effect. It is therefore possible that the sub-fund could become subject to additional taxation in such countries that is not anticipated either at the date of this Prospectus or when investments are made, valued or disposed of.

As a matter of example, the Brazilian Government introduced 'Tax Over Financial Transactions' ("IOF") from 20 October 2009 on all foreign capital inflows.

The IOF charge affected inflow of foreign exchange transactions across all asset classes into the Brazilian currency the Brazilian Real. In October 2010, the IOF tax for foreign investments was increased from 2% to 6% for investment into Brazilian domestic fixed-income securities and certain other investment categories including debentures and Brazilian-domiciled investment funds. Effective from 1 December 2011 the Brazilian government reduced the IOF tax rate from 2 per cent to 0 per cent on foreign exchange inflows relating to all variable income instruments traded at the exchange. Shareholders should note that subscriptions into sub-funds investing in Brazil may be subject to a pricing adjustment as detailed in Section 2.8. (2) "Pricing Adjustment" which may include an amount to cover any anticipated IOF tax.

1.5. Risk-Management Process

The Management Company, on behalf of the Company, will employ a risk-management process which enables it with the Investment Adviser of the relevant sub-fund to monitor and measure at any time the risk of the positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of each sub-fund. The Investment Adviser of the relevant sub-fund will employ, if applicable, a process for accurate and independent assessment of the value of any OTC derivative instruments.

Upon request of an investor, the Investment Adviser will provide to the Management Company supplementary information relating to the quantitative limits that apply in the risk management of each sub-fund, to the methods chosen to this end and to the recent evolution of the risks and yields of the main categories of instruments. In summary:

(1) Responsibility of the risk management team of the Investment Adviser

The Management Company, responsible for the risk management of the Company, has delegated the day to day implementation to the risk management team of the relevant Investment Advisers. They are in charge of the implementation of risk control procedures for the sub-funds they manage. This team will collaborate with the investment team of the Investment Advisers to determine various control limits in order to match the risk profile and strategy of the sub-funds. The Management Company will supervise these risk management functions and will receive appropriate reports.

When the Investment Adviser invests, on behalf of the sub-fund it manages, in different types of assets pursuant to the investment objective, it will follow the risk management and control mechanism as described in the risk management procedure of the Management Company.

(2) Commitment and Value-at-Risk approaches

Certain sub-fund may have simple and limited positions in financial derivative instruments but can enter into financial derivative instruments transactions for investment purposes other than hedging techniques and efficient portfolio management, in particular to gain exposure on financial markets when the relevant Investment Adviser believes that it is more efficient to purchase financial derivative instruments than the corresponding physical securities. These sub-funds will use the commitment approach.

The commitment approach is generally calculated by converting the derivative contract into the equivalent position in the underlying asset embedded in that derivative, based on the market value of the underlying. Purchased and sold financial derivative instruments may be netted in accordance to guidelines 10/788 issued by CESR in order to reduce global exposure. Beyond these netting rules and after application of hedging rules, it is not allowed to have a negative commitment on a financial derivative instrument to reduce overall exposure and as such, risk-exposure numbers will always be positive or zero.

The other sub-funds apply a Value-at-Risk (VaR) approach to measure market risk.

The global risk measure may be Relative VaR or Absolute VaR with respect of sub-fund investment strategies and benchmark adequacy.

Absolute VaR

The absolute VaR is generally an appropriate approach in the absence of an identifiable reference portfolio or benchmark, for instance for absolute return sub-funds. The absolute VaR approach calculates a sub-fund's VaR as a percentage of the net asset value of the relevant sub-fund which must not exceed an absolute limit of 20% as defined by the CSSF.

Relative VaR

The relative VaR approach is used for sub-funds where a consistent reference portfolio or benchmark reflecting the investment strategy which the sub-fund is pursuing is defined. The relative VaR of a sub-fund is expressed as a multiple of the VaR of a benchmark or reference portfolio. The relative VaR is limited to no more than twice the VaR on the comparable benchmark.

The risk management methodology for each sub-fund and, in case of use of the VaR, the expected level of leverage, the approach used (i.e. absolute VaR or relative VaR) and the reference portfolio or benchmark used to express the relative VaR (if applicable) will be specified in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

(3) Risk monitoring systems

Appropriate tools and systems are utilised to monitor different areas of risk, including counterparty risk, market risk, liquidity risk, concentration risk and operational risks.

(4) Procedure for counterparty approval

Systematic procedures are in place to select and approve counterparties, and to monitor the exposure to various counterparties.

(5) Investment Breach reporting

In case of any investment breach, an "escalation process" up to the Management Company will be triggered to inform relevant parties in order for necessary actions to be taken.

SECTION 2 COMPANY DETAILS

2.1. Summary of Principal Features

Legal structure: Open-ended investment company with multiple sub-funds incorporated in Luxembourg as a société

anonyme qualifying as a Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable. Each sub-fund corresponds to a distinct part of assets and liabilities. It exists for an unlimited period and qualifies as an undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities under Part I of the 2010 Law implementing directive

2009/65/EC into Luxembourg law.

Incorporation date: 21 November 1986.

Registered number: B 25 087 at the Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés of Luxembourg.

Articles of Incorporation Published in the Mémorial on 17 December 1986. The latest amendment was published on 16 January

2012 in the Mémorial.

Dividends: For Distribution Shares, the Board of Directors expects to recommend distribution of a portion of each

sub-fund's net investment income for the year.

Taxation: Annual Luxembourg tax of 0.05%, payable quarterly on Equity, Bond, Index and Other sub-funds and

0.01% on Reserve sub-funds and all J Share, L Share, S Share, W Share, X Share, Z Share and ZP

Share Classes (for details see Section 2.18. "Taxation").

Investment objectives: The Company provides investment in separate professionally managed pool of international securities

distinguished by different geographical areas and currencies, with the opportunity for the investor to spread investment risk as well as to choose to emphasise income, capital conservation and growth.

NAV publication: Details can be obtained from distributors or the registered office of the Company. Generally available in

various publications (for details see Section 2.8. "Prices of Shares and Publication of Prices and NAV").

Net Asset Value: Calculation on each Dealing Day unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in

relation to a specific sub-fund.

Purchase, conversion and redemption: (dealing cut-off time)

Hong Kong

4.00 p.m. Hong Kong time on a business day in Hong Kong.

Applications received in Hong Kong on a day which is not a Hong Kong business day will be transacted on the next Hong Kong business day.

in the next Hong Rong business da

Jersey

5.00 p.m. Jersey time on a business day in Jersey prior to the Dealing Day.

Poland

10.00 a.m. Poland time on a business day in Poland.

Rest of the World

10.00 a.m. Luxembourg time on a Dealing Day.

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to a specific sub-fund.

Current sales charge: Up to 5.54% of the Net Asset Value per Share.

Base currency: USD.
Year end: 31 March.

2.2. Shares

(1) Registered Shares

Ownership of registered Shares is evidenced by entry in the Company's register of shareholders maintained by the Registrar and Transfer Agent and is represented by confirmation(s) of ownership. A confirmation of ownership will be posted to the shareholder (or the first named of joint shareholders) or his/her agent, as directed, at his/her own risk normally within 21 days of receipt by the Registrar and Transfer Agent of a properly completed Application Form or registration slip, provided cleared monies have then been received by the Company or to its order.

(2) Share Confirmations

Registered Shares with a confirmation of ownership being issued (normally in computerised form) by the Registrar and Transfer Agent have the advantage that they may be converted or redeemed solely on written instructions to the Registrar and Transfer Agent. All registered shareholders are sent a statement twice a year confirming the number and value of registered Shares held by them in each sub-fund.

(3) Bearer Shares

The Company does not issue bearer Shares.

(4) General

At general meetings each shareholder has the right to one vote for each whole Share of which he is the holder.

The Company may register registered Shares jointly in the names of not more than four holders should they so require. In such case the rights attaching to such a Share must be exercised jointly by all those parties in whose names it is registered unless they appoint in writing one or more persons to do so. The Company may require that such single representative be appointed by all joint holders.

Shares have no preferential or preemption rights and are freely transferable, save as referred to below.

The Board of Directors may impose restrictions on any Shares or Class (other than any restriction on transfer but including the requirement that Shares be issued only in registered form) (but not necessarily on all the Classes within the same sub-fund), and if necessary requires transfer of Shares, as it may think necessary to ensure that Shares are neither acquired nor held by or on behalf of (i) any person in breach of the law or requirements of any country or governmental or regulatory authority, or (ii) any person in circumstances which in the opinion of the Board of Directors might result in the Company incurring any liability to taxation or suffering any other pecuniary disadvantages which the Company might not otherwise have incurred or suffered, including a requirement to register under any securities or investment or similar laws or requirements of any country or authority. The Board of Directors may in this connection require a shareholder to provide such information as it may consider necessary to establish whether he is the beneficial owner of the Shares which he holds.

The rights attaching to the Shares relating to any Class (subject to the terms of issue) may only be varied with the sanction of a resolution passed at a separate general meeting of holders of Shares relating to that Class by a majority of two/thirds of the votes cast. The provisions of the Articles of Incorporation relating to general meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply to every separate general meeting of holders of Shares of a Class or a sub-fund save that the quorum shall be the holders of not less than one half of the issued Shares relating to that Class or sub-fund, or, at an adjourned meeting, any one person holding Shares relating to that Class or sub-fund (or in either case the proxies of such persons). Two or more Classes or sub-funds may be treated as a single Class or sub-fund if such Classes or sub-funds would be affected in the same way by the proposals requiring the approval of holders of Shares relating to the separate Classes or sub-funds.

2.3. How to buy Shares

(1) Application

Investors buying Shares for the first time should duly complete and sign the Application Form. Any subsequent purchase of Shares can be made by letter, fax or, by prior agreement, by telephone, the latter may require confirmation in writing.

Applications for Shares of any sub-fund made to the Company, either directly to the Registrar and Transfer Agent or through a distributor, before the appropriate dealing cut-off times as set forth below on a Dealing Day will, if accepted, normally be fulfilled on that Dealing Day, unless otherwise provided below.

(2) Dealing cut-off times at place of issue of orders

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to a specific sub-fund, the dealing cut-off times are as follows:

Place of issue of orders	Dealing cut-off time
Hong Kong	4.00 p.m. Hong Kong time on a business day in Hong Kong. Applications received in Hong Kong on a day which is not a Hong Kong business day will be transacted on the next Hong Kong business day.
Jersey	5.00 p.m. Jersey time on a business day in Jersey prior to the Dealing Day.
Poland	10.00 a.m. Poland time on a business day in Poland.
Rest of the World	10.00 a.m. Luxembourg time on a Dealing Day

Without prejudice of the following paragraph, applications received by the Registrar and Transfer Agent after the above cut-off times will normally be dealt on the next following Dealing Day. Shareholders should normally allow up to four Business Days before further switching or redeeming their Share after purchase or subscription.

Investors and shareholders dealing through distributors (including those offering nominee services) shall be entitled to deal until the above dealing cut-off times. The distributors/nominees shall transmit the amalgamated orders to the Company within a reasonable timeframe as agreed from time to time with the Board of Directors.

(3) Acceptance

The Company reserves the right to reject any subscription application in whole or in part. If an application is rejected, the application monies or balance thereof will be returned at the risk of the subscriber and without interest within five Business Days of rejection at the expense of the subscriber.

(4) Anti-Money Laundering and Prevention of Terrorist Financing

Pursuant to the Luxembourg law of 12 November 2004 (as amended) on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing, any other applicable laws and regulations and the relevant circulars of the Luxembourg supervisory authority, obligations have been imposed on professionals of the financial sector to prevent the use of undertakings for collective investment such as the Company for money laundering and terrorist financing purposes. As a result of such provisions, the registrar agent of a Luxembourg undertaking for collective investment shall in principle ascertain the identity of the subscriber in accordance with Luxembourg laws and regulations. The

registrar agent may require subscribers to provide any document it deems necessary to effect such identification, including but not limited to an original duly completed and signed application form.

In case of delay or failure by a subscriber to provide the documents required, the application for subscription (or, if applicable, for redemption) will not be accepted. Neither the undertakings for collective investment nor the Registrar and Transfer Agent have any liability for delays or failure to process deals as a result of the investor providing no or only incomplete documentation.

Shareholders may be requested to provide additional or updated identification documents from time to time pursuant to ongoing client due diligence requirements under relevant laws and regulations.

An Application Form will be completed by each new investor. The list of identification documents to be provided by each investor will be based on the AML & KYC requirements as stipulated in the CSSF's circulars and regulations as amended from time to time and based on the AML & KYC Guidelines of the Registrar and Transfer Agent. These requirements may be amended, from time to time, upon the introduction of new Luxembourg regulations.

Investors may be asked to produce additional documents for verification of their identity before acceptance of their applications. In case of refusal by the investor to provide the documents required, the application will not be accepted.

Before redemption proceeds are released, the Registrar and Transfer Agent will require original documents or certified copies of original documents to comply with the Luxembourg regulations.

(5) Settlement

In Cash

Settlement may be made bankers' draft or electronic transfer net of bank charges to the relevant correspondent bank(s) quoting the subscriber's name and stating the appropriate sub-fund into which settlement monies are paid. Details of the relevant correspondent bank(s) are given on the Application Form or can be obtained from a distributor.

No money should be paid to a salesman or in Hong Kong to any intermediary who is not a person licensed to carry on Type I (dealing in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO") in Hong Kong or a financial institution registered under the SFO to carry on such activities.

In Kind

The Board of Directors may, at their discretion, decide to accept securities as valid consideration for a subscription provided that these comply with the investment policy and restrictions of the relevant sub-funds. Such securities will be independently valued in accordance with Luxembourg law and regulatory requirement provided in a special report from the Company's Auditor in Luxembourg. Additional costs resulting from a subscription in kind will be borne exclusively by the subscriber concerned.

(6) Settlement Currencies

Payments for subscriptions in a Share Class having a specific Share Class Reference Currency or a currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class can only be made in the currency of the relevant Share Class Reference Currency or currency hedged Share Class. Payments for subscriptions in any other Share Class may be made in the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or, where certain Dealing Currencies are available, in that Dealing Currency. All these currencies in which payments for subscription shall be made being hereinafter referred to as "Settlement Currency".

With the exception of Share Class having a specific Share Class Reference Currencies and currency hedged Share Classes and where an investor requires the payment of a subscription in a currency other than the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or, where available, in the relevant Dealing Currency, the necessary foreign exchange transaction between this currency and the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned will be arranged by the distributor or the Registrar and Transfer Agent at the subscriber's expense on the basis of the exchange rate applicable as at the Dealing Day.

(7) Share Allocation

Shares are provisionally allotted but not allocated until cleared funds have been received by the Company or to its order. Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to a specific sub-fund, cleared monies must be received in the Settlement Currency by the Company or by a correspondent bank to its order, no later than the deadlines set forth below.

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies
Reserve, Bond, Equity, Index and Other	Four Business Days after application unless the fourth Business Day is a day on which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency are closed for business, in which case receipt of cleared monies will be the next Business Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency are open for business unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" in relation to a specific sub-fund.

If timely settlement is not made by the subscriber, the subscription may lapse and be cancelled at the cost of the subscriber or its financial intermediary. If the subscriber does not settle the subscription price in a timely manner, no Shares will be issued to the defaulting subscriber. Failure to proceed to timely settlement by the settlement date may result in the Company / Management Company bringing an action against the defaulting subscriber or its financial intermediary or deducting any costs or losses incurred by the Company / Management Company against any existing holding of the subscriber. Money returnable to the subscriber may be netted taking into account any costs or losses incurred by the Company / Management Company due to non-settlement of subscription proceeds within the above timeline.

Subscribers are advised to refer to the terms and conditions applicable to subscriptions which are detailed in the Application Form.

(8) Contract Notes

Contract Notes are posted to shareholders as soon as practicable after the transaction has been effected, and may be faxed upon shareholder request.

(9) Form of Shares

Shares are only issued in registered form, with only a Share confirmation being sent to the subscriber.

For registered Shares, fractions of Shares will be allocated where appropriate.

Registered Shares in book form can be delivered into the Clearstream or Euroclear platforms.

(10) Purchase of Shares in the UK

Prospective subscribers in the United Kingdom are advised that if they enter into a purchase agreement for Shares in consequence of this Prospectus or subsequently apply to convert such Shares to Shares in another sub-fund, they shall not have the right (provided under Section 15 of the Financial Conduct Authority's Conduct of Business Sourcebook, as may be amended from time to time) to cancel the investment agreement constituted upon the acceptance by or on behalf of the Company of an application for Shares unless advice has been received from a financial adviser. If a subscriber invests direct or is not resident in the United Kingdom, he will not be eligible for cancellation rights. If an application is received directly, the Management Company will assume that the subscriber did not receive advice unless he indicates at the time of investing that he did receive advice. Where a subscriber has the right to cancel, the UK Distributor will notify the subscriber of this right and he will have 14 days to cancel from the day he receives the cancellation notice. If a subscriber cancels within this period the UK Distributor will cash in his investment and send him the proceeds, refunding any initial charge. However, if the value of the Shares has fallen from the time when he purchased them he will not get back the full price he paid for them. In addition, prospective subscribers in the United Kingdom should note that investment into this scheme will not be covered by the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "Act") for the protection of subscribers. The Management Company is not an authorised person under the Act and subscribers are not therefore protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

The Company has however been certified as a UCITS scheme by the CSSF and has been certified by the Financial Conduct Authority as a recognised collective investment scheme in the UK, pursuant to Section 264 of the Act.

2.4. How to sell Shares

(1) Request

Redemption requests should be made to the Company either directly to the Registrar and Transfer Agent or through the distributors. Redemption requests may be made by letter, fax or following prior agreement by telephone, the latter requiring confirmation in writing. They must include the names and personal account number(s) of the shareholder(s), either the number of Shares to be repurchased or the cash value to be raised relating to each sub-fund and any special instructions for despatch of the redemption proceeds.

Valid instructions to redeem Shares of any sub-fund received prior to the appropriate dealing cut-off times as described in Section 2.3. "How to Buy Shares" paragraph (1) headed "Application" will normally be fulfilled on that Dealing Day. Any valid request received after the dealing cut-off times will be dealt with on the next Dealing Day. Any request for which documentation is missing will be dealt on receipt of the relevant documents, on the appropriate Dealing Day, after taking account of the dealing cut-off times.

Hong Kong residents should refer to Section 2.14. "Distribution of Shares" paragraph (1) headed "Hong Kong Representative and Distributor" and the accompanying Hong Kong covering document for details of the procedure they must follow.

(2) Settlement

In Cash

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to a specific sub-fund, the redemption proceeds shall be paid in the Settlement Currency no later than the deadlines set forth below.

Sub-fund	Due date for payment of redemption proceeds
Reserve, Bond, Equity Index and Other	Four Business Days after application unless the fourth Business Day is a day on which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency are closed for business, in which case payment of the redemption proceeds will be the next Business Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency are open for business unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" in relation to a specific sub-fund.

If payment is made by telegraphic transfer at the request of the shareholder, any costs so incurred will be the liability of the shareholder. The payment of the redemption proceeds is carried out at the risk of the shareholder.

In Kind

At a shareholder's request or, if so determined by the Board of Directors, the Company may elect to make a redemption in kind subject to a special report from the Company's Auditors in Luxembourg (to the extent this report is legally or regulatory required), having due regard to the interests of all shareholders, to the industry sector of the issuer, to the country of issue, to the liquidity and to the marketability and the markets on which the investments distributed are dealt in and to the materiality of investments. Additional costs

resulting from a redemption in kind will be borne exclusively by the shareholder concerned.

(3) Settlement Currencies

Payments for redemptions in a Share Class with a specific Share Class Reference Currency or a currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class can only be made in the currency of the relevant Share Class Reference Currency or currency hedged Share Class or currency overlay Share Class. Payments for redemptions in any other Share Class may be made in the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or, where certain Dealing Currencies are available, in that Dealing Currency. All these currencies in which payments for redemptions shall be made being referred to as "Settlement Currency".

With the exception of Share Class Reference Currencies and currency hedged Share Classes and where a shareholder requires the payment of a redemption in a currency other than the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or, where available, in the relevant Dealing Currency, the necessary foreign exchange transaction between this currency and the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned will be arranged by the distributor or the Registrar and Transfer Agent at the shareholder's expense on the basis of the exchange rate applicable as at the Dealing Day.

In exceptional circumstances, such as during an event of very significant currency markets disruption, should it not be possible for the Company to make payments for redemptions in the Share Class Reference Currency, Dealing Currency or currency of any currency hedged Share Class and currency overlay Share Class, the Company reserves the right to make such payment only in the Base Currency of the sub-fund.

(4) Contract Note

Contract notes are posted to shareholders as soon as practicable after the transaction has been effected, and may be faxed upon shareholder request.

(5) Mandatory Redemption

If a redemption instruction would reduce the value of a shareholder's residual holding in any one sub-fund to below the minimum holding requirement as set forth in Section 1.3. "Share Class Information", the Management Company may decide to compulsorily redeem the shareholder's entire holding in respect of that sub-fund.

(6) Deferral of Redemption

In order to ensure that shareholders who remain invested in the Company are not disadvantaged by the reduction of the liquidity of the Company's portfolio as a result of significant redemption applications received over a limited period, the Board of Directors may apply the procedures set out below in order to permit the orderly disposal of securities to meet redemptions.

The Company, having regard to the fair and equal treatment of shareholders, on receiving requests to redeem Shares amounting to 10% or more of the net asset value of any sub-fund:

a) shall not be bound to redeem on any Dealing Day a number of Shares representing more than 10% of the net asset value of any sub-fund. If the Company receives requests on any Dealing Day for redemption of a greater number of Shares, it may declare that such redemptions exceeding the 10% limit may be deferred by up to seven consecutive Dealing Days. On such Dealing Days such requests for redemption will be complied with in priority to later requests. If in the case of a request for conversion, such day is not a Qualifying Day, requests for conversion shall be dealt with on the next Qualifying Day in priority to later requests.

In the case of sub-funds with weekly valuation (as defined in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund details"), redemptions can be deferred by up to three consecutive net asset value calculations.

b) may elect to sell assets representing, as nearly as practicable, the same proportion of the sub-fund's assets as the Shares for which redemption requests have been received. If the Company exercises this option, the amount due to the shareholders who have applied to have their Shares redeemed will be based on the Net Asset Value per Share, calculated after such sale or disposal. Payment will be made forthwith upon completion of the sales and the receipt by the Company of the proceeds of sale in freely convertible currency. Receipt of the sale proceeds by the Company may however be delayed and the amount ultimately received may not necessarily reflect the Net Asset Value per Share calculation made at the time of the relevant transactions because of possible fluctuations in the currency values and difficulties in repatriating funds from certain jurisdictions (See Section 1.4. "General Risk Considerations").

Payment of redemption proceeds may be delayed if there are any specific statutory provisions such as foreign exchange restrictions, or any circumstances beyond the Company's control which make it impossible to transfer the redemption proceeds to the country where the redemption was requested.

(7) Cancellation Right

Requests for redemption once made may only be withdrawn in the event of a suspension or deferral of the right to redeem Shares of the relevant sub-fund.

(8) Prevention of Market Timing and other shareholder Protection Mechanisms

The Company does not knowingly allow investments which are associated with market timing practices as such practices may adversely affect the interests of all shareholders.

In general, market timing refers to the investment behaviour of an individual or company or a group of individuals or companies buying, selling or exchanging shares or other securities on the basis of predetermined market indicators by taking advantage of time differences

and/or imperfections or deficiencies in the method of determination of the net asset value. Market timers may also include individuals or groups of individuals whose securities transactions seem to follow a timing pattern or are characterised by frequent or large exchanges.

Accordingly, the Management Company may, whenever it deems it appropriate and using its existing discretion take the following decisions or cause the Registrar and Transfer Agent and/or the Administration Agent, as appropriate, to implement any or all, of the following measures:

- a) The Registrar and Transfer Agent may combine Shares which are under common ownership or control for the purposes of ascertaining whether an individual or a group of individuals can be deemed to be involved in market timing practices. Accordingly, the Management Company reserves the right to cause the Registrar and Transfer Agent to reject any application for switching and/or subscription of Shares from investors whom the former considers market timers.
- b) If a sub-fund is primarily invested in markets which are closed for business at the time the sub-fund is valued, the Management Company may, during periods of market volatility, and in accordance with the provisions below cause the Administration Agent to adjust the Net Asset Value per Share to reflect more accurately the fair value of the sub-fund's investments in accordance with Section 2.8. (2) "Pricing Adjustment" or, in certain circumstances specified in Section 2.7. "Suspension of the Calculation of the Net Asset Value and Issue, Allocation, Conversion, Redemption and Repurchase of Shares", to suspend the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share and the issue, allocation, the redemption and the conversion of Shares relating to that sub-fund.
- c) If a sub-fund is primarily invested in markets that are closed or operate with substantially restricted or suspended dealings, the Management Company may suspend the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share and the issue allocation and the redemption and repurchase of Shares relating to that sub-fund. (see Section 2.7. "Suspension of the Calculation of the Net Asset Value and Issue, Allocation, Conversion, Redemption and Repurchase of Shares").
- d) In addition to the fees listed elsewhere in this Prospectus, the Management Company may impose a charge of up to 2.00% of the Net Asset Value of the Shares redeemed or exchanged where the Management Company reasonably believes that an investor has engaged in market timing activity or active trading that is to the disadvantage of other shareholders. The charge shall be credited to the relevant sub-fund.

2.5. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Shares are issued in principle at an offer price and redeemed at a redemption price denominated and payable in the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned and/or in the currency of a Share Class having a specific Share Class Reference Currency or of a currency hedged Share Class or of a currency overlay Share Class or in a Dealing Currency as detailed in Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Payments for subscriptions and redemptions in a Share Class having a specific Share Class Reference Currency or a currency hedged Share Class can only be made in the currency of the relevant Share Class Reference Currency or currency hedged Share Class, unless otherwise provided for in the Prospectus.

With the exception of Share Class having a specific Share Class Reference Currencies and currency hedged Share Classes and where an investor requires the payment of a subscription or redemption in a currency other than the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or, where available in a Dealing Currency, the necessary foreign exchange transaction between this currency and the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned will be arranged by the distributor or the Registrar and Transfer Agent at the investor's expense on the basis of the exchange rate applicable as at the Dealing Day.

2.6. How to convert between Sub-Funds / Classes

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" in relation to a specific sub-fund, subject to shareholders being eligible in a given Class as defined in Section 1.3. "Share Class Information", Shares of any Class in any sub-fund may be converted into a different Class or different Classes of the same or other sub-funds on any Dealing Day for all sub-funds involved in the conversion (a "Qualifying Day").

The Company reserves the right to reject any conversion application in whole or in part.

Completed requests received before the dealing cut-off time will be dealt with on that Dealing Day or Qualifying Day, as applicable. Requests received after the dealing cut-off time are deemed received the next Dealing Day or Qualifying Day as applicable.

If compliance with conversion instructions would result in a residual holding in any one sub-fund or Class of less than the minimum holding, the Management Company may compulsorily redeem the residual Shares at the redemption price ruling on the relevant Qualifying Day and make payment of the proceeds to the shareholder.

Shareholders in Capital-Accumulation Shares can convert their holding to Distribution Shares in the same or other sub-funds and vice versa. Investors in hedged Share Classes can convert their holding to unhedged Share Classes in the same or other sub-funds and vice versa.

A conversion charge of up to 1% of the value of the Shares which are being converted may be payable to the relevant distributor. If a currency conversion needs to be effected, because the Net Asset Values per Share of the shares are in different currencies, the currency conversion rate of the relevant Dealing Day is used.

For shareholders in the Company who invest initially in Share Classes where no or a low sales charge is usually payable and subsequently switch into Share Classes of the same or different sub-funds with higher sales charges, such conversions are subject to the sales charge normally payable on direct investments into such Share Classes.

Fractions of registered Shares are issued on conversion to three decimal points. Hong Kong residents should refer to Section 2.14.

"Distribution of Shares", paragraph (1) headed "Hong Kong Representative and Distributor" and the accompanying Hong Kong covering document for details of the procedure they must follow.

2.7. Suspension of the Calculation of the Net Asset Value and Issue, Allocation, Conversion, Redemption and Repurchase of Shares

The Management Company, on behalf of the Company, may suspend the issue allocation and the redemption and repurchase of Shares relating to any sub-fund as well as the right to convert Shares relating to a Class in a sub-fund into those relating to the same or a different Class (as per Section 2.6. "How to convert between Sub-Funds / Classes" in another sub-fund and the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share relating to any Class:

- a) during any period when any market or stock exchange, which is the principal market or stock exchange on which a material part of the investments of the relevant sub-fund for the time being are quoted, is closed, or during which dealings are substantially restricted or suspended:
- b) during the existence of any state of affairs which constitutes an emergency as a result of which disposal of investments of the relevant sub-fund by the Company is not possible;
- c) during any breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of any of the relevant sub-fund's investments or the current prices on any market or stock exchange;
- d) during any period when remittance of monies which will or may be involved in the realisation of, or in the repayment for any of the relevant sub-fund's investments is not possible;
- e) if the Company or any sub-fund is being or may be wound up on, or following the date on which notice is given of the general meeting of shareholders at which a resolution to wind up the Company or the sub-fund is to be proposed;
- f) during any period when in the opinion of the Board of Directors there exist circumstances outside the control of the Company where it would be impracticable or unfair towards the shareholders to continue dealing in Shares of any sub-fund of the Company; or
- g) during any period when the determination of the net asset value per share of investment funds representing a material part of the assets of the relevant sub-fund is suspended.

The Company may cease the issue, allocation, conversion, redemption and repurchase of the Shares forthwith upon the occurrence of an event causing it to enter into liquidation or upon the order of the CSSF.

Shareholders who have requested conversion, redemption or repurchase of their Shares will be promptly notified in writing of any such suspension and of the termination thereof.

2.8. Prices of Shares and Publication of Prices and NAV

(1) Valuations

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to a specific sub-fund, the Net Asset Values per Share are calculated on each Dealing Day on the basis of the net asset value of the relevant Class of Shares of the relevant sub-fund in its relevant currencies.

In certain circumstances set out in Section 2.7. "Suspension of the Calculation of the Net Asset Value and Issue, Allocation, Conversion, Redemption and Repurchase of Shares", the Net Asset Value per Share determinations may be suspended and during any such period of suspension no Shares relating to the sub-fund to which the suspension applies may be issued or allocated (other than those already allotted), converted or repurchased. Full details of the Net Asset Value per Share calculations are set out below.

(2) Pricing Adjustment

When investors buy or sell shares in a sub-fund, the Investment Adviser may need to buy or sell the underlying investments within the sub-fund. Without an adjustment in the Net Asset Value per Share of the sub-fund to take account of these transactions, all shareholders in the sub-fund would pay the associated costs of buying and selling these underlying investments. These transaction costs can include, but are not limited to, bid-offer spreads, brokerage and taxes on transactions.

The pricing adjustment aims to protect shareholders in a sub-fund. The pricing adjustment aims to mitigate the effect of transactions costs on the Net Asset Value per Shares of a sub-fund incurred by significant net subscriptions or redemptions.

If it is in the interests of shareholders, when the net capital inflows or outflows in a sub-fund exceeds a predefined threshold agreed from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Net Asset Value per Share may be adjusted by a maximum of 2% in order to mitigate the effects of transaction costs. Where net capital inflows in Brazil Bond, Brazil Equity, Latin American Equity and Latin American Local Debt exceed a predefined threshold, the Net Asset Value per Share may be adjusted by a maximum of 7% to additionally mitigate the effects of a financial transactions tax ("IOF") payable in Brazil.

The pricing adjustment mechanism has three main components:

- a threshold rate
- a buy adjustment rate
- a sell adjustment rate

These components may be different for each sub-fund.

The pricing adjustment is triggered when the difference between subscriptions and redemptions, as a percentage of the sub-fund's Net

Asset Value, exceeds the threshold on any particular Dealing Day. The Net Asset Value of the sub-fund will be adjusted up or down using the adjustment rates (buy adjustment rate for net subscriptions or sell adjustment rate for net redemptions).

The adjustment of the Net Asset Value per Share will apply equally to each Class of Share in a specific sub-fund on any particular Dealing Day.

For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that fees will continue to be calculated on the basis of the unadjusted Net Asset Value.

(3) Offer Price

The offer price for Shares of each Class of each sub-fund is based on the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class, adjusted by the pricing adjustment (as described above) if applicable, and includes a sales charge of up to 5.54 % of the Net Asset Value per Share or, if applicable, of the adjusted Net Asset Value (the "Offer Price"). Offer Prices are quoted to three decimal places.

The Management Company and distributors reserve the right to waive the whole or part of the sales charge in respect of any particular application.

(4) Redemption Price

The redemption price of Shares of each Class of each sub-fund is equal to the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class, adjusted by the pricing adjustment (as described above) if applicable, on which the application for redemption has been received by the Registrar and Transfer Agent or the distributors (the "Redemption Price").

Redemption Prices are quoted to three decimal places.

(5) Publication of prices

The Offer and Redemption Prices of all sub-funds for each Dealing Day or previous Dealing Day's Offer and Redemption Price are available at the offices of the Company and the distributors.

The Redemption Price may be published on each Dealing Day or on each day the Net Asset Value is calculated, in the relevant currencies in various international publications and on data providers' websites and platforms.

(6) NAV Calculation Principles

Valuation principles

The valuation principles of the assets of the Company detailed in article 23 of the Articles of Incorporation are summarised below:

1. The assets of each Class within each sub-fund are valued on each Dealing Day (unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details").

If after such valuation there has been a material change in the quoted prices on the markets on which a substantial portion of the investments of the Company attributable to a particular sub-fund is dealt or quoted the Company may, in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company, cancel the first valuation and carry out a second valuation. In the case of such a second valuation, all issues, conversions or redemptions of Shares dealt with by the sub-fund on such a Dealing Day must be made in accordance with this second valuation.

- 2. The Net Asset Value per Share of each Class within each sub-fund is determined by aggregating the value of securities and other permitted assets of the Company allocated to that Class and deducting the liabilities of the Company allocated to that Class. The Net Asset Value per Share of each Class is determined by dividing the net asset value of the Class concerned by the number of Shares of that Class outstanding and by rounding the resulting amount up or down to three decimal points. Any roundings will be borne by or credited to the relevant Class of Shares.
- 3. Securities and/or financial derivative instruments which are listed on an official stock exchange are valued at the last available price on the principal market on which such securities are traded. Securities traded on other organised markets are valued at the last available price or yield equivalents obtained from one or more dealers in such organised markets at the time of valuation. If such prices are not representative of their fair value, all such securities and all other permitted assets will be valued at their fair value at which it is expected they may be resold as determined in good faith by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.
- 4. Shares or units in another collective investment undertaking will be valued at the last available net asset value computed for such securities reduced by any applicable charges. If the last available net asset value of shares or units in another collective investment undertaking is not available as at the evaluation time for a specific sub-fund the relevant Investment Adviser will value such shares or units by an estimation carried out in accordance with the fair value adjustment methodology, the result of which will be provided to the Administration Agent.
- 5. The financial derivative instruments which are not listed on any official stock exchange or traded on any other organised market will be valued in a reliable and verifiable manner on a daily basis, in accordance with market practice.
- 6. Any asset or liabilities expressed in terms of currencies other than the relevant currency of the sub-fund or Class concerned are translated into such currency at the prevailing market rates as obtained from one or more banks or dealers.

The consolidated accounts of the Company for the purpose of its financial reports shall be expressed in US dollars.

Fair Value Adjustments

The securities of sub-funds investing in non-European markets are usually valued on the basis of the last available price at the time when the Net Asset Value per Share is calculated. The time difference between the close of the markets in which a sub-fund invests and the point of valuation can be significant.

Where the Management Company believes that a significant event has occurred between the close of the markets in which a sub-fund invests and the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share, and that such event will materially affect the value of that sub-fund's portfolio or if the Management Company considers that even in the absence of a significant event the prices determined in accordance with the valuation principles above are no longer representative because for example of market volatility it may cause the Administration Agent to adjust the Net Asset Value per Share so as to reflect what is believed to be the fair value of the portfolio as at that point of valuation.

Where an adjustment is made as per the foregoing, it will be applied consistently to all Classes of Shares in the same sub-fund.

2.9. Dividends

The Board of Directors has resolved to issue Distribution and Capital-Accumulation Shares in different Classes of the sub-funds.

(1) Capital-Accumulation Shares

Capital-Accumulation Shares are identifiable by a "C" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g. Class AC) and do not pay any dividends.

(2) Distribution Shares

Distribution Shares are identifiable by a "D" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g. Class AD), with the exception of Monthly Distribution Shares identifiable by an "M" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g. Class AM) and Quarterly Distribution Shares identifiable by a "Q" following the sub-fund and Class names (e.g.: Class AQ).

The distribution policy of the Distribution Shares can be summarised as follows.

(3) Declaration and Announcement of Dividends

Dividends will be declared in respect of each Distribution Class of each sub-fund by a meeting of shareholders of the Company at the end of each financial year. The Board of Directors may declare interim dividends in respect of certain sub-funds. The Board of Directors will normally recommend that distributions are made from investment income. However, for Monthly Distribution and Quarterly Distribution Shares, if the investment income is not sufficient, the Board of Directors may determine if, and to what extent, the monthly or quarterly dividend may be paid out of capital, or paid gross of expenses.

Dividends will normally be declared in the Base Currency of the sub-fund with the exception of Share Class Reference Currencies and currency hedged Share Classes for which dividends will be declared in the corresponding currency.

Monthly Distribution Shares will pay a dividend normally on a monthly basis. Quarterly Distribution Shares will pay a dividend normally on a quarterly basis.

Dividends may be announced in the countries where the sub-funds are registered according to regulations of those jurisdictions. Payment of dividends will be made within six weeks of such declaration to holders of Shares in the respective sub-funds at the dividend record date as stated in such resolution.

(4) Payment and Reinvestment of Dividends

Holders of registered Shares may, by written request to the Registrar and Transfer Agent or by completion of the relevant section of the Application Form, elect to have dividends relating to any Distribution Class of any sub-fund paid out to them. Otherwise dividends will be reinvested automatically in the acquisition of further Shares relating to that sub-fund. Such Shares will be purchased no later than on the next Dealing Day after the date of payment of the dividend. Shares allocated as a result of such reinvestment will not be subject to any sales charge.

Fractions of registered Shares will be issued (as necessary) to three decimal points.

Dividends below USD 50, Euro 50, JPY 5,000, GBP 30 or equivalent to USD 50 in any other Dealing Currency or Share Class Reference Currencies will in any case be automatically reinvested in accordance with the provisions set out above.

In respect of the Monthly Distribution and Quarterly Distribution Shares, the dividend will normally automatically be paid out on a monthly and quarterly basis, respectively. However, if this dividend is below the above minima, the monthly or quarterly dividend will automatically be reinvested in accordance with the provisions set out above.

2.10. Charges and Expenses

(1) Explanation of the Charging Structure

Investment in the Company is generally offered via charging structures, as represented by the A, B, E, I, J, L, M, N, P, R, S, W, X, Y, YP, Z and ZP Classes of Shares.

The Management Company is entitled, in respect of each Class of Shares, to a management fee to cover all investment management,

investment advisory and distribution services provided in relation to the relevant Class (see paragraph (2) headed "Management Fee" below).

In addition, the Company pays to the Management Company a fee to cover operating administrative and servicing expenses. To preserve shareholders from fluctuations in a sub-fund's operating, administrative and servicing expenses, the Company has agreed with the Management Company that the fee charged to cover such operating, administrative and servicing expenses is fixed at an annual rate (indicated for each sub-fund in the relevant table in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"). The excess of such expenses above such annual rate will be borne directly by the Management Company or its affiliates, and equally the Management Company or its affiliates may retain any surplus (see paragraph (4) headed "Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses / Operating Currency Hedging Fees" below).

For so long as a Share Class of a sub-fund is authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong in the event of any increase in the current level of the Management Fee or the Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses up to the maximum permitted rate, at least three months prior notice (or any shorter prior notice as agreed with the Securities and Futures Commission) will be given to affected shareholders. Any increase in the maximum permitted rate is subject to the prior approval of affected shareholders of the relevant Share Class of the relevant sub-fund.

The Company will use income in the first instance to pay charges and expenses in respect of each Share Class. If the charges and expenses exceed the income of that Share Class the excess will be taken from the capital assets of that Share Class.

If the Company invests in shares or units of UCITS (including other sub-funds of the Company) and other Eligible UCIs that are managed directly or indirectly by the Management Company itself or a company with which it is linked by way of common management or control or by way of a direct or indirect stake of more than 10% of the capital or votes, then there will be no duplication of management, subscription or repurchase fees between the Company and the UCIs into which the Company invests. In derogation of this, if the Company invests in shares of HSBC ETFs PLC, then there may be duplication of management fees for any sub-funds. The maximum total management fees charged both to the relevant sub-fund and to HSBC ETFs PLC will be disclosed in the annual report.

If any sub-fund's investments in UCITS and other Eligible UCIs constitute a substantial proportion of the sub-fund's assets, the total management fee (excluding any performance fee, if any) charged both to such sub-fund itself and the other UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs concerned shall not exceed 3.00% of the relevant assets. The Company will indicate in its annual report the total management fees charged both to the relevant sub-fund and to the UCITS and other Eligible UCIs in which such sub-fund has invested during the relevant period.

(2) Management Fee

The Company pays to the Management Company an annual management fee calculated as a percentage of the net asset value of each sub-fund or Share Class ("Management Fee"), except otherwise provided hereinafter. The Management Fee is accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears at the rates specified below:

- 1. The maximum rate for Class E, I, J, L, M and N Shares is 3.5%.
- 2. The maximum rate for Class A, B, P, R, S, X, Y, YP, Z and ZP Shares is as stated in the relevant table in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details"
- 3. No Management Fee is charged for Class W Shares.

The Management Fee covers investment management, investment advisory and distribution services provided in relation to the relevant sub-fund of the Company by the Management Company, the Investment Advisers and the distributors. The Management Company is responsible for discharging, out of such fee, the fees of the Investment Advisers and the distributors and may pay part of such fee to recognised intermediaries or such other person as the Management Company may determine, at its discretion.

The Management Company may instruct the Company to pay a portion of the Management Fee directly out of the assets of the Company to any of such service providers or identified persons. In such case the Management Fee due to the Management Company is reduced accordingly.

(3) Performance Fees

Glossary

A number of technical terms are used to describe how the performance fee is calculated. These are explained in the glossary below:

Hurdle Rate	The hurdle rate against which the performance of each Share Class is measured for the purpose of calculating the performance fee. Details in respect of each sub-fund are set out in Section 3.2 "Sub-Fund Details".
	The Hurdle Rate will be applied on the base currency of the sub-fund, except for Currency Hedged Share Classes, where the Hurdle Rate will be applied on the currency of that Share Class.
	The Hurdle Rate is solely used for performance fee calculation purposes, and should not be considered as indicative of a specific investment style.
Current Day NAV	The Net Asset Value per Share in a particular Share Class in the sub-fund, including an accrual for all fees and expenses, adjusted for any dividend distributions, and excluding any performance fee that has been accrued.

Crystallise Crystallisation	The point at which any performance fee becomes payable to the Management Company, even if it is paid out at a later date.
Orystallisation	Crystallisation will occur either at the end of the Performance Period or at each valuation where there is a net redemption and/or conversion of Shares.
Net Asset Value per Share Return	Calculated at each valuation as the difference between the Current Day NAV per Share and the Prior Day NAV per Share.
Performance Period	The Performance Period runs normally from the first valuation of December (included) to the last valuation of November (included), except as noted below:
	Shares issued during the Performance Period will run from the first subscription date to the following last valuation of November.
	2. If all Shares in a Class are redeemed during the year, the Performance Period will end on the last redemption date of the Shares.
Performance Rate	The Performance Rate is variable and defined at the sub-fund level.
	Details for each sub-fund are set out in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".
Prior Day NAV	The Net Asset Value per Share in a particular Share Class in the sub-fund, including an accrual for all fees and expenses, adjusted for any dividend distributions, and excluding any performance fee that has been accrued.
High Water Mark	For the first Performance Period of a Share Class the initial Net Asset Value per Share. In subsequent Performance Periods, the High Water Mark will be the higher of:
	(a) the Net Asset Value per Share of the Share Class at the end of the previous Performance Period where a performance fee has been paid out, adjusted by the accumulated hurdle since the last performance fee was paid out, and dividends, if any; or
	(b) the Net Asset Value per Share at the end of the previous Performance Period, adjusted by dividends, if any.

How does the performance fee work?

Summary

For certain sub-funds and Share Classes, the Management Company is entitled to receive from the net assets of a Share Class, in addition to other fees and expenses mentioned in this Prospectus, an annual performance fee.

A performance fee will normally be applied at Share Class level to any sub-fund issuing Class L Shares, M Shares, N Shares, R Shares, YP Shares, ZP Shares. For Class J Shares and Class S Shares the performance fee will be charged only if provided for in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".

A separate performance fee calculation will be carried out for each Share Class within a sub-fund.

The performance fee will be calculated and accrued at each valuation of the sub-fund and payable at the end of the Performance Period, or on the net redemptions and/or conversions of Shares, if earlier.

If the Company invests in shares or units of UCITS (including other sub-funds of the Company) and other Eligible UCIs that are managed directly or indirectly by the Management Company itself or a company with which it is linked by way of common management or control or by way of a direct or indirect stake of more than 10% of the capital or votes, then no duplication of performance fees will occur.

The avoidance of a double-charge of the performance fee is achieved by either i) where a sub-fund invests in shares or units of such UCITS and other Eligible UCIs, and these UCITS and/or Eligible UCIs charge performance fees, the sub-fund will not charge a performance fee, or ii) where a sub-fund charges a performance fee, it will not invest in share classes that charge a performance fee.

For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that the performance fee is calculated for each Share Class on the basis of the unadjusted Net Asset Value per Share, e.g. before any pricing adjustment that might be applied to the Net Asset Value per Share to mitigate the effects of transaction costs.

The performance fee calculations ensure that the Management Company cannot earn a performance fee until any underperformance against the Hurdle Rate has been recovered.

Calculation Method

The High Water Mark defines a reference point for the Net Asset Value per Share above which, after adjustment for dividend distributions if any, a performance fee becomes payable.

A sub-fund may only accrue a performance fee in the event that both of the conditions below are met:

- 1. The Net Asset Value per Share Return of the relevant Share Class outperforms the relevant Hurdle Rate over the Performance Period and;
- 2. The Current Day NAV is higher than the High Water Mark.

Where the Current Day NAV, decreases below the High Water Mark and/or the Net Asset Value per Share Return underperforms the relevant Hurdle Rate, no performance fee will be accrued until such a decrease or underperformance has been recovered in the course of any one Performance Period.

If, at the end of the Performance Period, the Net Asset Value per Share is below the relevant Hurdle Rate and the performance fee is not paid, then the High Water Mark for the following Performance Period will be the past year's High Water Mark plus the Hurdle Rate.

Performance Fee Accrual

At each valuation of the sub-fund:

- The cumulative "Excess Return" since the beginning of the Performance Period is calculated as the difference between the cumulative Net Asset Value per Share Return and the cumulative Hurdle Rate since the beginning of the Performance Period.
- The cumulative performance fee per Share is equal to the cumulative "Excess Return" multiplied by the Performance Rate.
- The daily performance fee per Share is calculated as the difference between the cumulative performance fee per Share on the valuation and the cumulative performance fee per Share at the previous valuation.
- The daily performance fee accrual for the Share Class is equal to the performance fee accrual per Share on the valuation multiplied by the outstanding number of Shares on the valuation for that Share Class.
- The cumulative performance fee accrual before crystallisations for the Share Class is calculated as the sum of the cumulative performance fee accrual before crystallisations at the previous valuation and the performance fee accrual of that Share Class at the valuation.
- Any performance fee accrued on net redeemed and/or converted Shares is crystallised (by taking the proportion of net redeemed and/or converted Shares to the number of Shares in issue). The daily and total performance fee accruals since the beginning of the Performance Period are adjusted accordingly.

The daily performance fee accrual can be positive or negative however the cumulative performance fee accrual will never be reduced to below zero.

The cumulative performance fee accruals from the beginning of the Performance Period will be, at each valuation, included in the ongoing calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share of which subscriptions, redemptions and conversions may be accepted.

Crystallisation

Crystallisation of the performance fee occurs on the last valuation of each Performance Period. Any performance fee due is payable out of the sub-fund to the Management Company in arrears after the end of the Performance Period.

Accordingly, once the performance fee has crystallised, no refund will be made in respect of any performance fee paid out at that point in subsequent Performance Periods.

If there is a net redemption and/or conversion of Shares at any valuation before the end of the Performance Period, any accrued performance fee with respect to such redeemed Shares will crystallise on that valuation and will then become payable to the Management Company.

Computation of Performance Fees

Performance fees are calculated by the Administration Agent.

The Auditors of the Company will audit the calculations of the performance fees paid out on an annual basis.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the accrual represents fairly and accurately the performance fee liability that may eventually be payable by the sub-fund or Share Class to the Management Company.

Annual Payment of Performance Fees

At the end of a Performance Period the positive balance (if any) of the performance fee accrual will become payable to the Management Company and the performance fee accrual in the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class will be reset to zero and a new High Water Mark set.

The performance fee, if applicable, is payable yearly immediately following the end of each Performance Period.

Performance fees payable to the Management Company in any financial year are not refundable in any subsequent accounting years.

Pursuant to the provisions of the relevant Investment Advisory Agreement, the Investment Adviser may be entitled to receive from the Management Company the whole or part of the performance fee.

In the case of liquidation or merger of a sub-fund or Share Class to which a performance fee is applicable, the performance fee will be paid on the last valuation day before its liquidation or merger.

Performance fee risk

Any performance fee payable shall be based on net realised and net unrealised capital gains and losses as at the end of each Performance Period. As a result, performance fees may be paid on unrealised gains which may subsequently never be realised.

(4) Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses / Operating Currency Hedging Fees

The Company pays to the Management Company fees to cover certain operating, administrative and servicing expenses and the execution of the currency hedging policy. The Management Company is responsible for discharging out of this fee, the expenses described below, *inter alia*, payable to the Depositary Bank, the Administration Agent and the Registrar and Transfer Agent or any other appointed entity.

(i) Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses cover the ongoing custody/depositary fees and safekeeping charges payable to the Depositary Bank and its correspondent banks, fees for fund accounting and administration services (including domiciliary services) payable to the Administration Agent and transfer agency fees for registrar and transfer agency services payable to the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses also cover expenses relating to the creation of new sub-funds; the costs of the Subsidiaries (see below); the Luxembourg asset-based *taxe d'abonnement*, at the rate referred to in Section 2.18. "Taxation" below; attendance fees and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Board of Directors; legal and auditing fees and expenses; ongoing registration and listing fees, including translation expenses; the costs and expenses of preparing, printing, and distributing the Company's Prospectus, Key Investor Information Documents, financial reports, statements and other documents made available directly or through intermediaries to its shareholders.

This fee is set, for each sub-fund and/or Class, at a fixed percentage of the net asset value of the relevant sub-fund or Class specified in the relevant table in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" except otherwise provided in such table which details those Share Classes where the Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses represent a maximum level (i.e. they are capped). Such fee is accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

No Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses will be charged to Class W Shares. All the fees and charges allocated to such Class of Shares will be paid directly by a member or an affiliated entity of the HSBC Group.

(ii) Operating Currency Hedging Fees cover the fees of the Administration Agent or other appointed parties relating to the execution of the currency hedging policy for the currency hedged Share Classes and currency overlay Share Classes as defined in Section 1.2. "Profile of the Typical Investor Categories".

The maximum rate for (i) and (ii) together for Class A, B, E, I, J, L, M, N, P, R, S, X, Y, YP, Z and ZP Shares is 1.0% However, the Board of Directors reserves the right to amend the levels of the above fees applicable to each Class of Shares. In the event of an increase of such expenses, the concerned shareholders will be given at least (i) three months prior notice for so long as the Share Class of the sub-fund is authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong (or any shorter prior notice as agreed with the Securities and Futures Commission) or (ii) one month prior notice, of such increase. During this notice period, such shareholders may request the redemption of their Shares, free of charge.

The Management Company may instruct the Company to pay a portion of the aforesaid fees directly out of the assets of the Company to any of the aforementioned service providers. In such case the fee due to the Management Company is reduced accordingly.

(5) Charges and Expenses of the Subsidiaries

Under the Administration Agreements between the relevant Subsidiary and CIM Fund Services (formerly known as Multiconsult Limited), CIM Fund Services will be entitled to a fee payable by the relevant Subsidiary, for the provision of administration services to the relevant Subsidiary. In addition, certain operating expenses are borne by the relevant Subsidiary which shall comprise fees and expenses payable to the members of the board of directors, investment advisers, management company, managers or administration agent, depositary and any other agents employed by the relevant Subsidiary, fees for legal and auditing services, costs of legal publications, financial reports and other documents available to shareholders, insurance premiums, costs of obtaining or maintaining any registration with or authorisation from governmental or other competent authorities, taxes or governmental charges and all other operating expenses including the cost of buying and selling assets, interest, bank charges and brokerage, postage, telephone and telex. In determining the amount of such liabilities, the relevant Subsidiary may take into account all administrative and other expenses of a regular or periodical nature on an estimate figure for yearly or other periods in advance, and may accrue the same in equal proportions over any such period.

(6) Other Charges

Each sub-fund bears the costs and expenses of buying and selling portfolio securities and financial instruments, brokerage fees and commissions, interest or taxes payable, and other transaction related expenses. These transaction fees are accounted for on a cash basis and are paid when incurred or invoiced from the net assets of the sub-fund to which they are attributable. Transaction fees are allocated across each sub-fund's Share Classes.

The Company bears any extraordinary expenses including, without limitation, litigation expenses and the full amount of any tax, levy, duty or similar charge and any unforeseen charges imposed on the Company or its assets.

2.11. Management Company and Investment Advice

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall investment policy, objectives and management of the Company and its sub-funds.

The Board of Directors has appointed HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A. as Management Company to be responsible on a

day to day basis under the supervision of the Board of Directors, for providing administration, marketing, investment management and advice services in respect of all sub-funds. The Management Company has delegated the administration functions to the Administration Agent and registrar and transfer agency functions to the Registrar and Transfer Agent. The Management Company has delegated the marketing functions to the distributors and the investment management services to the Investment Advisers.

The Management Company was incorporated on 26 September 1988 as a *société anonyme* under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and its articles of incorporation are deposited with the Luxembourg *Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés*. The Management Company is approved as a management company regulated by chapter 15 of the 2010 Law.

The share capital of the Management Company is GBP 1,675,000.00 and will be increased to comply at all times with article 102 of the 2010 Law.

As of the date of the Prospectus, the Management Company has also been appointed to act as management company for other investments funds the list of which is available, upon request, at the registered office of the Company.

The Management Company and the Investment Advisers are members of the HSBC Group, which serves customers worldwide from around 6,300 offices in 75 countries and territories in Europe, Asia, North and Latin America, and the Middle East and North Africa.

The Management Company shall ensure compliance of the Company with the investment instructions and oversee the implementation of the Company's strategies and investment policy. The Management Company shall send reports to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis and inform each member of the Board of Directors without delay of any non-compliance of the Company with the investment restrictions.

The Management Company will receive periodic reports from the Investment Advisers detailing the sub-funds' performance and analysing their investment. The Management Company will receive similar reports from the other services providers in relation to the services which they provide.

The Investment Advisers, in accordance with the investment objectives and investment and borrowing restrictions of the Company, make and implement asset management and portfolio selection recommendations in connection with the investment and reinvestment of the assets of the Company in the relevant sub-funds.

2.12. Depositary Bank and Paying Agent

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. has been appointed by the Company as the depositary bank of the assets of the Company (the "Depositary Bank") which will be held in custody either directly by HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. or, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, through other credit institutions or financial intermediaries acting as its correspondents, sub-depositary banks, nominees, agents or delegates.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. was incorporated for an unlimited period in Luxembourg as a société anonyme on 19 July 1988 under the name of Bank of Bermuda (Luxembourg) S.A. and has its registered office at 16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg. It is licensed to carry out banking activities under the terms of the Luxembourg law of 5 April 1993 on the financial services sector, as amended, and specialises in custody, fund administration and related services.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. transferred its activities to HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch with effect from the close of business on 14 November 2014 and therefore, from 15 November 2014, HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch acts as depositary bank of the Company.

The Depositary Bank has to ensure that the Company's cash flows are properly monitored, and in particular that the subscription monies on their receipt from the Administration Agent and all cash has been booked in the cash account in the name of the Company or the Management Company on behalf of the Company and, following the investment of subscription monies, is responsible for the supervision of the assets of the Company which are held to the order of and registered in the name of the Company or in the name or to the order of the Depositary Bank on the Company's behalf.

Assets held directly with the Depositary Bank will be held in a separate client account and will be separately designated in the books of the Depositary Bank as belonging to the Company. Non-cash assets will be unavailable to the creditors of the Depositary Bank in the event of its bankruptcy or insolvency. Cash does not need to be segregated and may become available to the creditors of the Depositary Bank in case of its bankruptcy or insolvency.

Pursuant to the Depositary Bank Agreement, unless the Depositary Bank has acted (i) fraudulently, (ii) negligently, (iii) with wilful default, (iv) in breach of legal and regulatory provisions or (v) in breach of the Depositary Bank Agreement, the Depositary Bank shall not be liable to the Company or to any Shareholder for any act or omission in the course of or in connection with the discharge by the Depositary Bank of its duties. The Company has agreed to indemnify the Depositary Bank against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever (other than those resulting from the fraud, negligence or wilful default on the part of the Depositary Bank or any of its Correspondents, as defined below) which may be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Depositary Bank in performing its obligations or duties hereunder. The Depositary Bank has no decision-making discretion relating to the Company's investments. The Depositary Bank is a service provider to the Company and is not responsible for the preparation of this Prospectus or the activities of the Company and therefore accepts no responsibility for the accuracy of any information contained in this Prospectus or the validity of the structure and investments of the Company.

In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Depositary Bank may appoint sub-depositary banks, agents and delegates ("Correspondents") to hold the assets of the Company in custody. The liability of the Depositary Bank shall not be affected by the fact that it has entrusted all or some of the Company's assets in its safekeeping to such Correspondents. The Depositary Bank will exercise care and diligence in choosing and appointing the Correspondents so as to ensure that each Correspondent has and maintains the required expertise, competence and will maintain an appropriate level of supervision over each Correspondent and make appropriate enquiries from time to time to confirm that the obligations of the Correspondent continue to be competently discharged. It will periodically

assess whether the Correspondent fulfils applicable legal and regulatory requirements and will exercise ongoing supervision over each Correspondent to ensure that the obligations of the Correspondent continue to be competently discharged. The fees of any Correspondent appointed by the Depositary Bank shall be paid by the Company.

In respect of any losses to the Company arising from any Correspondent, including losses resulting from the fraud, negligence or wilful default of any Correspondent, the Depositary Bank shall, besides others, and without prejudice to its liability in relation to its general duty of supervision of the assets of the Company, use its reasonable endeavours to exercise such rights as are available to it in the local market against the relevant Correspondent and account to the Company for any recovery, and in the case of a liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency of a Correspondent, the Depositary Bank will use all reasonable endeavours to recover any Securities or other property held and to recover any losses suffered by the Company as a direct consequence of such liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency.

The Depositary Bank may appoint sub-depositary banks as part of market expansion, when it introduces a new market to its Global Custody network offering.

The Depositary Bank may also decide to replace a sub-depositary bank in cases where there are concerns regarding an appointed sub-depositary bank such as:

- the financial standing of the sub-depositary bank may expose the Depositary Bank's clients' assets (such as the Company's assets) at risk;
- the sub-depositary bank is in breach of any local laws or regulatory rules, or material weaknesses have been identified, as
 part of the external audit or due diligence undertaken by the Depositary Bank or its delegates, which cannot be easily or
 rapidly remedied;
- the sub-depositary bank consistently fails to perform its duties in accordance with the standard of care or diligence which can be expected from a professional in the performance of its duties or to meet the required service standards, despite being given due notice to improve, or it shows a lack of commitment to developing its overall custody service;
- where HSBC Group use more than one sub-depositary bank in a market and a decision is made to consolidate all HSBC Group assets with the best sub-depositary bank; and
- where the sub-depositary bank makes a decision to exit the custody business.

Criteria for the appointment of a sub-depositary bank

The Depositary Bank has appointed HSBC Bank Plc (a company authorized by the FCA) as Global Custodian, in charge of the appointment and monitoring of the sub-depositary bank network in accordance with the regulatory duties of a global custodian and as per the FCA's guidelines. HSBC Bank Plc performs regular due diligence on the sub-depositary banks, while HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A., as the Depositary Bank (HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch from 15 November 2014), reviews and signs-off every due diligence and appointment performed by HSBC Bank Plc.

All new appointments of sub-depositary banks go through a rigorous selection, risk assessment and approval process following FCA criteria:

- credit risk assessment using HSBC internal Credit Risk Rating system;
- operational risk assessment from due diligence;
- country risk;
- market infrastructure risk;
- legal risk; and
- the overall risk rating given to each sub-depositary bank, which determines whether an appointment can be made.

Approval will be provided by a specific HSBC governance panel, which consists of representatives of various business areas.

A list of "Globally Approved Sub-Depositaries" is maintained by HSBC and only these approved sub-depositaries can be used by all HSBC Group offices for holding clients' assets.

The HSBC Network Management team, a shared service centre of the HSBC Group, performs ongoing monitoring of the sub-depositary banks' performance, through:

- monthly issues meetings with all operational areas, based on the key criteria for each operational area service requirement;
- a half yearly agent monitoring process, involving the completion by all operational areas of the Agent Bank Scorecard;
- periodic Service Review meetings with the agent banks, with the participation of all operational areas;
- service Level Agreement reviews;
- and on-site visits using a risk based approach that does not differentiate between HSBC Group and non-group entities. In country visits include meetings with local market participants (regulators, depositaries and stock exchanges).

The Depositary Bank or the Company may terminate the Depositary Bank Agreement at any time upon ninety (90) calendar days' written notice (or earlier in case of certain breaches of the Depositary Bank Agreement, including the insolvency of any of them).

2.13. Administration

(1) Administration Agent

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. was appointed as administration agent of the Company pursuant to an agreement, which may be terminated by a notice given not less than 90 days in advance by either party to the other.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. transferred its activities to HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch with effect from the close of business on 14 November 2014 and therefore, from 15 November 2014, HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch acts as administration

agent of the Company.

The Administration Agent may, under its responsibility, delegate part or all of its functions to a third party service provider.

(2) Registrar and Transfer Agent

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. was appointed as registrar and transfer agent of the Company pursuant to an agreement, which may be terminated by a notice given not less than 90 days in advance by either party to the other.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. transferred its activities to HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch with effect from the close of business on 14 November 2014 and therefore, from 15 November 2014, HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch acts as registrar and transfer agent of the Company.

(3) Domiciliary Agent

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. was appointed by the Company as Domiciliary Agent.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. transferred its activities to HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch with effect from the close of business on 14 November 2014 and therefore, from 15 November 2014, HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch acts as domiciliary agent of the Company.

2.14. Distribution of Shares

The Management Company, as Global Distributor has appointed different distributors, the names of which are listed in Appendix 5 "Directory". The distributors are entitled to receive any applicable sales charges and conversion charges on all Shares handled by it. The distributors may reallocate such charges at their absolute discretion.

(1) Hong Kong Representative and Distributor

HSBC Investment Funds (Hong Kong) Limited has been appointed as representative and distributor of the Company in Hong Kong, to receive requests for purchase, redemption and conversion of Shares and to provide information to investors including its latest financial reports and the latest Prospectus.

(2) Representative in the United Kingdom

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited has been appointed pursuant to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "Act") as representative of the Company in the United Kingdom by an agreement concluded for an unlimited period of time, which may be terminated by either party upon giving three months' notice. The UK representative is required to maintain certain facilities in the United Kingdom on behalf of the Company, as a recognised collective investment scheme. Copies of the Articles of Incorporation and any amending resolutions, the latest Prospectus, the latest Key Investor Information Document and the most recently prepared annual and half-yearly reports and accounts may be obtained or inspected free of charge during normal business hours at the offices of HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited whose address is given in Appendix 5 "Directory". This Prospectus meets the Scheme Particulars requirements for a recognised collective investment scheme in the United Kingdom. The UK representative also makes available details of the Offer and Redemption prices. Requests for purchases, redemptions and conversions of Shares by UK residents may be made through the UK Representative who will send to the Company forthwith such requests and any complaints in connection with matters arising from dealings in the Shares. HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority.

(3) Singapore Representative and Distributor

HSBC Global Asset Management (Singapore) Limited has been appointed as representative and distributor of the Company in Singapore, to receive requests for purchase, redemption and conversion of Shares and to provide information to investors including its latest financial reports, the latest Prospectus and the latest Key Investor Information Document.

2.15. Meetings and Reports

The annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company (the "Annual General Meeting") is held at the registered office of the Company (or such other place as may be specified in the notice of meeting) in Luxembourg at 11.00 a.m. on the last Friday in July of each year (or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the next following Business Day).

Other general meetings of shareholders will be held at such time and place as are indicated in the notices of such meetings.

Notices of general meetings are given in accordance with Luxembourg law, and if required, by publication in the *Mémorial* and the *Luxemburger Wort* in Luxembourg and in such other newspapers as the Board of Directors may determine. Notices will specify the place and time of the meetings, the conditions of admission, the agenda, the quorum and the voting requirements. The requirements as to attendance, quorum and majorities at all general meetings will be those laid down in the Articles of Incorporation.

Under the conditions set forth in Luxembourg laws and regulations, the notice of any general meeting of shareholders may provide that the quorum and the majority at this general meeting shall be determined according to the Shares issued and outstanding at a certain date and time preceding the general meeting (the "Record Date"), whereas the right of a shareholder to attend a general meeting of shareholders and to exercise the voting rights attaching to his/its/her Shares shall be determined by reference to the Shares held by this shareholder as at the Record Date.

The year end of the Company is 31 March each year. The annual report containing the audited consolidated financial accounts of the Company expressed in US dollars in respect of the preceding financial period and with details of each sub-fund in the relevant Base

Currency is made available at the Company's registered office, at least 15 days before the Annual General Meeting.

Copies of all reports are available at the registered office of the Company, and at the offices of the Hong Kong, Singapore, Swiss and of the UK representatives.

Information relating to a sub-fund's portfolio, at each month end, is available to shareholders, an appropriate time after that month end. Shareholders should contact their usual HSBC distributor for such information. A small charge may be levied for the provision of this information.

2.16. Availability of Documents

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) at the registered office of the Company, at the offices of the Hong Kong representative and at the offices of the UK representative:

- a) the Articles of Incorporation;
- b) the material contracts.

Copies of the Articles of Incorporation, the most recent Prospectus, the most recent Key Investor Information Document and the latest financial reports may be obtained free of charge upon request at the registered office of the Company.

In addition, the Key Investor Information Documents are available on www.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/fundinfo. Investors may download the Key Investor Information Documents from the above website or obtain it in paper form or on any other durable medium agreed between the Management Company or the intermediary and the investor.

Additional information is made available by the Management Company at its registered office, upon request, in accordance with the provisions of Luxembourg laws and regulations. This additional information includes the procedures relating to complaints handling, the strategy followed for the exercise of voting rights of the Company, the policy for placing orders to deal on behalf of the Company with other entities, the best execution policy as well as the arrangements relating to the fee, commission or non-monetary benefit in relation with the investment management and administration of the Company.

Queries and Complaints

Any person who would like to receive further information regarding the Company or who wishes to make a complaint about the operation of the Company should contact the distributors listed in Appendix 6 "Directory" or HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A., the Management Company, 16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

2.17. Conflicts of Interest

The Management Company and any specific sub-fund Investment Adviser, the sales agents, the Administration Agent, the Registrar and Transfer Agent, the Depositary Bank may from time to time act as management company, investment manager or adviser, sales agent, administrator, registrar and transfer agent or depositary bank in relation to, or be otherwise involved in, other funds or collective investment schemes which have similar investment objectives to those of the Company or any sub-fund. It is therefore possible that any of them may, in the due course of their business, have potential conflicts of interest with the Company or any sub-fund. In such event, each will at all times have regard to its obligations under any agreements to which it is party or by which it is bound in relation to the Company or any sub-fund. In particular, but without limitation to its obligations to act in the best interests of the shareholders when undertaking any dealings or investments where conflicts of interest may arise, each will respectively endeavour to ensure that such conflicts are resolved fairly.

There is no prohibition on the Company entering into any transactions with the Management Company or any specific sub-fund Investment Adviser, the sales agents, the Administration Agent, the Registrar and Transfer Agent, the Depositary Bank or with any of their affiliates, or investing the assets of or reinvest the cash collateral received by any sub-fund in any investment products or funds managed, launched or offered by any of the above-mentioned entities, provided that such transactions are carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm's length. The Investment Advisers or any affiliates acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to client accounts may recommend to or direct clients to buy and sell Shares of the Company. If a client defaults on its obligation to repay indebtedness to the HSBC Group that is secured by Shares in the Company, and the HSBC Group forecloses on such interest, the HSBC Group would become a shareholder of the Company. As a consequence, the HSBC Group and its affiliates could hold a relatively large proportion of Shares and voting rights in the Company.

Affiliates of the HSBC Group act as counterparties for certain forward foreign exchange and financial futures contracts.

2.18. Taxation

The following summaries are based on the Company's understanding of the law and practice in force at the date of this Prospectus. As shareholders will be resident for tax purposes in various jurisdictions, no attempt has been made in this Prospectus to summarise the tax consequences for every jurisdiction which may be applicable to investors subscribing for, purchasing, holding, exchanging, selling or redeeming Shares. These consequences will vary in accordance with the law and practice in force in the relevant shareholder's country of citizenship, residence, domicile or incorporation and with his or her personal circumstances. Hence no shareholder should solely rely on the following guidance when determining the tax consequences of investing in the Shares.

It is the responsibility of shareholders or prospective shareholders to inform themselves of the possible tax consequences of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, exchanging, selling or redeeming Shares in the light of the laws of the country relevant to their citizenship, residence or domicile and of their personal circumstances and to take appropriate professional advice regarding exchange control or other legal restrictions relating thereto. Shareholders and prospective investors also should bear in mind that levels and bases of

taxation, as well as tax authority practices, may change and that such changes may have, depending on the countries, retrospective

General

In many markets the Company, as a foreign investment fund, may be subject to non-recoverable tax on income and gains (either by withholding or direct assessment) in relation to the investment returns it realises from its holdings of shares and securities in those markets. Where practicable the Company will make claims under the relevant double tax treaties and the domestic law of the countries concerned in order to minimise the impact of local taxation on the investment return and to obtain the best return for its shareholders. Those claims will be made on the basis of the Company's understanding of the validity of such claims given the information available from the Company's depositaries, external advisers and other sources as to the interpretation and application of the relevant legal provisions by the tax authorities in the country concerned.

The Company will seek to provide for tax on capital gains where it considers that it is more likely than not that the tax will be payable, given the advice and information available to the Company at the date concerned. However, any provision held may be insufficient to cover, or be in excess of, any final liability.

The Company will seek to claim concessionary tax treatment and account for tax on a reasonable efforts basis, given the tax law and practice at that date. Any change in tax law or practice in any country where the Company is registered, marketed or invested could affect the value of the Company's investments in the affected country. In particular, where retrospective changes to tax law or practice are applied by the legislature or tax authorities in a particular country these may result in a loss for current shareholders in the affected sub fund. The Company does not offer any warranty as to the tax position of returns from investments held in a particular market nor of the risk of a retrospective assessment to tax in a particular market or country.

Investors and potential investors should note Section 1.4. "General Risk Considerations" (2) "Emerging Markets". Please also refer to the FATCA comments in Section 2.18. (2) "Taxation of shareholders".

(1) Taxation of the Company

Belgium

The Belgian government has enacted a law which charges an annual net asset value tax on foreign investment funds registered with the Belgian Banking and Finance Commission. An annual tax of 0.08% is charged on the net outstanding amounts of sub-funds placed in Belgium through Belgian financial intermediaries on 31 December of the preceding year, as from the Company's registration with the Belgian Banking and Finance Commission.

To date as the amounts are small, the Management Company has paid this tax cost on behalf of the Company out of the Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses it receives. However, should the cost become substantial or long term the Management Company may require the sub-funds concerned to bear that tax charge for future periods.

China

Where the Company invests in shares and securities issued by companies tax resident (or with their primary activity) in PRC, securities issued by government agencies in the PRC or other permissible PRC investments, the Company may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed in the PRC. The tax laws, regulations and practice in the PRC are constantly changing, and they may be changed with retrospective effect. In particular, there is uncertainty as to whether and how capital gains are to be taxed. Therefore any provision for PRC tax liabilities that the Company may hold is likely to be excessive or inadequate to meet final PRC tax liabilities, and in particular (but not exclusively) in relation to gains derived from the disposal of PRC investments.

Consequently, the Company and shareholders may be disadvantaged depending upon the final outcome of how PRC investment returns will be taxed.

Further details of the taxation of the Company's investments in the PRC can be found in Section 3.3. (1) (c) "Taxation in the PRC".

Hong Kong

The Company may be subject to Hong Kong profits tax in relation to a particular sub-fund if it is treated as carrying on a trade or business in Hong Kong either on its own account or through the agency of the investment adviser of that sub-fund. If the Company is treated as carrying on business in Hong Kong, a liability to profits tax, the rate of which is currently 16.5%, will only exist in respect of any profits of the relevant sub-funds which arise in or are derived from Hong Kong from that trade or business, and which are not capital profits. Such amounts may include, but not be limited to, profits arising from the disposal of securities (except those held as capital assets) listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, unlisted securities where the purchase or sale contracts are effected in Hong Kong and interest income arising from certain debt instruments where the loan funds were first made available to the issuer in Hong Kong.

Under Hong Kong tax law and practice funds resident outside Hong Kong ("Offshore Funds") are exempted from Hong Kong profits tax providing certain conditions are met. It is intended that affairs of the Company will be conducted as far as possible to comply with the conditions for exemption from profits tax, however, the Company can offer no warranty that such exemption will be obtained in every instance.

India

On the basis that they are Mauritian tax resident, the Subsidiaries will benefit from the tax advantages available to them under the India-Mauritius double taxation treaty, which became effective on 1 July 1983. The Subsidiaries will file, through their custodian, a declaration of Mauritian residency with the registrar of each Indian company in which it invests. Until 31 March 2015 capital gains resulting from the purchase and sale by the Subsidiaries of stocks on the Indian stock exchanges will be exempt from tax on the basis that the

Subsidiaries are able to benefit from the provisions of the India-Mauritius double taxation treaty.

Interest on certain notified securities and bonds and on deposits in foreign currency with scheduled banks is exempt from income tax. The sale and purchase of stocks and securities is exempt from Indian sales tax.

The above-stated tax treatment under the India-Mauritius tax treaty will be available provided that a Subsidiary does not have a permanent establishment or its effective management and control in India. No guarantee or warranty can be given or should be assumed that the tax benefits of the treaty will continue to be available to the Indian Equity and in Global Emerging Markets Equity subfunds in future periods due to, among others, changes in the regulatory environment in Mauritius, India or the European Union.

The Indian Central Board of Direct Taxes has previously confirmed the availability of the treaty benefits to companies holding a certificate of Mauritian tax residence. The Supreme Court of India confirmed on 7 October 2003 the validity of this position. However, it is possible that the proposed General Anti-Avoidance Rule ("GAAR") will remove treaty benefits from 1 April 2015 (see below).

Dividends paid by the Indian companies are exempt from tax in the hands of the recipients if the said company pays a dividend distribution tax at the prescribed tax rate on dividends declared, distributed or paid by them on or after 1 April 2003.

The Indian Budget announced on 16 March 2012 introduced provisions for a GAAR to be effective from 1 April 2012. The implementation of the GAAR was then deferred until 1 April 2015. A GAAR gives considerable discretion to the tax authorities and may be used to seek to deny treaty benefits to foreign investors. Such actions could result in a significant financial cost for investors, as short term gains (those held for less than 1 year) could become taxable in India.

Luxembourg

The Company is not liable to any Luxembourg tax on profits or income. The Company is, however, liable in Luxembourg to a tax of 0.05% per annum of its net asset value, such tax being payable quarterly on the basis of the value of the net assets of the Company at the end of the relevant calendar quarter. The tax rate is reduced to 0.01% per annum for the Euro Reserve sub-fund and Classes J Share, L Share, S Share, W Share, X Share, Z Share and ZP Share in the relevant sub-funds. No stamp duty or other tax is payable in Luxembourg on the issue of Shares.

The Classes/sub-funds may be exempted from this 0.01% tax if they comply with the requirements of the Luxembourg Law of which are the following: (i) the Shares of the Class/sub-fund must be reserved to institutional investors in the meaning of article 174 of the 2010 Law; (ii) the exclusive object of the Class/sub-fund's portfolio must be the investment in money market instruments and/or deposits with credit institutions; (iii) the remaining average maturity of the Class/sub-fund's portfolio must be less than 90 days and (iv) the Class/sub-fund must benefit from the highest possible rating of a recognised rating agency.

No Luxembourg tax is payable on the realised or unrealised capital appreciation of the assets of the Company.

Are also exempt from this tax:

- a) sub-funds/Classes whose Shares are reserved for (i) institutions for occupational retirement pension or similar investment vehicles, set up on one or more employers' initiative for the benefit of their employees and (ii) companies of one or more employers investing funds they hold, to provide retirement benefits to their employees:
- b) sub-funds whose main objective is the investment in microfinance institutions;
- sub-funds/Classes of Shares whose Shares are listed or traded on at least one stock exchange or another regulated market operating regularly, recognised and open to the public and whose exclusive object is to replicate the performance of one or more indices.

Also exempt from the tax are the value of assets represented by units/shares held in other Eligible UCIs provided that such units/shares have already been subject to this tax provided for by Article 174 of the 2010 Law or by Article 68 of the Law of 13 February 2007.

Mauritius

The Subsidiaries are registered with the Financial Services Commission as an offshore company. As a result they are subject to a reduced rate of Mauritian income tax on their income. In addition, no Mauritian capital gains tax will be payable in respect of the Subsidiaries investments in India and any dividends and redemption proceeds paid by the Subsidiaries to the Indian Equity or Global Emerging Markets Equity sub-funds will be exempt from Mauritian withholding tax. A certificate of Mauritian tax residence has been granted to the Subsidiaries by the Mauritius Revenue Authority. On the basis that they are Mauritian tax residents, the Subsidiaries have to date qualified for certain reliefs from Indian tax as set out in the Indian tax paragraph above.

United Kingdom

It is the intention of the Board of Directors to conduct the affairs of the Company so that it does not become resident in the United Kingdom. On the basis that the Company is not resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes it should not be subject to United Kingdom corporation tax on its income and capital gains.

(2) Taxation of shareholders

Prospective investors should ascertain from their professional advisers the consequences to them of acquiring, holding, redeeming, transferring, selling or converting Shares under the relevant laws of the jurisdictions to which they are subject, including the tax consequences and any exchange control requirements. These consequences will vary with the law and practice of a shareholder's country of citizenship, residence, domicile or incorporation and with his personal circumstances. Prospective investors also should bear in mind that levels and bases of taxation may change.

EU Tax Considerations for individuals resident in the EU or in certain other countries or dependent or associated territories

The Council of the EU has, on 3 June, 2003, adopted the European Savings Directive (Council Directive 2003/48/EC) on the taxation of savings income in the form of interest payments, (the "Directive"). Under the Directive, Member States of the EU and EU dependant and associated territories (the "Covered Territory") are required to provide the tax authorities of another EU Member State with information on payments of interest or other similar income (within the meaning of the Directive) made by a paying agent (within the meaning of the Directive) within its jurisdiction to an individual resident, or to certain limited types of entities called residual entities (within the meaning of the Directive), established in that other Covered Territory. The Directive has been implemented in Luxembourg by the Law dated 21 June 2005 (the "EUSD Law"). Luxembourg has opted for a withholding tax system for a transitional period in relation to such payments.

Under the Directive the following are considered as interest payments: (i) interest related to debt claims of every kind, (ii) capitalised or accrued interest, (iii) income deriving from interest payments distributed by a sub-fund, and (iv) income realised on the sale, refund, or redemption of shares or units of such sub-fund.

The interest portion of dividends distributed by a sub-fund of the Company will be subject to the EUSD Law if more than 15% of such sub-fund's assets are invested directly or indirectly in debt claims (as defined in the EUSD Law) and the interest portion of proceeds realised by Shareholders on the redemption or sale of Shares in a sub-fund will be subject to the Directive and the EUSD Law if more than 25% of such sub-fund's assets are invested directly or indirectly in debt claims (such sub-funds, hereafter "Affected Sub-Funds").

In order to determine whether the 15% and/or 25% thresholds could be met, the investment policy of each Affected Sub-Fund must be examined. Alternatively, the actual composition of the assets of each Affected Sub-Fund should then be analysed.

Consequently, if in relation to an Affected Sub-Fund a Luxembourg paying agent makes a payment of dividends or redemption proceeds directly to a Shareholder who is an individual resident or deemed resident for tax purposes in another EU Member State or Covered Territory, the interest portion of such payment will, subject to the next paragraph below, be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 35%.

No withholding tax will be withheld by the Luxembourg paying agent if the relevant individual either (i) has expressly authorised the paying agent to report information to the tax authorities in accordance with the provisions of the EUSD Law or (ii) has provided the paying agent with a certificate drawn up in the format required by the EUSD Law by the competent authorities of his State of residence for tax purposes.

The Company reserves the right to reject any application for Shares if the information provided by any prospective investor does not meet the standards required by the EUSD Law as a result of the Directive.

The Luxembourg government announced on 10 April 2013 its intention to opt out of the withholding system in favour of automatic exchange of information with effect from 1 January 2015. The necessary amending laws and regulations will need to be passed before that date.

In addition, on 24 March 2014, the Council of the European Union adopted Council Directive 2014/48/EU amending the Directive. Member States have to adopt and publish by 1 January 2016, the laws, regulations and administrative provisions necessary to comply with this directive. Council Directive 2014/48/EU enlarges *inter alia* the scope of the Savings Directive by extending the definition of interest payments and will cover income distributed by or income realised upon the sale, refund or redemption of shares or units in undertakings for collective investment or other collective investment funds or schemes, that either are registered as such in accordance with the law of any of the Member States or of the countries of the European Economic Area which do not belong to the Union, or have fund rules or instruments of incorporation governed by the law relating to collective investment funds or schemes of one of these States or countries, irrespective of the legal form of such undertakings, funds or schemes and irrespective of any restriction to a limited group of investors, in case such undertakings, funds or schemes invest, directly or indirectly, a certain percentage of their assets in debt claims as defined under the amended Savings Directive.

Investors should consult their professional advisors on the possible tax and other consequences with respect to the implementation of the Council Directive 2014/48/EU amending the Savings Directive.

The foregoing is only a summary of the implications of the Savings Directive and the EUSD Law, is based on the current interpretation thereof and does not purport to be complete in all respects. It does not constitute investment or tax advice and investors should therefore seek advice from their financial or tax adviser on the full implications for themselves of the Savings Directive and the EUSD Law.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA)

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code ("FATCA") impose a 30% withholding tax on certain payments to a foreign financial institution ("FFI") if that FFI is not compliant with FATCA. The Company is a FFI and thus, subject to FATCA.

Beginning 1 July 2014, this withholding tax applies to payments to the Company that constitute interest, dividends and other types of income from U.S. sources (such as dividends paid by a U.S. corporation) and beginning on 1 January 2017, this withholding tax is extended to the proceeds received from the sale or disposition of assets that give rise to U.S. source dividend or interest payments.

These FATCA withholding taxes may be imposed on payments to the Company unless (i) the Company becomes FATCA compliant pursuant to the provisions of FATCA and the relevant regulations, notices and announcements issued thereunder, or (ii) the Company is subject to an appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement to improve international tax compliance and to implement FATCA ("IGA"). The Company intends to comply with FATCA in good time to ensure that none of its income is subject to FATCA withholding.

On 28 March 2014 a Model 1 IGA was signed between the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg to implement FATCA. The Company intends to take any measures that may be required to ensure compliance under the terms of the IGA and local implementing regulations.

In order to comply with its FATCA obligations, the Company will be required to obtain certain information from its investors so as to ascertain their U.S. tax status. If the investor is a specified U.S. person, U.S. owned non-U.S. entity, non-participating FFI ("NPFFI") or does not provide the requisite documentation, the Company may need to report information on these investors to the appropriate tax authority, as far as legally permitted.

If an investor or an intermediary through which it holds its interest in the Company fails to provide the Company, its agents or authorised representatives with any correct, complete and accurate information that may be required for the Company to comply with FATCA, the investor may be subject to withholding on amounts otherwise distributable to the investor, may be compelled to sell its Shares or, in certain situations, the investor' Shares may be sold involuntarily (if legally permitted). Such withholding is required by the applicable laws and regulations and the Management Company, on behalf of the Company, will act in good faith and on reasonable grounds to withhold amounts otherwise distributable to the investor. The Company may at its discretion enter into any supplemental agreement without the consent of investors to provide for any measures that the Company deems appropriate or necessary to comply with FATCA.

Other countries are in the process of adopting tax legislation concerning the reporting of information. The Company also intends to comply with such other similar tax legislation that may apply to the Company, although the exact parameters of such requirements are not yet fully known. As a result, the Company may need to seek information about the tax status of investors under such other country's laws and each investor for disclosure to the relevant governmental authority.

Although the Company will attempt to satisfy any obligations imposed on it to avoid the imposition of the FATCA withholding tax, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Company becomes subject to a withholding tax as a result of the FATCA regime, the value of the Shares held by shareholders may suffer material losses.

Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the FATCA requirements with respect to their own situation. In particular, Shareholders who hold their shares through intermediaries should confirm the FATCA compliance status of those intermediaries to ensure that they do not suffer US withholding tax on their investment returns.

France

In order for an Equity sub-fund or Index sub-fund to claim eligibility to article 17 of the French Finance Act 2014 (1ter of Article 150-0D of the Tax General Regulation), at least 75% of the total assets of the relevant sub-fund should be invested in Equity or Equity-equivalent securities at any point in time. Only French tax-residents can benefit from this measure.

The annual and semi-annual reports of the Company will disclose the actual percentage invested in the above mentioned securities for all Equity sub-funds and Index sub-funds which have met the eligibility criteria as well as the date from which they are eligible.

Sub-funds which may claim eligibility to the French "Plan d'Epargne en Actions" are listed in Appendix 4 "Additional Restrictions", section II.

Luxembourg

Subject to the provisions of the Savings Directive and the Law, non-resident shareholders are not subject to any income, withholding, estate, inheritance or other taxes in Luxembourg.

If necessary, investors should consult their professional advisers on the possible tax or other consequences of buying, holding, transferring or selling the Company's shares under the laws of their countries of citizenship, residence or domicile.

United Kingdom

Holders of Shares who are resident in the United Kingdom or carrying on a trade in the United Kingdom will, depending on their individual circumstances, be liable to United Kingdom Income Tax or Corporation Tax in respect of any income allocated or dividends paid to them whether directly or by way of reinvestment of income and on capital gains and such holders should include details of this income on an appropriate return to their local Inspector of Taxes.

Shareholders, who are companies, tax resident in the United Kingdom and whose investment in the sub-funds is not made in connection with or incidental to a trade (for UK tax purposes), will not be liable to corporation tax in relation to any dividends paid to them provided that the investment in the sub-fund concerned is not taxed under the loan relationship provisions mentioned below.

Shareholders, who are companies, that are resident in the United Kingdom or one which carries on a trade in the United Kingdom may be subject to tax under the loan relationship provisions of United Kingdom tax legislation during any accounting period of that shareholder when more than 60% of the investments of the sub-fund (in which the Shares are held) broadly comprise of interest bearing investments (including interests in collective investment schemes which themselves have more than 60% of their investments as interest bearing assets and financial derivative instruments whose subject matter is broadly linked to interest bearing investments, currency, creditworthiness or currency). Under these provisions the change in value of the Shares in that sub-fund during the corporate's accounting period will be taxed as part of the corporate's income for that accounting period the change in value being assessed on a fair value basis.

Shareholders should note that dividends paid by the Company comprise foreign dividends for UK tax purposes. Also for individuals the dividends will carry a tax credit equivalent to one ninth of the gross dividend payment by the Company, unless the dividends are taxed as interest for UK tax purposes as described below.

Generally, where at any time in the accounting period in which the dividend is paid (or the prior accounting period or twelve months prior to the start of the accounting period in which the dividend is paid if longer) more than 60% of the investments of the sub-fund (in which the Shares are held) comprise of broadly interest bearing investments (including interests in collective investment schemes which themselves have more than 60% of their investments as interest bearing assets and financial derivative instruments whose subject

matter is broadly linked to interest bearing investments, currency, creditworthiness or currency) then the dividend will be treated as a payment of interest to the shareholder for UK income tax purposes and will carry no tax credit.

Any United Kingdom resident investor who realises a gain on the disposal of his investment in an offshore fund (which is not certified as a distributing offshore fund or a reporting status fund, during the investor's entire period of ownership) will normally be charged to United Kingdom Income Tax (or Corporation Tax) on the gain, rather than to United Kingdom Capital Gains Tax (Corporation Tax on chargeable gains in the case of corporate investors).

Several Share Classes of the Company have UK distributor status for period ending on or before 31 March 2010, details of which can be found on the HM Revenue & Customs' website at www.hmrc.gov.uk. At the date of this Prospectus the exact location of this report is http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/offshorefunds/offshore-funds.xls

The Company has UK reporting fund status for certain Distributing and Accumulating Share Classes for its accounting period beginning 1 April 2010 and forward. It is the intention of the Company that all Distributing and Accumulating Share Classes will have UK Reporting Fund status from 1 April 2013 or from their date of launch, if later.

The Company intends to meet the reporting requirements by making available to shareholders the information required in The Offshore Funds (Tax) Regulations 2009 by 30 September each year. However, shareholders and potential shareholders should note that whether UK reporting fund status is obtained and retained for a particular share class may be subject to changes in HM Revenue and Customs' practice or other matters outside of the Company's control.

Details of which Share Classes have UK reporting fund status can be found on the HM Revenue & Customs' website at www.hmrc.gov.uk. At the date of this Prospectus the exact location of this list is http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/collective/rep-funds.xls

Shareholders in reporting status funds may be taxed on the reportable income arising in an accounting period whether or not that income is distributed to them. The amount taxable per Share will be the total reportable income (adjusted by any qualifying equalisation) for the period, divided by the relevant Shares in issue at the end of that period.

Reporting status must be applied for in advance or shortly after the start of the period for which it is required and (subject to a serious breach of the regulations governing the regime) will provide a greater degree of confidence to shareholders as to the UK tax status of their shareholding.

Shareholders resident or ordinary resident in the United Kingdom should note the provisions of Chapter 2 of Part 13 of the Income Tax Act 2007. These provisions are directed at the prevention of avoidance of income tax through transactions resulting in the transfer of assets or incomes to persons (including companies) abroad and may render them liable to income received by those persons on their behalf

Shares in the Company will be classified as foreign assets for the purposes of United Kingdom inheritance tax.

Genuine Diversity of Ownership

The intended category of investors in the Company is any investor that complies with the requirements set out in Section 2.3. (4) "Antimoney laundering and prevention of terrorist financing" located in the countries and territories where the Shares of the Company are registered for distribution.

The Shares in the Company will be made widely available to investors of the intended category by the appointed distributor and/or by local distributors as appointed from time to time. These distributors will actively promote investment in the Shares of the Company to a wide variety of investors of the intended category and make the Prospectus available to them. In addition, the Prospectus, the Key Investor Information Document and the Application Form can be obtained directly from the registered office of the Company, the Management Company and the distributor (details of which along with those of local distributors are provided in Appendix 6 "Directory"). Also Section 2.3. "How to buy Shares" sets out how to buy Shares in the Company. As a consequence the Company considers it allows any investor, including but not limited to any investors of the intended category, the opportunity to obtain information about the Company and to subscribe for Shares.

The Company intends, through the local distributors in the countries concerned, for its Shares to be promoted and made available through those local distributors (acting as financial intermediaries) in a manner designed to attract investors of the intended category.

2.19. Liquidation of the Company/Termination of Sub-Funds

(1) Liquidation of the Company and Amalgamation of Sub-Funds

With the consent of the shareholders expressed in the manner provided for by Articles 67-1 and 142 of the 1915 Law, the Company may be liquidated. Upon a decision taken by the shareholders of the Company or by the liquidator duly authorised and subject to a one month's prior notice to the shareholders, all assets and liabilities of the Company may be transferred to another UCI having substantially the same characteristics as the Company in exchange for the issue to shareholders in the Company of shares of such corporation or fund proportionate to their shareholdings in the Company.

If at any time the value at their respective net asset values of all outstanding Shares falls below two thirds of the minimum capital for the time being prescribed by Luxembourg law, the Board of Directors must submit the question of dissolution of the Company to a general meeting of the shareholders acting, without minimum quorum requirements, by a simple majority decision of the Shares represented at the meeting.

If at any time the value at their respective net asset values of all outstanding Shares is less than one quarter of the minimum capital for the time being required by Luxembourg law, the Board of Directors must submit the question of dissolution of the Company to a general meeting of the shareholders, acting without minimum quorum requirements and a decision to dissolve the Company may be taken by

the shareholders owning one quarter of the Shares represented at the meeting.

(2) Termination and Amalgamation of Sub-Funds

The Board of Directors may decide to liquidate any sub-fund if the net assets of such sub-fund fall below US\$ 50 million, or if a change in the economic or political situation relating to the sub-fund concerned would justify such liquidation or if the interests of the shareholders would justify it.

The decision to liquidate will be published or notified to the shareholders by the Company prior to the effective date of the liquidation and the publication or notification will indicate the reasons for, and the procedures of, the liquidation operations. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise decides in the interests of, or to keep equal treatment between, the shareholders, the shareholders of the sub-fund concerned may continue to request redemption or conversion of their Shares. Liquidation proceeds which cannot be distributed to their beneficiaries upon the close of the liquidation of the sub-fund concerned will be deposited with the *Caisse de Consignation* on behalf of their beneficiaries.

Where the Board of Directors does not have the authority to do so or where the Board of Directors determines that the decision should be put for shareholders' approval, the decision to liquidate a sub-fund may be taken at a meeting of the relevant shareholders instead of being taken by the Board of Directors. At such Class meeting, no quorum shall be required and the decision to liquidate must be approved by shareholders with a simple majority of the votes cast. The decision of the meeting will be notified and/or published by the Company.

Any merger or split of a sub-fund shall be decided upon by the Board of Directors unless the Board of Directors decided to submit the decision for a merger/split to a meeting of shareholders of the Class concerned. No quorum is required for this meeting and decisions are taken by the simple majority of the votes cast.

In case of a merger of a sub-fund where, as a result, the Company ceases to exist, the merger shall be decided by a meeting of shareholders resolving in accordance with the quorum and majority requirements for changing the Articles of Incorporation.

SECTION 3 SUB-FUND INFORMATION

3.1. List of sub-funds available

(1) Reserve Sub-Funds

Euro Reserve

(2) Bond Sub-Funds

- Asian Bond^{1, 2}
- Asian Currencies Bond²
- Brazil Bond
- Euro Bond²
- Euro Credit Bond²
- Euro Credit Bond Total Return²
- Euro High Yield Bond²
- GEM Inflation Linked Bond
- Global Asset-Backed Bond²
- Global Asset-Backed High Yield Bond²
- Global Bond²
- Global Bond Total Return^{1,2}
- Global Corporate Bond
- Global Emerging Markets Bond²
- Global Emerging Markets Corporate Debt²
- Global Emerging Markets Investment Grade Bond²
- Global Emerging Markets Local Currency Rates²
- Global Emerging Markets Local Debt²
- Global Government Bond
- Global High Income Bond
- Global High Yield Bond²
- Global Inflation Linked Bond
- Global Short Duration Bond²
- Global Short Duration High Yield Bond²
- India Fixed Income²
- Latin American Local Debt²
- RMB Fixed Income²
- US Dollar Bond²

(3) Equity Sub-Funds

(3a) International and Regional Equity Sub-Funds

- ASEAN Equity²
- Asia ex Japan Equity²
- Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies²
- Asia Pacific ex Japan Equity High Dividend²
- BRIC Equity²
- BRIC Markets
- BRIC Markets Equity
- China Consumer Opportunities²
- Emerging Wealth
- Euroland Equity²

¹ Shares in these sub-funds are not yet available. The initial launch date will be disclosed in the latest annual report of the Company. The relevant Key Investor Information Document will be updated and/or additional Key Investor Information Documents will be issued as new Classes become available or a sub-fund launched. Any references to these sub-funds in the Prospectus will come into effect when Shares in these sub-funds become available.

² These sub-funds may from time to time and the sub-funds are not yet available.

² These sub-funds may, from time to time, reach a size above which they may, in the view of the relevant Investment Advisers, become difficult to manage in an optimal manner. If this occurs, no new investors will be entitled to subscribe Shares in these sub-funds. Existing shareholders should contact their local HSBC distributor or the Company to enquire on opportunities for ongoing subscriptions (if any). All existing shareholders wishing to subscribe on a given Dealing Day will be treated equitably.

- Euroland Equity Smaller Companies²
- Euroland Growth²
- European Equity²
- Frontier Markets²
- Global Emerging Markets Equity²
- Global Equity Climate Change
- Global Equity Dividend^{1,2}
- Global Equity Volatility Focused
- Global Real Estate Equity¹
- Latin American Equity²

(3b) Market Specific Equity Sub-Funds

- Brazil Equity
- Chinese Equity²
- Chinese Equity Smaller Companies^{1,2}
- Hong Kong Equity²
- Indian Equity
- Korean Equity²
- Mexico Equity²
- Russia Equity
- Singapore Equity
- Taiwan Equity²
- Thai Equity
- Turkey Equity²
- UK Equity²

(4) Index Sub-Funds

- Economic Scale Index GEM Equity
- Economic Scale Index Global Equity³⁻⁴
- Economic Scale Index Japan Equity^{4,5}
- Economic Scale Index US Equity⁵⁶

(5) Other Sub-Funds

- GEM Debt Total Return²
- Global Emerging Markets Multi-Asset^{1,2}
- Global Macro
- Global Multi-Asset Income¹
- Managed Solutions Asia Focused Conservative ²
- Managed Solutions Asia Focused Growth²
- Managed Solutions Asia Focused Income²

¹ Shares in these sub-funds are not yet available. The initial launch date will be disclosed in the latest annual report of the Company. The relevant Key Investor Information Document will be updated and/or additional Key Investor Information Documents will be issued as new Classes become available or a sub-fund launched. Any references to these sub-funds in the Prospectus will come into effect when Shares in these sub-funds become available.

² Those sub-funds may form these to the sub-funds are not yet available.

² These sub-funds may, from time to time, reach a size above which they may, in the view of the relevant Investment Advisers, become difficult to manage in an optimal manner. If this occurs, no new investors will be entitled to subscribe Shares in these sub-funds. Existing shareholders should contact their local HSBC distributor or the Company to enquire on opportunities for ongoing subscriptions (if any). All existing shareholders wishing to subscribe on a given Dealing Day will be treated equitably.

All existing shareholders wishing to subscribe on a given Dealing Day will be treated equitably.

3 Until 16 February 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Equity.

⁴ Until 16 February 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Japanese Equity.

⁵ Until15 March 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – US Equity.

3.2. Sub-Fund Details

(1) Reserve Sub-Funds

Reserve sub-funds aim to provide security of capital by investing in transferable securities, money market instruments with a short remaining maturity, financial derivative instruments and in other permitted assets. The Reserve sub-funds may also hold ancillary liquid assets.

Financial derivative instruments may be used for hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes. Certain Reserve sub-funds may also invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes to the extent provided for in their specific investment objectives.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Euro Reserve

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund comprises a selection of Investment Grade rated Euro denominated transferable debt securities, money market instruments and other permitted assets, such as securities issued by or guaranteed by the governments of participating Euro countries, their agencies or instrumentalities and ancillary liquid assets. The portfolio will only invest in investments which have a maximum remaining maturity of 365 days. The average maturity of the portfolio will not exceed 90 days. Variable and Floating Rate Notes will be deemed to mature on the next coupon fixing date.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps and forward currency contracts and in other currency derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, the purposes of managing credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Stable category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Class of Shares*	Α	E	- 1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.50	n/a	0.25	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.15	n/a	0.10	n/a	0.10

Class of Shares*	J	Р	w
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

(2) Bond Sub-Funds

Bond sub-funds aim to provide income whilst maintaining a prudent policy of capital conservation. The Company's view of interest rate trends will be reflected in the type and the maturity dates of securities in which the sub-funds are invested.

Overall returns will be achieved through both capital appreciation and income, which may result in lower income yields than might otherwise normally be obtainable from the relevant securities markets.

Each of the Bond sub-funds aims to provide investors with actively managed portfolios of interest bearing transferable securities. Such securities are generally denominated in the respective currency of the sub-fund and include those traded both domestically and internationally. The portfolios may also include ancillary liquid assets and from time to time other permitted assets with a short remaining maturity, especially in times of rising interest rates.

Financial derivative instruments may be used for hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes. Certain Bond sub-funds may also invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes to the extent provided for in their specific investment objectives.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Asian Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities whose issuers either have their registered office in or carry out a predominant part of their business activities in the Asian markets, mainly denominated in USD but including currencies of Asian and OECD countries. At least 60% of the sub-fund's assets will be invested in securities denominated in currencies other than the Korean Won

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.20	0.60	1.50	0.60	0.55	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		ım Initial Investment nimum Holding
Class X	LISD	5,000,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Asian Currencies Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) securities including cash and convertible bonds. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities issued in the Asian markets and denominated in Asian currencies. At least 70% of the sub-fund's assets will be invested in securities denominated in Asian currencies. The sub-fund may also consider investments in securities denominated in OECD countries and other Emerging Markets currencies.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards) swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), options as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments, *inter alia*, for return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the following benchmark; iBoxx ABF Pan Asia ex China and ex Hong Kong Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Brazil Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Non-Investment and Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities issued or guaranteed by governments or government agencies, including those of the Brazilian Government, or supranational bodies issuing bonds which have exposure to Brazil as well as by companies which have their registered office in Brazil or which carry out a majority of their economic activities in Brazil or issue instruments that involve credit exposure in respect of Brazil

Such securities will be primarily denominated in local currency, which is the Real. On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may consider investments in securities denominated in USD.

As disclosed in Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions", Section III f), the sub-fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets in transferable securities issued or guaranteed by the Brazilian Government, Brazilian Government agencies or by supranational bodies of which one or more member states of the European Union are members issuing bonds which have exposure to Brazil provided that the sub-fund hold securities originated from at least six different issues whereby any one issue may not exceed 30% of the sub-fund net assets.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan GBI EM Global Brazil Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible. Generally the use of financial derivative instruments may have leverage effect, however, in the case of this sub-fund, under normal market conditions, the use of financial derivative instruments by the sub-fund is not expected to create any leverage on average, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.00	0.50	1.30	0.50	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	2,500,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euro Bond

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities from around the world, denominated in Euro. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities issued in developed markets such as OECD countries.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives. These financial derivative instruments may be denominated in currencies other than EUR although the net currency exposure will be very close to 100% in EUR at all times. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.75	0.375	1.05	0.375	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.15	0.15**	0.15

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S18	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.50	0.15	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.15	0.25	0.15	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class S18	USD 20,000,00		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euro Credit Bond

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities, denominated in Euro. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in Euro denominated Investment Grade corporate issues whilst reserving the possibility of investing in securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.85	0.425	1.15	0.425	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S19	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.25	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	n/a	0.15	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class S19	USD 30,000,00		

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Euro Credit Bond Total Return

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a portfolio allocated across the full spectrum of Euro denominated corporate bonds and other similar securities or instruments.

The Total Return strategy aims to capture the majority of the upside in the Euro credit universe while limiting the downside risk. The Total Return strategy has a flexible allocation across the Euro credit market. Returns are generated through duration management, yield curve positioning and the selection of individual securities within the investment universe. By seeking multiple sources of return, the Total Return strategy aims to implement a diversified portfolio generating risk-adjusted returns through various investment cycles and to provide a consistent track record without reference to a benchmark index. However the Total Return strategy does not imply there is any protection of capital or guarantee of a positive return over time. The sub-fund is subject to market risks at any time.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities which are issued by companies which are based in or carry out the larger part of their business in developed markets such as OECD countries or issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies of the same markets. These securities are primarily denominated in Euro.

On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may also invest in Euro denominated securities issued or guaranteed by governments or government agencies or supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or issued by companies which are based in Emerging Markets.

Investments in Asset Backed Securities (ABS) and Mortgage Back Securities (MBS) are limited to a maximum of 10% of the sub-fund's net assets.

Investments in convertible bonds are subject to a limit of 10% of the sub-fund's net assets.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy and limits by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other open-ended funds (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and total return swaps), forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning and also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

The sub-fund is managed without reference to any market index weightings.

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the Euro. On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may also have exposure to other European currencies but hedged back into Euro.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 80%, although higher levels are possible including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.90	0.45	1.20	0.45	0.40	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S10	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.20	n/a
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	n/a	0.15**	n/a

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class S10	USD 10,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euro High Yield Bond

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

From 30 January 2015

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of Euro denominated high yielding bonds.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income securities and other higher yielding securities (including unrated bonds) which are either issued by companies or issued or guaranteed by government, government agencies or supranational bodies in both developed markets, such as OECD countries, and Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated in Euro and, on an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of the sub-fund's net assets), in other developed market currencies.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management and tactical asset allocation.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), exchange-traded future options, foreign exchange options and swaptions, exchange traded futures and swaps (interest rate, credit default, inflation, total return and currency). Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the Euro. The sub-fund will normally hedge non-Euro currency exposures into Euro.

Until 29 January 2015

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities (commonly termed high yield) denominated in Euro. The sub-fund may also invest in fixed income securities in other European currencies, including Sterling.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	Е	- 1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.10	0.55	1.40	0.55	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	P	S8	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	n/a	0.15	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class S8	EUR	30,000,000	
Class X	USD	5,000,000	

HSBC Global Investment Funds - GEM Inflation Linked Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of fixed income securities whose returns are linked to the inflation rate of one or more Emerging Market countries as well active overlay positions in local Emerging Market currencies

The sub-fund will invest in Investment Grade. Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies, supranational bodies or companies linked to Emerging Markets and denominated in local currencies of Emerging Markets.

On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may also invest in non-inflation linked fixed income securities denominated in either local currency or in the currency of an OECD country.

The sub-fund will use financial derivative instruments such as currency forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), futures, swaps, options, credit default swaps and credit default indices. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-efficient access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the Barclays Emerging Markets Tradable Government Inflation-Linked Bond Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc

Settlement

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies/payment of redemption proceeds
Buying Shares	One Business Day after Net Asset Value Calculation (which is a Business Day during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business. Otherwise receipt of cleared monies will be the next Business Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)
Selling Shares	No later than four Business Days after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which are days during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.00	0.50	1.25	0.50	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	0.30	0.30	0.25	0.20**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding					
Class X	USD	5,000,000				

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Asset-Backed Bond*

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS"). The sub-fund may also invest in other fixed income instruments issued globally denominated in a range of currencies, including but not limited to, corporate bonds, government securities, and cash. Issuers of these securities may be located in any country.

The sub-fund may invest up to 100% of its assets in ABS and MBS securities whose underlyings include, but are not limited to, mortgages (residential and commercial), auto loans, corporate loans, bonds, credit cards, student loans and other receivables. The sub-fund's investments in ABS and MBS will be restricted to securities rated, at the time of purchase, at least BBB- or equivalent as measured by one or more of the independent rating agencies such as Moody's or Standard & Poor's.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives, as well as other structured products.

The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning and also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Settlement

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies/payment of redemption proceeds					
Buying Shares	One Business Day after Net Asset Value Calculation (which is a Business Day during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business. Otherwise receipt of cleared monies will be the next Business Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)					
Selling Shares	No later than four Business Days after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which are days during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)					

^{*} The sub-fund may be suitable only for experienced investors who are looking to gain exposure to ABS and MBS securities.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.90	0.45	1.20	0.45	0.45	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Dealing Day

	Due date for receipt of Applications to buy Shares and/or requests to redeem Shares			
Buying Shares Twice a month: On each Net Asset Value Calculation, as defined below.				
Selling Shares Twice a month: 7 Business Days prior to the Net Asset Value Calculation, as defined below.				

Net Asset Value Calculation

Twice a month on:

- The 15th of each calendar month. If the 15th is not a Business Day or if stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are not open for normal trading, the immediately following Business Day which is also a day where stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are open for normal trading, and
- The last Business Day of each calendar month, which is also a day where stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are open for normal trading.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Asset-Backed High Yield Bond*

* The sub-fund may be suitable only for experienced investors who are looking to gain exposure to high yield ABS and MBS securities.

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a portfolio of high yield asset backed bonds. The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar ("USD").

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in higher yielding Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS"), including Non-Investment Grade rated, and in other fixed income instruments, including but not limited to, corporate bonds, government securities, and cash. These instruments will be denominated in a range of currencies, but hedged back into LISD.

The sub-fund's underlying exposures include, but are not limited to, mortgages (residential and commercial), auto loans, corporate loans, bonds, credit cards, student loans and other receivables.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy and limits by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and other open-ended funds (including other funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning and also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		X	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	n/a	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Dealing Day

	Due date for receipt of Applications to buy Shares and/or requests to redeem Shares				
Buying Shares	Twice a month: On each Net Asset Value Calculation, as defined below.				
Selling Shares	Twice a month: Seven Business Days prior to the Net Asset Value Calculation, as defined below.				

Net Asset Value Calculation

Twice a month on:

- The 15th of each calendar month. If the 15th is not a Business Day or if stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are not open for normal trading, the immediately following Business Day which is also a day where stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are open for normal trading, and
- The last Business Day of each calendar month, which is also a day when stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are open for normal trading.

Settlement

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies/payment of redemption proceeds						
Buying Shares One Business Day after Net Asset Value Calculation (which is a Business Day during which the banks in the principal the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business. Otherwise receipt of cleared monies will be Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open							
Selling Shares	No later than four Business Days after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which are days during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)						

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities from around the world. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities issued in the developed markets and currencies of OFCD countries

The sub-fund may invest significantly (up to 30% of its net assets) in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS")

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the Barclays Capital Global Aggregate Bond Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible, under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

l	Class of Shares*	Α	В	Е		Х	Z
I	Management Fee (%)	0.75	0.375	1.05	0.375	0.35	0.00
	Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.15	0.15**	0.15
	5, (,						

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.15	0.25	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Bond Total Return

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio allocated across global bonds and other similar securities or instruments.

The Total Return strategy aims to capture the majority of the upside in the global bond universe while limiting the downside risk. The Total Return strategy has a flexible allocation across the full spectrum of global bonds and currency markets. Returns are generated through duration management, yield curve positioning, currency positioning and the selection of individual securities within the investment universe. By seeking multiple sources of return, the Total Return strategy aims to implement a diversified portfolio generating risk-adjusted returns through various investment cycles and to provide a consistent track record without reference to a benchmark index. However the Total Return strategy does not imply there is any protection of capital or guarantee of a positive return over time. The subfund is subject to market risks at any time.

The sub-fund invests normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets in Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade fixed income securities which are either issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies worldwide or issued by companies which are based or carry out the larger part of their business in either developed markets, such as OECD countries, or Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated in developed market and Emerging Market currencies.

The sub-fund may invest (up to 20% of its net assets) in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS").

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below investment grade.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management and tactical asset allocation.

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments including, but not limited to, futures, options, swaps (such as credit default swaps and total return swaps) and forward currency contracts. These may be exchange-traded or over-the-counter contracts. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example ABS).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. The sub-fund may also have exposure to non-US dollar currencies including Emerging Market currencies.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 300%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

A	В	E	ı	Х	Z
0.90	0.45	1.20	0.45	0.40	0.00
0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20
_	0.90	0.90 0.45	0.90 0.45 1.20	0.90 0.45 1.20 0.45	0.90 0.45 1.20 0.45 0.40

Class of Shares*	J	S15	w
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.20	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	0.15**	0.20

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Corporate Bond

Reference Currency

LISD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of corporate bonds.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities which are issued by companies in both developed markets, such as OECD countries, and Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated in developed market and Emerging Market currencies.

Investments in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS") are limited to a maximum of 20% of the sub-fund's net assets.

On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets) the sub-fund may invest in Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income securities, therefore an Investment Grade rated security that is downgraded below Investment Grade status will either continue to be held by the sub-fund under this limit or held by the sub-fund for a period to allow an orderly sale, taking into account the best interest of shareholders.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively and their primary use will be for hedging purposes and cash flow management. Financial derivative instruments may also be used for efficient portfolio management.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), exchange-traded futures, foreign exchange options, swaptions and swaps (interest rate and credit default). Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, participation notes).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. The sub-fund will normally hedge currency exposures into US dollar. On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may also have exposure to non-US dollar currencies including Emerging Market currencies.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the Barclays Global Aggregate Corporates AWS Hedged USD. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 75%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (France) to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.80	0.40	1.10	0.40	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	0.30	0.30	0.25	0.20**	0.25

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities either issued by companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets around the world, primarily denominated in US dollars, or which are issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies of Emerging Markets.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

The sub-fund may invest more than 10% and up to 30% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by a single sovereign issuer with a Non-Investment Grade credit rating. This is due to the fact that the sub-fund's reference benchmark, the JP Morgan Emerging Market Bond Index, may contain sovereign issuers that may have a Non-Investment Grade rating. The Investment Adviser may decide to invest in a specific non-investment grade sovereign issuer and/or to overweight (in relation to the reference benchmark) a particular Non-Investment Grade sovereign issuer.

The Non-Investment Grade sovereign issuers that the sub-fund may invest up to 30% of its net assets in include, but are not limited to, Venezuela, Turkey and the Philippines. However, this list may change at any time as a result of: changes in credit ratings, changes in the sub-fund's benchmark weights, the Investment Adviser's decision to allocate a higher or lower proportion of the sub-fund's net assets to a particular benchmark constituent and/or market movements.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-efficient access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan Emerging Market Bond index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible, under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.50	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P***	S6	S20	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	1.00	0.60	0.44	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.35	0.10	0.20**	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	5,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Corporate Debt

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities issued by companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets around the world as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in any Emerging Markets country. Such securities will be denominated in either local currency or in one of the OECD countries currency. If the Investment Adviser believes it is in the interests of shareholders, the sub-fund may invest in more liquid assets.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), options, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan Corporate Emerging Market Bond index Diversified. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

*** Class P Shares are closed to new subscriptions since 1 January 2011 except for existing shareholders.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Settlement

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies/payment of redemptions proceeds
	One Business Day after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which is a Business Day during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the
Buying Shares	Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business, otherwise receipt of cleared monies will be the next Business Day where the banks
	in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business).
Selling Shares	No later than four Business Days after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which are days during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the
Sening Shares	Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business).

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	1.80	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S12	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.20**	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class		Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class S12	USD	10,000,000				
Class X	USD	5.000.000				

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Investment Grade Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) at the time of purchase, and other similar securities either issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or which are issued by companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets around the world. Such securities will be denominated in either local currency or in one of the OECD countries currency.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the following composite benchmark; 50% JP Morgan Emerging Market Bond Index Global Investment Grade and 50% JP Morgan Global Bond Index Emerging Market Global Diversified Investment Grade. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 125%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.10	0.55	1.40	0.475	0.45	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Local Currency Rates

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a portfolio of Emerging Markets local currency bonds, foreign exchange forwards and other similar securities.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade fixed income securities and other similar securities, as well as currency forwards and non-deliverable forwards. The fixed income securities are issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or issued by companies which are based in or carry out the larger part of their business activities in Emerging Markets. All the instruments are primarily denominated in or linked to Emerging Markets currencies.

For collateral management purposes and to support offsetting exposures in Emerging Markets instruments, the sub-fund may also invest in developed markets cash and cash instruments.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy and limits by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other open-ended funds (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may also invest in additional financial derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

The sub-fund's currency exposure is to Emerging Markets currencies. On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may also invest in securities denominated in US dollar and/or currencies of other developed markets.

The average maturity of the sub-fund is normally between 4 and 8 years.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan Government Bond Index Emerging Market Global Diversified. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 100%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	_	X	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S11	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.30	n/a
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.20**	n/a

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Currency overlay share Classes suffixed by "H" e.g. "Class ADH" or "Class BCH"	USD	1,000,000		
Class S11	USD	10,000,000		
Class X	USD	5,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Local Debt

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade bonds and other similar securities, as well as currency forwards and non-deliverable forwards (together "Instruments"). These Instruments are linked to the currency of securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets and will be primarily denominated in local currency. On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may consider investments in securities denominated in USD and those of other OECD countries.

The sub-fund may also invest in additional financial derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the following composite benchmark; 50% JP Morgan Global Bond Index Emerging Market Global Diversified and 50% JP Morgan Emerging Local Markets Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 125%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information". Any currency overlay Share Classes issued will be to provide a hedge against the Base Currency, i.e. the US Dollar. Whilst the sub-fund has no direct economic exposure to the US Dollar, the aim is to provide an overlay strategy whereby all investors in these Share Classes will be exposed to the exchange rate movements of the underlying_portfolios' currencies against the US Dollar. However, there is no guarantee that the underlying_portfolios' currencies will appreciate against the US Dollar or that the currency overlay objective will be achieved.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Currency overlay share Classes suffixed "H" e.g. "Class ADH" or "Class BCH	USD	1,000,000		
Class X	USD	5 000 000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Government Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of government bonds.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities which are issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies in both developed markets, such as OECD countries, and Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated in developed market and Emerging Market currencies.

Investments in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS") are limited to a maximum of 10% of the subfund's net assets.

On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets) the sub-fund may invest in Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income securities.

achieved.

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively and their primary use will be for hedging purposes and cash flow management. Financial derivative instruments may also be used for efficient portfolio management.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), exchange-traded futures, foreign exchange options, swaptions and swaps (interest rate and credit default). Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, participation notes).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. The sub-fund will normally hedge currency exposures into US dollar. On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may also have exposure to non-US dollar currencies including Emerging Market currencies.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan GBI Global Hedged USD. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 150%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.30	0.90	0.30	0.25	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global High Income Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for high income primarily in a diversified portfolio of higher yielding fixed income bonds and other similar securities from around the world denominated in a range of currencies. This may include Investment Grade bonds, high yield bonds and Asian and Emerging Markets debt instruments. Investment in mortgage and asset backed securities will be limited to a maximum of 20% of the sub-fund net assets.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives.

The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

In particular, the sub-fund will use foreign currency forward contracts or other financial derivative instruments to substantially protect the sub-fund from losses arising from currency depreciation against the USD

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the following composite benchmark: 35% Barclays EM USD Aggregate, 20% Barclays US Aggregate Corporate Baa, 15% Barclays US High Yield Ba, 15% Barclays Euro Aggregate Corporate Baa Hedged USD and 15% Barclays Euro High Yield BB Hedged USD. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 75%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Sub-Investment Advisers

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (France) and HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global High Yield Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities issued by companies, agencies or governments from any country, in both developed and Emerging Markets and denominated in or hedged into United States Dollars (USD).

On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may invest in asset backed securities (limited to a maximum of 10%) and Investment Grade fixed income securities, and have exposure to non-USD currencies including Emerging Markets local currencies (up to a maximum of 20%) to enhance return. Normally, a minimum of 90% of the sub-fund will be invested in Non-Investment Grade and other higher yielding bonds (including unrated bonds). However, for liquidity management purposes, the sub-fund may also invest up to 30% in Investment Grade fixed income securities.

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund may gain exposure to higher yielding bonds by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds) with similar debt securities as that of the sub-fund.

The sub-fund does not intend to use financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes. However, the sub-fund may invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), forward currency contracts and other credit derivatives for, *inter alia*, the purposes of managing interest rate risks and credit risks, currency positioning as well as for investment purposes to enhance return at times when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives. The sub-fund may be leveraged through the use of financial derivative instruments.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against BofA Merrill Lynch Global High Yield BB-B Constrained (USD Hedged)*. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 75%, although higher levels are possible, under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Source Bank Of America Merrill Lynch, used with permission. BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH IS LICENSING THE BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH INDICES "AS IS," MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING SAME, DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE QUALITY, ACCURACY AND/OR COMPLETENESS OF THE BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH INDICES OR ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN OR DERIVED THEREFROM, AND ASSUMES NO LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THEIR USE.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (France) to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.10	0.55	1.40	0.55	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Inflation Linked Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

From 30 January 2015

The sub-sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of inflation linked bonds.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in inflation linked bonds which are issued by companies, agencies or governments in both developed markets, such as OECD countries, and Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated in developed market and Emerging Market currencies.

The sub-fund will not invest in securities issued by or guaranteed by issuers with a credit rating below Investment Grade at the time of purchase.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management and tactical asset allocation. This may include the use of financial derivative instruments to take long and short exposures on the breakeven inflation.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to foreign exchange forwards (including nondeliverable forwards), exchange traded future options, foreign exchange options and swaptions, exchange traded futures and swaps (interest rate, credit default, inflation, total return and currency). Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. The sub-fund will normally hedge currency exposures into US dollar. On an ancillary basis (normally up to 10% of its net assets), the sub-fund may have exposure to non-US dollar currencies including Emerging Market currencies through an active currency overlay strategy.

Until 29 January 2015

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of inflation linked bonds denominated in local currencies issued by OECD countries.

The sub-fund intends to use financial derivative instruments such as inflation swaps in order to take long and short exposures on the breakeven inflation of OECD countries. The sub-fund may also invest in other financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forwards (including currency contracts) and in other currency and credit derivatives.

The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.70	0.35	1.00	0.35	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.15

Class of Shares*	J	P	S17	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.29	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.06	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class X	USD	5,000,000	

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Short Duration Bond

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of bonds whilst maintaining low interest rate risk.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities which are either issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies and supranational bodies in developed markets or by companies which are based or carry out the larger part of their business in the developed markets. These securities are primarily denominated in developed markets currencies.

On an ancillary basis the sub-fund may invest in Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income securities (normally up to 10% of its net assets), in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") (normally up to 10% of its net assets) and in fixed income securities issued in Emerging Markets (normally up to 10% of its net assets).

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management and tactical asset allocation.

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments including, but not limited to, futures, options, swaps (such as credit default swaps and total return swaps) and forward currency contracts. These may be exchange-traded or over-the-counter contracts. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example ABS).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. The sub-fund may also have exposure to non-US dollar currencies including Emerging Market currencies.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 200%, although higher levels are possible including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.50	0.25	0.80	0.25	0.20	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	0.20	0.20	0.18	0.11**	0.15

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S16	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.15	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.15	n/a	0.11**	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Short Duration High Yield Bond

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a portfolio of global high yield securities whilst maintaining low interest rate risk.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities and other higher yielding bonds issued by companies, agencies or governments in developed markets and denominated in or hedged back into US dollars (USD). However, for liquidity and/or risk management purposes, the sub-fund may also invest up to 30% in Investment Grade fixed income securities.

On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and in fixed income securities issued in Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below investment grade.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy and limits by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other open-ended funds (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar. However, the sub-fund may also have (up to 10% of its net assets) exposure to non-USD currencies including Emerging Markets local currencies to enhance return.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), forward currency contracts and in other currency and credit derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the subfund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the BofA Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year BB-B US & Euro Non-Financial High Yield 2% Constrained (USD hedged) index*. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 75%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

* Source Bank Of America Merrill Lynch, used with permission. BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH IS LICENSING THE BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH INDICES "AS IS," MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING SAME, DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE QUALITY, ACCURACY AND/OR COMPLETENESS OF THE BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH INDICES OR ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN OR DERIVED THEREFROM, AND ASSUMES NO LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THEIR USE.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (France) to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.90	0.45	1.30	0.45	0.40	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S13	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.20	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	n/a	0.15**	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3, "Share Class Information"

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

CI	ass	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
CI	ass S13	USD	10,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – India Fixed Income

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks access to the Indian fixed income market by investing primarily in:

- Investment and Non-Investment Grade, as well as unrated Indian domestic fixed income securities (e.g. bonds) denominated in Indian Rupee (INR). These will be government and/or corporate issues.
- Investment and Non-Investment Grade, as well as unrated fixed income securities denominated in other currencies (e.g. United States Dollar). These securities will be issued or guaranteed by the government or government agencies of India as well as by companies which have their registered office in India or which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in India.
- Other instruments (e.g. structured notes) referencing underlying exposure to INR fixed income securities.
- Cash and cash instruments.

Unless otherwise permitted, to invest in Indian domestic fixed income securities, the sub-fund will use a Foreign Institutional Investor (FII) license authorised by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and will be subject to the available FII quota on fixed income investments. The sub-fund may therefore be able to invest in domestic fixed income securities only when FII quota is available and granted to the sub-fund by SEBI. Investors should be aware that the availability of the FII quota can be unpredictable and, as a result, the sub-fund may, at times, have substantial exposure to non-INR denominated investments outside of India.

When the sub-fund invests in instruments which are neither INR denominated or referenced, the sub-fund will normally achieve INR exposure using financial derivative instruments.

The sub-fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets in transferable securities issued or guaranteed by the Indian Government or Indian Government agencies.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps (including, but not limited to, currency swaps), options, as well as other structured products or instruments. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, return enhancement, hedging, tax-efficient access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 20%, although higher levels are possible, under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Sub-Investment Advisers

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of the sub-fund. HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited has appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (India) Pvt Limited to provide non-binding investment advice in respect of the sub-fund.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.10	0.55	1.40	0.55	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	2,500,000		

Settlement

Sub-fund	Due date for receipt of cleared monies/payment of redemptions proceeds
Buying Shares	One Business Day after Net Asset Value Calculation (which is a Business Day during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business. Otherwise receipt of cleared monies will be the next Business Day where the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)
Selling Shares	No later than four Business Days after the Net Asset Value Calculation (which are days during which the banks in the principal financial centre for the Settlement Currency of the relevant Share Class are open for business)

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Latin American Local Debt

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities. These securities are issued or guaranteed by governments or government agencies of Latin America, supranational bodies issuing bonds which have exposure to Latin America as well as by companies which have their registered office in Latin America. Such securities will be primarily denominated in local currency. On an ancillary basis, the sub-fund may consider investments in securities denominated in USD and those of other OECD countries.

The sub-fund may invest more than 35% of its net assets in fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by the Brazilian Government or Brazilian Government agencies and/or in fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by the Mexican Government or Mexican Government agencies.

As disclosed in Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions", Section III f), the sub-fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets in transferable securities issued or guaranteed by the Brazilian Government, Brazilian Government agencies, the Mexican Government, Mexican Government agencies, or by supranational bodies of which one or more member states of the European Union are members issuing bonds that have exposure to Brazil or Mexico provided that the sub-fund holds securities originated from at least six different issues whereby any one issue may not exceed 30% of the sub-fund net assets.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the JP Morgan GBI - EM Global Latin America Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible. Generally the use of financial derivative instruments may have leverage effect, however, in the case of this sub-fund, under normal market conditions, the use of financial derivative instruments by the sub-fund is not expected to create any leverage on average, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo

Sub-Investment Advisers

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Bank Argentina S.A. and HSBC Global Asset Management (México) S.A. de C.V., Grupo Financiero HSBC to provide non-binding investment advice in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S14	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.20**	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

^{*} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class S14	USD	10,000,000	
Class X	USD	5,000,000	

HSBC Global Investment Funds - RMB Fixed Income

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment and Non-Investment Grade, as well as unrated fixed income securities (including but not limited to bonds and notes), cash, deposits (including certificate of deposits) and structured products with effective underlying currency exposure in RMB.

The RMB bond market is new and still developing and the opportunities to invest in RMB bonds are limited. Therefore, until the RMB bond market has fully developed, the fund may at times invest substantially in cash, deposits and other short term instruments.

The sub-fund may invest in non-RMB denominated securities and achieve RMB exposure using financial derivative instruments.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps), options, as well as other structured products or instruments. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Δ	В	l F		X	7
Management Fee (%)	0.75	0.375	1.05	0.375	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.20	0.15**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information" Any currency overlay Share Classes issued will be to provide a hedge against the Base Currency, i.e. the US Dollar. Whilst the sub-fund has no direct economic exposure to the US Dollar, the aim is to provide an overlay strategy whereby all investors in these Share Classes will be exposed to the exchange rate movements of the RMB against the US Dollar. However, there is no guarantee that the RMB will appreciate against the US Dollar or that the currency overlay objective will be achieved.

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	N	linimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding
Class X	USD	2,500,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – US Dollar Bond

Reference Currency

USD

The sub-fund invests for total return primarily in a diversified portfolio of Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities from around the world, denominated in US dollars. The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities issued in developed markets such as the OECD countries.

The sub-fund may invest significantly (up to 50% of its net assets) in Asset Backed Securities ("ABS") and Mortgage Backed Securities

("MBS"), including those backed by the government of the United States of America.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps and Total Return Swaps) and forward currency contracts. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments, inter alia, for the purposes of managing interest and credit risks and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the Barclays US Aggregate. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 50%, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.75	0.375	1.05	0.375	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.15	0.15**	0.15

Class of Shares*	J*	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.25	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".
** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

(3) Equity Sub-Funds

The Equity sub-funds aim to provide capital growth by investing primarily in equity or equity-equivalent securities issued by companies which have their registered office in the regions, countries or markets referred to in the sub-fund's name.

The Equity sub-funds may consider other investments. However, investments in a combination of bonds, convertible bonds and options will be subject to a limit of 25% of net assets provided that under normal market conditions, no more than 15% of net assets will be invested in debt claims (as defined by the Savings Directive).

Financial derivative instruments may be used for hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes. Certain Equity subfunds may also invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes to the extent provided for in their specific investment objectives.

(3a) International and Regional sub-funds

HSBC Global Investment Funds – ASEAN Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a diversified portfolio of equities from countries which are members of the Association of South East Asian Nations ("ASEAN"). The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in equities and equity equivalent securities of companies which are based in any ASEAN country with a focus on Indonesia, Malaysia, the Philippines, Singapore and Thailand as well as those which carry out the larger part of their business activities in ASEAN countries, in both developed and Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund may invest across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may invest in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes. The sub-fund may also use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. Equitisation).

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards) and on-exchange traded index futures. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		ım Initial Investment inimum Holding
Class X	USD	5.000.000

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Asia ex Japan Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any Asian country (excluding Japan), as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

economic activities in the Asian region (excluding Japan).

As the sub-fund will seek to invest in companies throughout Asia (excluding Japan), these can be both companies with a registered office in, and with an official listing in developed markets such as the Asian OECD countries and also those in emerging Asian countries

Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies. At least 60% of the sub-fund's assets will be invested in securities denominated in currencies other than the Korean Won.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of smaller, less-established companies (being defined as those with a maximum market capitalisation of USD 2 billion at the time of purchase) which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any Asian country (excluding Japan) as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their economic activities in the Asian region (excluding Japan).

As the sub-fund will seek to invest in companies throughout Asia (excluding Japan), these will be both companies with a registered office in and with an official listing in, developed markets such as the Asian OECD countries, and also those in emerging Asian countries.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class X	USD	5,000,000	

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Asia Pacific ex Japan Equity High Dividend

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth and a high level of income by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any Asia Pacific country (excluding Japan) as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their economic activities in the Asia Pacific region (excluding Japan), that offer short-term sustainable dividend yields above the market average and/or the potential for dividend growth above the market average over the short-term.

As the sub-fund will seek to invest in companies throughout the Asia Pacific region (excluding Japan), these can be both companies with a registered office in, and with an official listing in developed markets, and also those in emerging Asian countries.

Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies. At least 60% of the sub-fund's assets will be invested in securities denominated in currencies other than the Korean Won

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S9	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.35	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.30	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for class X shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding	
Class X	USD	5,000,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – BRIC Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term returns from capital growth and income by investing primarily in a concentrated portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR) ("BRIC") as well as those companies with significant operations or carrying out a preponderant part of their business activities in these countries provided that investments in securities dealt in on the Russian markets other than those recognised by the Luxembourg regulator as Regulated Markets are subject to the 10 % limit set forth in restriction 1. a) of Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions".

These companies will be those that at the time of purchase have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of a BRIC country, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in any of the BRIC countries.

Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations. The portfolio will be actively managed, aiming to achieve total returns to investors without reference to market index weightings.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Sub-Investment Advisers

The Investment Adviser has appointed HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo to provide non-binding investment advice in respect of this sub-fund's Brazilian investments. The Investment Adviser has also appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of this sub-fund's Chinese investments and Indian investments.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		X	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0,00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.25***	0.30

Class of Shares*	J**	L**	M**	R**	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.50	1.00	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	0.30	0.40	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Net Asset Value Calculation

Each Dealing Day except Business Days immediately preceding January 1st and December 25th.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class X	USD	5,000,000	

HSBC Global Investment Funds – BRIC Markets

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund will invest primarily in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR) ("BRIC") as well as those companies with significant operations or carrying out a preponderant part of their business activities in these countries.

The sub-fund will strategically allocate between the BRIC countries and the Investment Adviser may over or underallocate as considered appropriate. Within each BRIC country, the sub-fund will seek to track the total return performance of the MSCI US Dollar Brazil, MSCI US Dollar Russia, MSCI US Dollar India and MSCI US Dollar China indices. The indices will typically be dominated by large company stocks in terms of their aggregate weight in the relevant index. Within each country, the Investment Adviser will invest in either all of the stocks in the index or a representative sample.

The sub-fund may acquire local currencies by means of back-to-back loans with highly rated credit institutions.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Class of Shares*	Υ	Z	W
Management Fee (%)	1.50	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.25	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Information".

** Performance fee calculations for the Classes of Shares J, L and M were terminated since 22 January 2010. Classes of Shares L and M are closed to new subscriptions since 1 April 2010 except for shareholders having an existing regular saving plan. Class of Shares J remain open to subscriptions for existing and new shareholders who qualify with the definition of Class J as described in Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

**** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – BRIC Markets Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective From 26 January 2015

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of equities from Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR) (BRIC).

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in equities and equity equivalent securities of companies which are based in Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR) (BRIC) as well as those companies which carry out the larger part of their business activities in these countries.

The sub-fund normally invests across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (excluding other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards) and on-exchange traded index futures. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

Until 25 January 2015

The sub-fund will invest primarily in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR) ("BRIC") as well as those companies with significant operations or carrying out a preponderant part of their business activities in these countries. The sub-fund will strategically allocate between the BRIC countries and the Investment Adviser may over or underallocate between the BRIC countries as considered appropriate. Within each BRIC country, the sub-fund will seek to outperform the total return performance of indices. The indices will typically be dominated by large company stocks in terms of their aggregate weight in the relevant index.

The sub-fund may acquire local currencies by means of back-to-back loans with highly rated credit institutions. The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, equity swaps, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure (up to a maximum of 110% of the sub-fund's net asset value) and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser From 26 January 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Until 25 January 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		num Initial Investment Minimum Holding
Class X	USD	5,000,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – China Consumer Opportunities

Base Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term total return by investing at least 90% of its net assets in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of mid to large cap companies around the world, positioned to benefit from the growing middle class and changing consumer behaviour in China.

The investment universe mainly comprises of mid to large cap global companies with growing revenues in the luxury sector as well as consumer discretionary and staples sectors that have appeal and recognition by Chinese consumers. The reference to "mid to large cap" generally refers to the top 85% of each market's free-float adjusted market capitalisation. Such percentage may differ from market to market and may be subject to change from time to time.

The sub-fund will invest in the consumer discretionary and consumer staples sector which includes, but is not limited to automobiles & components, consumer durables & apparel, consumer services, media, retailing, food & staples retailing, food, beverage & tobacco, household & personal products industries.

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes only.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.25**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S 5	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.40	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.30	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		num Initial Investment Minimum Holding
Class X	USD	2,500,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Emerging Wealth

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any country.

The sub-fund will seek to benefit from the growing consumer economy in Emerging Markets. The sub-fund will seek to invest in companies with registered office in, and/or with an official listing in, developed markets such as OECD countries, and also those in Emerging Markets.

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of market capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		mum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000				

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euroland Equity

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any European Monetary Union (EMU) member country. Initially this will be the 12 member countries but if others join the EMU in the future then investments in these countries may also be considered. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options and swaps (including, but not limited to, credit default swaps) and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments, *inter alia*, for the purposes of managing market exposure and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euroland Equity Smaller Companies

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long-term total return by investing (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in a portfolio of equity and equity equivalent securities of smaller and mid-sized companies which are based in any Eurozone member country.

Smaller and mid-sized companies are those companies whose market capitalisation generally comprises the lowest tier of the aggregate Eurozone market, defined as companies whose market capitalisation falls below EUR 10 billion.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Euroland Growth

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of growth companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any European Monetary Union (EMU) member country. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations. The sub-fund will invest almost exclusively in capitalisations exceeding EUR 1 billion.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, the purposes of managing market exposure and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25
Class of Shares*	J	M***	P	W		
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.25	n/a	0.00		
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	n/a	0.00		

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds – European Equity

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any developed European country. The portfolio is diversified by sector and individual stock exposure.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

^{***} Classes of Shares M are closed to new subscriptions

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a broad range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Frontier Markets

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total returns in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Frontier Markets, as well as those companies with significant operations or carrying out a preponderant part of their business activities in these countries.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

The portfolio will be actively managed, aiming to achieve total returns to investors without reference to market index weightings.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.75	1.25	2.25	1.25	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.25**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Dealing Day

On each Net Asset Value Calculation, as defined below.

Net Asset Value Calculation

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday unless any of these days are not a Business Day or if stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are not open for normal trading.

In derogation to the Section 2.4. "How to sell Shares", (2) "Settlement" of the Prospectus, net redemption proceeds shall be paid in the Base Currency of the sub-fund concerned or Share Class Reference Currency or Dealing Currency (in the absence of Share Class Reference Currency corresponding to the relevant currency) of the Share Class concerned, no later than seven Business Days after the applicable Dealing Day.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		m Initial Investment nimum Holding
Class X	USD	2,500,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Equity

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities issued by companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing in, an Emerging Market, as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their economic activities in Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities listed on a Regulated Market, but may also invest up to 10% of the subfund's net assets in securities listed on markets that are not Regulated Markets. Investment in interest bearing securities is also permitted either for short-term cash surpluses or in response to unfavourable equity market conditions and this is limited to one third of the total assets of the sub-fund. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will invest primarily in larger, established companies.

To the extent that the sub-fund may invest in India, the sub-fund intends to invest part of the net proceeds of the issue of Shares in HSBC GIF Mauritius No.2 Limited, HSBC Centre, 18 Cyber City, Ebene, Mauritius (the "Subsidiary") which is a Mauritian company wholly-owned by the Company. Under normal market conditions, that part of the net proceeds allocated to the Subsidiary will be invested substantially in Indian equities and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of India. The remainder of the net proceeds of the issue of Shares will be invested directly in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Emerging Markets. The investment objectives of the Subsidiary are in line with those of Global Emerging Markets Equity to the extent the sub-fund may invest in India and the Subsidiary will apply the Company's investment restrictions as outlined in this Prospectus.

The Subsidiary was incorporated in Mauritius on 21 November 2007. It is wholly-owned by the Company. It will issue ordinary Shares and redeemable preference Shares only to the Company's Global Emerging Markets Equity sub-fund. The Subsidiary is registered with the Financial Services Commission and has obtained a certificate of tax residency from the Mauritius Revenue Authority in Mauritius (Please refer to Section 2.18. "Taxation").

The directors of the Subsidiary are responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment objectives and policy of the Subsidiary, for monitoring the Subsidiary's investments and performance and for providing advisory services to the exclusive benefit of the Company, including in relation to massive redemptions in the sub-fund.

The Subsidiary has appointed CIM Fund Services (previously known as Multiconsult Limited), Rogers House, 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, to provide administrative services to the Subsidiary in Mauritius, including maintenance of its accounts, books and records. The Subsidiary has appointed KPMG Mauritius of KPMG Centre, 30 St George Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, as auditors of the Subsidiary in Mauritius to perform the auditor's duties required by Mauritius law.

The Subsidiary has appointed the Depositary Bank as custodian over its assets. The Company has appointed HSBC Bank (Mauritius), a bank incorporated under the laws of Mauritius and a wholly owned subsidiary of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and duly licensed to do business in Mauritius, and having an office at HSBC Centre, 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, for the remittance of all cash and currency of the Subsidiary for the purpose of inward investment into India by the Subsidiary and in respect of remittances from such investments.

The Company and the Subsidiary shall issue consolidated accounts.

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	A	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30
	•		•	•	•	

Class of Shares*	J	P***	S1	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	1.00	0.55	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	0.40	0.30	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

*** The Class P Shares are closed to new subscriptions since 22 January 2010 except for shareholders having an existing saving plan.

Net Asset Value Calculation

Each Dealing Day except Business Days immediately preceding January 1st and December 25th.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Equity Climate Change

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return primarily in a concentrated portfolio of equity and equity equivalent securities of companies that aim to be the market-leaders in their respective sectors at managing their businesses in the face of climate change to maintain or enhance their competitive advantage and which have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any country. The sub-fund will seek to invest in companies with registered office in, and/or with an official listing in, developed markets such as OECD countries, and also those in Emerging Markets. There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, equity swaps, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure (up to a maximum of 110% of the sub-fund's net asset value) and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		num Initial Investment //inimum Holding
Class X	USD	5,000,000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Equity Dividend

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for dividend yield whilst also maximising total return in a diversified portfolio of global equities.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in equities and equity equivalent securities of companies located or operating in any country, in both developed markets and Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will invest in a portfolio of companies that offers a dividend yield above the market weighted average.

The sub-fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes only.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Equity Volatility Focused

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of equities.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum 90% of its net assets) in equities and equity equivalent securities of companies domiciled or operating in both developed markets, such as OECD countries, and Emerging Markets. The sub-fund may invest the remaining assets in financial derivative instruments and/or temporarily in fixed income securities, money market instruments, cash instruments and cash.

The sub-fund aims for lower portfolio volatility relative to that of the MSCI All Country World Index through portfolio construction. The sub-fund uses portfolio optimisation to lower overall portfolio volatility by selecting a combination of lower volatility stocks and higher volatility stocks that are less correlated and thereby diversifying the portfolio. The sub-fund may rely on market research and quantitative analysis to estimate individual stock volatility and intra-stock correlation as part of its portfolio optimisation process.

The sub-fund normally invests across a range of market capitalisations without any capitalisation restriction.

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in a combination of participation notes and convertibles.

The sub-fund will invest in China through H shares.

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund may enter into securities lending transactions for up to 30% of its net assets. The sub-fund will not enter into repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes, including cash flow management (i.e. Equitisation) and their primary use will be for hedging purposes.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards) and on-exchange traded index futures. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0,60	0,00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		num Initial Investment //inimum Holding
Class X	USD	5,000,000

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Real Estate Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long term total return by investing in a portfolio of equities of companies related to the real estate industry.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in equities issued by companies related to the real estate industry and/or eligible closed ended Real Estate Investment Trusts ("REITs") or their equivalents. Whilst the sub-fund will primarily invest in developed markets, such as OECD countries, it may also invest in Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund normally invests across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes including cash flow management (i.e. Equitisation) and their primary use will be hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes.

Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards) and on-exchange traded index futures. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, participation notes and convertibles).

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0,00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.25	0.20**	0.25

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Latin American Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term returns from capital growth and income by investing primarily in a concentrated portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any Latin American country, as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their economic activities in Latin America.

The sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in securities listed on a Regulated Market but may also invest up to 10% of the sub-fund's net assets in securities listed on markets that are not Regulated Markets.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0,00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.25***	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	L**	M**	R	S2	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	0.50	1.00	n/a	1.75	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.30	0.40	n/a	0.30	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Net Asset Value Calculation

Each Dealing Day except Business Days immediately preceding January 1st and December 25th.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000			

^{**} Performance fee calculations for Class L and M Shares ceased from 26 October 2009. Classes of Shares L, M are closed to new subscriptions since 1 April 2010 except for shareholders having an existing saving plan.

*** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Brazil Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Brazil, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Brazil

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the MSCI Brazil Index. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 10%, although higher levels are possible. Generally the use of financial derivative instruments may have leverage effect, however, in the case of this sub-fund, under normal market conditions, the use of financial derivative instruments by the sub-fund is not expected to create any leverage on average, although higher levels are possible under certain circumstances, including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.75	0.875	2.25	0.875	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	7	P	S 3	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.55	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.30	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	5,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Chinese Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of the People's Republic of China ("China"), including Hong Kong SAR, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in China.

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	5,000,000				

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Chinese Equity Smaller Companies

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of smaller, less-established companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of the PRC including Hong Kong SAR, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in the PRC and Hong Kong SAR, including but not limited to B-shares (and such other securities as may be available) listed on stock exchanges in the PRC, H-shares and shares of red-chip companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Chinese private enterprises ("P-chip companies") listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, shares of other companies deriving a preponderant part of their income and/or assets from China, and securities linked to the above-mentioned shares and/or assets, all of them being eligible under Article 41 of the 2010 Law and Article 2 of the Grand Ducal Regulation of 8 February 2008 (and any successor legislation that may enter into force in Luxembourg).

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.90	2.00	0.90	0.85	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.75	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	2,500,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Hong Kong Equity

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Hong Kong SAR as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Hong Kong SAR.

Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.35	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	2,500,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Indian Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of India, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in India. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of market capitalisations with a bias to medium and large companies.

The sub-fund intends to invest part or all of the net proceeds of the issue of Shares in HSBC GIF Mauritius Limited, HSBC Centre, 18 Cyber City, Ebene, Mauritius (the "Subsidiary") which is a Mauritian company wholly-owned by the Company. Under normal market conditions, the Subsidiary will invest substantially all of its assets in Indian equities and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of India.

The remainder of the net proceeds of the issue of Shares will be invested directly in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of India. The investment objectives of the Subsidiary are in line with those of Indian Equity and the Subsidiary will apply the Company's investment restrictions as outlined in this Prospectus.

The Subsidiary was incorporated in Mauritius on 3 October 1995. It is wholly-owned by the Company. It will issue ordinary Shares and redeemable preference Shares only to the Company's Indian Equity fund. The Subsidiary is registered with the Mauritius Financial Services Commission and has obtained a certificate of tax residency from the Mauritius Revenue Authority in Mauritius (Please refer to Section 2.18. "Taxation").

The directors of the Subsidiary are responsible, *inter alia*, for establishing the investment objectives and policy of the Subsidiary, for monitoring the Subsidiary's investments and performance and for providing advisory services to the exclusive benefit of the Company, including in relation to massive redemptions in the sub-fund.

The Subsidiary has appointed CIM Fund Services (previously known as Multiconsult Limited), Rogers House, 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, to provide administrative services to the Subsidiary in Mauritius, including maintenance of its accounts, books and records. The Subsidiary has appointed KPMG Mauritius of KPMG Centre, 30 St George Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, as auditors of the Subsidiary in Mauritius to perform the auditor's duties required by Mauritius law.

The Subsidiary has appointed the Depositary Bank as custodian over its assets. The Company has appointed HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited, a bank incorporated under the laws of Mauritius and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and duly licensed to do business in Mauritius, and having an office at HSBC Centre, 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, for the remittance of all cash and currency of the Subsidiary for the purpose of inward investment into India by the Subsidiary and in respect of remittances from such investments.

The Company and the Subsidiary shall issue consolidated accounts.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J**	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	5,000,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Korean Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Korea, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Korea.

There are no capitalisation restrictions and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD 2,500,0				

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Mexico Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return in a portfolio of Mexican equities.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in equities and equity equivalent securities of companies which are based in Mexico as well as those companies which carry out the larger part of their business activities in Mexico.

There are no capitalisation restrictions and the sub-fund will normally invest across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment objective by investing up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (excluding other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (including foreign exchange forwards, non-deliverable forwards and onexchange traded index futures) only for hedging purposes and cash flow management.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - Banco Múltiplo

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser has entered into an agreement with HSBC Global Asset Management (México), S.A, de C.V. to provide non-binding investment advice in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.75	0.875	2.25	0.875	0.75	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.25**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	2,500,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Russia Equity

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a concentrated portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Russia as well as those companies with significant operations or carrying out a preponderant part of their business activities in this country provided that investments in securities dealt in on the Russian markets other than those recognised by the Luxembourg regulator as Regulated Markets are subject to the 10 % limit set forth in restriction 1. a) of Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions".

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.75	0.875	2.25	0.875	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	S7	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.45	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.30	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	2,500,000		

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Singapore Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Singapore as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in

There are no capitalisation restrictions and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	0.40	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		ım Initial Investment nimum Holding
Class X	USD	2.500.000

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Taiwan Equity

Reference Currency

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Taiwan, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in

There are no capitalisation restrictions and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for class X shares

Class		linimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	2,500,000				

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Thai Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Thailand as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Thailand

There are no capitalisation restrictions and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	1	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J*	P	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	2,500,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Turkey Equity

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term returns from capital growth and income by investing primarily in equity securities and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in Turkey, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Turkey, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Turkey.

Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a range of market capitalisations.

For the purpose of efficient portfolio management the sub-fund may also invest in index futures to gain market exposure.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Portfoy Yonetimi A.S.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	X	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.75	0.875	2.25	0.875	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding				
Class X	USD	2,500,000			

HSBC Global Investment Funds – UK Equity

Reference Currency

GBP

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in the UK as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in the UK. The portfolio is diversified by sector and individual stock exposure.

There are no capitalisation restrictions, and it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest across a broad range of capitalisations.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.31	0.31	0.31	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	5,000,000		

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

(4) Index Sub-Funds

The Index sub-funds aim to provide long term total return by tracking as closely as possible any appropriate market index. Such indices are constructed using different economic factors including, but not limited to, market capitalisation and economic value.

Financial derivative instruments may be used for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Index sub-funds may also use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) if restricted to invest in certain component securities of the market index due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Economic Scale Index GEM Equity

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

From 23 January 2015

The sub-fund aims to track the HSBC Economic Scale Index Emerging Markets (the "GEM Index") by investing in securities that are included in the GEM Index.

The sub-fund will use a Full Replication strategy to track the GEM Index. The Investment Adviser may also decide to employ a strategy of Optimised Replication in specific circumstances, including but not limited to, the size of the sub-fund. The Optimised Replication strategy involves the acquisition of a subset of the component securities of the GEM Index and possibly of some securities that are not included in the GEM Index that are designed to help the sub-fund track the performance of the GEM Index.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Where the sub-fund may be restricted to invest in certain component securities of the GEM Index, due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions, the sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) to achieve exposure to such components.

Until 22 January 2015

The sub-fund seeks to track the HSBC Economic Scale Index Emerging Markets (the "GEM Index") by investing in securities that are included in the GEM Index.

The sub-fund will use an optimisation (sampling) strategy to track the GEM Index. The optimisation strategy involves the acquisition of a subset of the component securities of the GEM Index and possibly of some securities that are not included in the GEM Index that are designed to help the sub-fund track the performance of the GEM Index. The Investment Adviser may also decide to employ a fully replicated strategy in specific circumstances, including, but not limited to, the sub-fund reaching an adequate size.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Where the sub-fund may be restricted to invest in certain component securities of the GEM Index, due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions, the sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) to achieve exposure to such components.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.30	0.90	0.30	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J*	Р	Y	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	n/a	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Dealing Day

A Dealing Day is any day which is a Business Day.

However, the Board of Directors may suspend any Dealing Day if the Investment Adviser is not able to re-balance the portfolio before or around the time of the calculation of the Net Asset Value to adjust for client trades because the stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are not open for normal trading

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Net Asset Value Calculation

Requests for the purchase, conversion and redemption of Shares received prior to the dealing cut-off time on a Dealing Day will, if accepted, normally be based on the Net Asset Value per Share which is calculated on the Business Day after the relevant Dealing Day.

The GEM Index

The GEM Index comprises securities of companies that have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in an Emerging Market. The Index comprises around 715 constituents in 20 markets.

Securities in the GEM Index are weighted in proportion of their value added, a measure of a company's economic scale, which is the difference between a company's output (sales) and its inputs (purchases of goods and services from other business).

The GEM Index is calculated and published by Euromoney Indices (the Calculation Agent) on behalf of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited (the Index Sponsor) on a daily basis by using the official closing price in the markets where constituents in the GEM Index are traded. The Calculation Agent is not part of the HSBC Group.

The GEM Index is available on Bloomberg (HESIYEMU) and on the following website (http://www.global.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/investment-capabilities/alternative-indexation).

The Investment Adviser, the Company, the Management Company and the Index Sponsor are part of the HSBC Group. There are rigorous processes in place to manage any conflict of interests. The Investment Adviser, the Management Company and/or the Company are not involved in the calculation and publication of the GEM Index.

Methodology:

The GEM Index methodology uses a screening process to determine whether a security is eligible for inclusion in the index. Such process takes into consideration:

- 1. Minimum free floated market capitalisation: free float is defined as the number of shares outstanding and available for purchase multiplied by the share price.
- 2. Minimum liquidity: this is calculated using the average daily traded value for each security over a period of 6 months.
- Minimum length of trading: this does not apply to securities resulting from a corporate action that were already part of the GEM Index.
- 4. Foreign ownership availability: the GEM Index includes only securities that are available to international investors (i.e. any security restricted to local investors only will be excluded from the index).

The securities selected for inclusion in the index are then weighted in proportion to the issuing company's value added.

Maintenance:

The GEM Index will be reviewed on a semi-annual or more frequent basis.

· Constituent securities of the GEM Index:

As of 3 October 2014, the 10 largest constituents in the GEM Index are:

	Stock name	Exchange	Sector	Weighting %
1	PETROCHINA 'H'	China	Energy	3.6
2	CHINA MOBILE LTD	China	Telecommunication Services	3.3
3	INDUST & COM BK 'H'	China	Banks	2.8
4	CHINA TELECOM 'H'	China	Telecommunication Services	2.1
5	GAZPROM	Russia	Energy	2.0
6	CHINA CONST BK H	China	Banks	2.0
7	CHINA PETROLEUM 'H'	China	Energy	1.7
8	BANK OF CHINA LTD H	China	Banks	1.6
9	SAMSUNG ELECTRONIC	Korea	Semicond Equipt And Products	1.3
10	AMERICA MOVIL L	Mexico	Telecommunication Services	1.3

Tracking Error

The anticipated level of tracking error in normal market conditions is 0.6%.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Economic Scale Index Global Equity*

* Until 16 February 2015, the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Equity. The changes listed in the sections below will become effective on 17 February 2015 or on any other date decided by the Board of Directors and duly notified to shareholders.

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

From 17 February 2015

The sub-fund aims to track the HSBC Economic Scale Index World (the "Global Index") by investing in securities that are included in the Global Index.

The sub-fund will use a Full Replication strategy to track the Global Index. The Investment Adviser may also decide to employ a strategy of Optimised Replication in specific circumstances, including but not limited to where the size of the sub-fund is too small or falls below a threshold and it is not cost effective to adopt a fully replicated strategy or where there are market disruption events (i.e. market access issues). The Optimised Replication strategy involves the acquisition of a subset of the component securities of the Global Index and possibly of some securities that are not included in the Global Index that are designed to help the subfund track the performance of the Global Index.

The sub-fund does not intend to enter into any securities lending, repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions or similar over the counter transactions.

The sub-fund does not intend to use financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purpose. However, the sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Where the sub-fund may be restricted to invest in certain component securities of the Global Index, due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions, the sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) to achieve exposure to such components.

Until 16 February 2015

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of any country.

The sub-fund will seek to invest in companies with their registered office in, and/or with an official listing in, developed markets such as OECD countries, and also those in Emerging Markets. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will invest primarily in larger, established companies.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

From 17 February 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Until 16 February 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

From 17 February 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.30	0.90	0.30	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.30	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Until 16 February 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	0.60	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Net Asset Value Calculation

From 17 February 2015

Requests for the purchase, conversion and redemption of Shares received prior to the dealing cut-off time on a Dealing Day will, if accepted, normally be based on the Net Asset Value per Share which is calculated on the Business Day after the relevant Dealing Day.

The Global Index

The Global Index comprises securities of companies that have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in a developed market anywhere in the world. The Global Index comprises more than 1600 constituents in 25 markets.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Securities in the Global Index are weighted in proportion of their value added, a measure of a company's economic scale, which is the difference between a company's output (sales) and its inputs (purchases of goods and services from other business).

The Global Index is calculated and published by Euromoney Indices (the Calculation Agent) on behalf of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited (the Index Sponsor) on a daily basis by using the official closing price in the markets where constituents in the Global Index are traded. The Calculation Agent is not part of the HSBC Group.

The Global Index is available on Bloomberg (HESIYWDU) and on the following website (http://www.global.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/investment-capabilities/alternative-indexation).

The Investment Adviser, the Company, the Management Company and the Index Sponsor are part of the HSBC Group. There are rigorous processes in place to manage any conflict of interests. The Investment Adviser, the Management Company and/or the Company are not involved in the calculation and publication of the Global Index.

Methodology:

The Global Index methodology uses a screening process to determine whether a security is eligible for inclusion in the index. Such process takes into consideration:

- 1. Minimum free floated market capitalisation: free float is defined as the number of shares outstanding and available for purchase multiplied by the share price.
- 2. Minimum liquidity: this is calculated using the average daily traded value for each security over a period of 6 months.
- 3. Minimum length of trading: this does not apply to securities resulting from a corporate action that were already part of the Global Index.
- 4. Foreign ownership availability: the Global Index includes only securities that are available to international investors (i.e. any security restricted to local investors only will be excluded from the index).

The securities selected for inclusion in the index are then weighted in proportion to the issuing company's value added.

Maintenance:

The Global Index will be reviewed at least on a semi-annual or more frequent basis.

Constituent securities of the Global Index:

As of 3 October 2014, the 10 largest constituents in the Global Index are:

	Stock name	Exchange	Sector	Weighting %
1	WAL-MART STORES	USA	Food And Staples Retailing	2.2
2	EXXON MOBIL CORP	USA	Energy	1.2
3	GEN ELEC CO	USA	Capital Goods	1.2
4	AT&T INC	USA	Telecommunication Services	1.0
5	J P MORGAN CHASE	USA	Banks	0.9
6	WELLS FARGO & CO	USA	Banks	0.7
7	ROYAL DUTCH SHELL A	UK	Energy	0.7
8	INTL BUSINESS MACHIN	USA	Software And Services	0.7
9	NIPPON TEL & TEL	Japan	Telecommunication Services	0.7
10	BANK OF AMERICA	USA	Banks	0.7

Tracking Error

The anticipated level of tracking error in normal market conditions is 0.2%.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Economic Scale Index Japan Equity*

* Until 16 February 2015, the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Japanese Equity. The changes listed in the sections below will become effective on 17 February 2015, or on any other date decided by the Board of Directors and duly notified to shareholders.

Reference Currency

JPY

Investment Objective

From 17 February 2015

The sub-fund aims to track the HSBC Economic Scale Index Japan (the "Japan Index") by investing in securities that are included in the Japan Index.

The sub-fund will use a Full Replication strategy to track the Japan Index. The Investment Adviser may also decide to employ a strategy of Optimised Replication in specific circumstances, including but not limited to where the size of the sub-fund is too small or falls below a threshold and it is not cost effective to adopt a fully replicated strategy or where there are market disruption events (i.e. market access issues). The Optimised Replication strategy involves the acquisition of a subset of the component securities of the Japan Index and possibly of some securities that are not included in the Japan Index that are designed to help the subfund track the performance of the Japan Index.

The sub-fund does not intend to enter into any securities lending, repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions or similar over the counter transactions.

The sub-fund does not intend to use financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purpose. However, the sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Where the sub-fund may be restricted to invest in certain component securities of the Japan Index, due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions, the sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) to achieve exposure to such components.

Until 16 February 2015

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of Japan as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in Japan. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, equity swaps options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure (up to a maximum of 110% of the sub-fund's net asset value) and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

From 17 February 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	I	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.30	0.90	0.30	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	P	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	0.40	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Until 16 February 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3, "Share Class

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class		num Initial Investment Minimum Holding			
Class X	USD	5,000,000			

Net Asset Value Calculation

From 17 February 2015

Requests for the purchase, conversion and redemption of Shares received prior to the dealing cut-off time on a Dealing Day will, if accepted, normally be based on the Net Asset Value per Share which is calculated on the Business Day after the relevant Dealing Day.

The Japan Index

The Japan Index comprises securities of companies that have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in Japan. The Japan Index comprises more than 400 constituents.

Securities in the Japan Index are weighted in proportion to their value added, a measure of a company's economic scale, which is the difference between a company's output (sales) and its inputs (purchases of goods and services from other business).

The Japan Index is calculated and published by Euromoney Indices (the Calculation Agent) on behalf of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited (the Index Sponsor) on a daily basis by using the official closing price in the markets where constituents in the Japan Index are traded. The Calculation Agent is not part of the HSBC Group.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

The Japan Index is available on Bloomberg (HESIYJPJ) and on the following website (http://www.global.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/investment-capabilities/alternative-indexation).

The Investment Adviser, the Company, the Management Company and the Index Sponsor are part of the HSBC Group. There are rigorous processes in place to manage any conflict of interests. The Investment Adviser, the Management Company and/or the Company are not involved in the calculation and publication of the Japan Index.

Methodology:

The Japan Index methodology uses a screening process to determine whether a security is eligible for inclusion in the index. Such process takes into consideration:

- 1. Minimum free floated market capitalisation: free float is defined as the number of shares outstanding and available for purchase multiplied by the share price.
- 2. Minimum liquidity: this is calculated using the average daily traded value for each security over a period of 6 months.
- 3. Minimum length of trading: this does not apply to securities resulting from a corporate action that were already part of the Japan Index.
- 4. Foreign ownership availability: the Japan Index includes only securities that are available to international investors (i.e. any security restricted to local investors only will be excluded from the index).

The securities selected for inclusion in the index are then weighted in proportion to the issuing company's value added.

Maintenance:

The Japan Index will be reviewed at least on a semi-annual or more frequent basis.

· Constituent securities of the Japan Index:

As of 3 October 2014, the 10 largest constituents in the Japan Index are:

	Stock name	Exchange	Sector	Weighting %
1	NIPPON TEL & TEL	Japan	Telecommunication Services	4.7
2	TOYOTA MOTOR	Japan	Automobiles And Components	4.0
3	HITACHI	Japan	Technology Hardware+Equipt	3.5
4	PANASONIC CORP	Japan	Consumer Durables And Apparel	3.4
5	SONY	Japan	Consumer Durables And Apparel	2.1
6	HONDA MOTOR	Japan	Automobiles And Components	2.0
7	CANON	Japan	Technology Hardware+Equipt	1.9
8	NISSAN MOTOR CO	Japan	Automobiles And Components	1.6
9	NTT DOCOMO	Japan	Telecommunication Services	1.6
10	TOSHIBA	Japan	Capital Goods	1.6

Tracking Error

The anticipated level of tracking error in normal market conditions is 0.2%.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Economic Scale Index US Equity*

* Until 15 March 2015, the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – US Equity. The changes listed in the sections below will become effective on 16 March 2015 or on any other date decided by the Board of Directors and duly notified to shareholders.

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

From 16 March 2015

The sub-fund aims to track the HSBC Economic Scale Index United States (the "US Index") by investing in securities that are included in the US Index.

The sub-fund will use a Full Replication strategy to track the US Index. The Investment Adviser may also decide to employ a strategy of Optimised Replication in specific circumstances, including but not limited to where the size of the sub-fund is too small or falls below a threshold and it is not cost effective to adopt a fully replicated strategy or where there are market disruption events (i.e. market access issues). The Optimised Replication strategy involves the acquisition of a subset of the component securities of the US Index and possibly of some securities that are not included in the US Index that are designed to help the sub-fund track the performance of the US Index.

The sub-fund does not intend to enter into any securities lending, repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions or similar over the counter transactions.

The sub-fund does not intend to use financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purpose. However, the sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes and cash flow management (i.e. equitisation). Where the sub-fund may be restricted to invest in certain component securities of the US Index, due to HSBC Group and/or local regulator restrictions, the sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments (e.g. contracts for difference) to achieve exposure to such components.

Until 15 March 2015

The sub-fund seeks long term capital growth by investing primarily in a well diversified portfolio of investments in equity and equity equivalent securities of companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of the US as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in the US. Whilst there are no capitalisation restrictions, it is anticipated that the sub-fund will seek to invest primarily in larger, established companies.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, equity swaps, options and forward currency contracts and in other currency and equity derivatives. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, the purposes of managing market exposure (up to a maximum of 110% of the sub-fund's net asset value) and currency positioning but also to enhance return when the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

From 16 March 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Until 15 March 2015

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Fees and Expenses

From 16 March 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	X	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.30	0.90	0.30	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	Y***	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	0.40	0.15	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.25	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class

Until 15 March 2015

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.50	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	Y***	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.00	0.30	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.25	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3, "Share Class Information".

The US Index

The US Index comprises securities of companies that have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market in the US. The US Index comprises more than 1900 constituents.

Securities in the US Index are weighted in proportion to their value added, a measure of a company's economic scale, which is the difference between a company's output (sales) and its inputs (purchases of goods and services from other business).

The US Index is calculated and published by Euromoney Indices (the Calculation Agent) on behalf of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited (the Index Sponsor) on a daily basis by using the official closing price in the markets where constituents in the US Index are traded. The Calculation Agent is not part of the HSBC Group.

The US Index is available on Bloomberg (HESIYUSU) and on the following website (http://www. global assetmanagement hsbc.com/investment-capabilities/alternative-indexation).

The Investment Adviser, the Company, the Management Company and the Index Sponsor are part of the HSBC Group. There are rigorous processes in place to manage any conflict of interests. The Investment Adviser, the Management Company and/or the Company are not involved in the calculation and publication of the US Index.

Methodology:

The US Index methodology uses a screening process to determine whether a security is eligible for inclusion in the index. Such process takes into consideration:

Minimum free floated market capitalisation: free float is defined as the number of shares outstanding and available for purchase multiplied by the share price.

^{***} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

*** Class Y Shares are closed to new subscriptions since 7 December 2009 except for shareholders having an existing regular saving plan.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

*** Class Y Shares are closed to new subscriptions since 7 December 2009 except for shareholders having an existing regular saving plan.

- Minimum liquidity: this is calculated using the average daily traded value for each security over a period of 6 months. Minimum length of trading: this does not apply to securities resulting from a corporate action that were already part of the US Index.
- Foreign ownership availability: the US Index includes only securities that are available to international investors (i.e. any security restricted to local investors only will be excluded from the index).

The securities selected for inclusion in the index are then weighted in proportion to the issuing company's value added.

Maintenance:

The US Index will be reviewed at least on a semi-annual basis.

Constituent securities of the US Index:

As of 3 October 2014, the 10 largest constituents in the US Index are:

	Stock name	Exchange	Sector	Weighting %
1	WAL-MART STORES	USA	Food And Staples Retailing	3.6
2	EXXON MOBIL CORP	USA	Energy	2.0
3	GEN ELEC CO	USA	Capital Goods	2.0
4	AT&T INC	USA	Telecommunication Services	1.7
5	J P MORGAN CHASE	USA	Banks	1.5
6	INTL BUSINESS MACHIN	USA	Software And Services	1.2
7	WELLS FARGO & CO	USA	Banks	1.2
8	BANK OF AMERICA	USA	Banks	1.1
9	VERIZON COMMS	USA	Telecommunication Services	1.1
10	CHEVRON CORP	USA	Energy	1.0

Tracking Error

The anticipated level of tracking error in normal market conditions is 0.2%.

(5) Other Sub-Funds

These sub-funds distinguish themselves from the Reserve, Bond, Equity and Index sub-funds pursuant to their investment policies as further detailed below.

Financial derivative instruments may be used for hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes. Certain sub-funds in this category may also invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes to the extent provided for in their specific investment objectives.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – GEM Debt Total Return

Reference Currency

LISD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide long total return by investing primarily in a concentrated portfolio of Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities, denominated in local currency or in the currencies of OECD countries. These securities are issued or guaranteed by governments or government agencies or supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or issued by companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets.

The Total Return strategy aims to capture the majority of the upside in the Emerging Market debt universe while limiting the downside risk. The Total Return strategy has a flexible allocation across the full spectrum of Emerging Market debt assets. Returns are generated through duration management, yield curve positioning, currency positioning and the selection of individual securities within the investment universe. By seeking multiple sources of return, the Total Return strategy aims to implement a diversified portfolio generating risk-adjusted returns through various investment cycles and to provide a consistent track record without reference to a benchmark index. However the Total Return strategy does not imply there is any protection of capital or guarantee of a positive return over time. The sub-fund is subject to market risks at any time.

Depending on the Investment Adviser's view as to the attractiveness of the Emerging Markets equity markets, he may invest up to 10% of the sub-fund's net asset value in equity and equity equivalent securities issued by companies which have their registered office in, and with an official listing on a major stock exchange or other Regulated Market of an Emerging Market country, as well as those companies which carry out a preponderant part of their business activities in any Emerging Market country.

Investments in a combination of convertible bonds and options will be subject to a limit of 25% of the sub-fund's net asset value. If the Investment Adviser considers that the Emerging Markets offer insufficient opportunities at any time, he may invest up to 49% of the sub-fund's net asset value in liquid assets.

The portfolio will be actively managed, aiming to achieve total returns to investors without reference to any market index weightings.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps, options, credit default swaps as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, *inter alia*, the purposes of return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 150%, although higher levels are possible including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	J**	L**	M**	N**	R**	S4	W	Z	ZP
Management Fee (%)	0.60	0.50	1.00	0.50	1.50	0.75	0.00	0.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.25	0.25	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.00	0.25	0.25

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Performance Fee

Details on the methodology used for the calculation of performance fees are disclosed in Section 2.10 (3) "Performance Fees".

Applicable Share Classes	Hurdle Rate	Performance Rate
J, L, M, N, R, ZP	5% per annum in the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class	20%

^{**}Performance fee for Class J1, J2, etc., L1, L2, etc., M1, M2, etc. N1, N2, etc., R1, R2, etc., and ZP1, ZP2, etc. as disclosed in the Section 2.10. "Charges and Expenses", may be charged in addition to the management fees.

If a hurdle rate for a currency is not listed above, then for a Share Class in that currency the appropriate overnight index or domestic interest rate for that currency will be used as Hurdle Rate.

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Emerging Markets Multi-Asset

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks long term returns from capital growth and income through a diversified portfolio investing primarily in equity and fixed income securities based or listed in Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will invest in Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income (e.g. bonds) and other similar securities. These securities are issued or guaranteed by governments or government agencies or supranational bodies of Emerging Markets or companies which have their registered office in Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will also invest in equity and equity equivalent securities issued by companies which have their registered office in, and/or with an official listing in, Emerging Markets, as well as companies which carry out a preponderant part of their economic activities in Emerging Markets.

The asset allocation can change over time depending on the Investment Adviser's view on market opportunities.

The sub-fund may also invest in financial derivative instruments such as futures, forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), swaps, options, credit default swaps, as well as other structured products. The sub-fund intends to use such financial derivative instruments for, inter alia, return enhancement, hedging, tax-advantage access to instruments and whenever the Investment Adviser believes the investment in financial derivative instruments will assist the sub-fund in achieving its investment objectives.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using a relative Value-at-Risk approach benchmarked against the following composite benchmark; 70% JP Morgan GBI-EM Global Diversified Composite Unhedged and 30% MSCI Emerging Markets USD. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 150%, although higher levels are possible including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Dynamic category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser will enter into agreements with HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc. and HSBC Global Asset Management (France) to provide discretionary investment management services in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	I	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.70	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.30	0.20**	0.30

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class X Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding USD 2.500.000					
Class X	USD 2,500,					

HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Macro

Reference Currency

EUR

Investment Objective

The sub-fund seeks to achieve stable absolute returns in excess of its benchmark. The targeted returns are intended to be largely de-correlated from those of the major asset classes. To reach this objective the sub-fund's assets will be actively allocated to different asset classes (including cash, equities, bonds and currencies worldwide).

^{*} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Assets are allocated to different strategies so as to deliver a recurrent return through diversification. The share of each strategy in the sub-fund can change over time as a function of perceived market opportunities.

Strategies may exploit differences in expected returns across a given asset class while having little or no exposure to the return of the asset class or adequate time exposure to given asset classes. The Investment Adviser will constantly analyse eligible asset classes to identify new opportunities and develop strategies providing absolute returns.

Exposure to the different asset classes will be mainly achieved by using financial derivative instruments (such as equity futures, bond futures, options, credit default swaps, Total Return Swaps, currency forwards and non-deliverable forwards) through the taking of both long and short positions within the investment universe. Short positions are only taken by using financial derivative instruments.

Risk Management

The global exposure relating to this sub-fund will be calculated using an absolute Value-at-Risk approach. The average leverage of the sub-fund, under normal market conditions, calculated as the sum of the notionals of the financial derivative instruments used, is expected to be 600%, although higher levels are possible including but not limited to, during high levels of market volatility (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to manage the risk of the portfolio) or stability (when financial derivative instruments are generally used to access the relevant markets or securities in a more cost efficient way).

Profile of the Typical Investor

Unconstrained category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Sub-Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser has entered into an agreement with HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited to provide non-binding investment advice in respect of a part of the sub-fund's portfolio.

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	J**	L**	M**	N**	R**	W	Z	ZP**
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.00	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.20	0.30	0.30	0.30	0.00	0.20	0.20

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information"

Performance Fee

Details on the methodology used for the calculation of performance fees are disclosed in Section 2.10 (3) "Performance Fees".

Hurdle Rate	Performance Rate
1 month EURIBOR	20%
1 month CHF LIBOR	
1 month GBP LIBOR	
1 month JPY LIBOR	
1 month NOK LIBOR	
1 month SEK STIBOR*	
1 month USD LIBOR	
	1 month EURIBOR 1 month CHF LIBOR 1 month GBP LIBOR 1 month JPY LIBOR 1 month JPY LIBOR 1 month NOK LIBOR 1 month SEK STIBOR*

^{*}SEK STIBOR from 29 March 2013; SEK LIBOR until 28 March 2013.

If a hurdle rate for a currency is not listed above, then for a Share Class in that currency the appropriate overnight index or domestic interest rate for that currency will be used as Hurdle Rate.

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Global Multi-Asset Income

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund aims to provide income and moderate capital growth through an active asset allocation in a diversified portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as well as money market, cash instruments and other instruments in both developed and Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund invests (normally a minimum of 90% of its net assets) in or gains exposure to:

- fixed income and equity securities directly into markets and/or through investments in UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs, particularly those that offer above average income and/or the potential for sustainable income growth.
- Asset Backed Securities and Mortgage Backed Securities (either directly or through investments in UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs).
- other asset classes including, but not limited to, real estate, private equity, commodities and alternative investment strategies through investments in equity securities, UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

^{**} Performance fee for Class J1, J2, etc., L1, L2, etc., M1, M2, etc., N1, N2, etc., R1, R2, etc. and ZP1, ZP2, etc. as disclosed in the Section 2.10. "Charges and Expenses", may be charged in addition to the management fees. It is not currently the intention of the Management Company to charge a performance fee for Class J Shares in this sub-fund.

The sub-fund invests in Investment Grade and Non-Investment Grade rated fixed income and other similar securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies of developed markets, such as OECD countries, and/or Emerging Markets or by companies which are based in or carry out the larger part of their business activities in a developed or Emerging Markets. These securities are denominated either in US dollar, in other developed market currencies hedged into US dollar, or in local Emerging Market currencies.

The sub-fund invests in equities and equity equivalent securities issued by companies which are based or operating in developed and/or Emerging Markets. The sub-fund normally invests across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may invest up to 100% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds and other sub-funds managed or affiliated with the HSBC Group). The sub-fund's exposure to such holdings will normally be between 50% and 100%.

The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund may achieve its investment policy by investing in financial derivative instruments. However, the sub-fund does not intend to invest in financial derivative instruments extensively for investment purposes and their primary use will be for hedging and efficient portfolio management, including purposes such as cash flow management and tactical asset allocation. Financial derivative instruments that the sub-fund may use include, but are not limited to, foreign exchange forwards (including non-deliverable forwards), exchange traded futures, and credit default swaps. Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, Eligible UCIs).

Financial derivative instruments may also be embedded in other instruments used by the sub-fund (for example, Eligible UCIs).

The sub-fund's primary currency exposure is to the US dollar.

Asset class exposure limits

For the specific groups of asset classes described in the table below, the sub-fund has a total maximum exposure limit as follows:

Asset Class	Maximum exposure
Equity	80%
Fixed income	100%
Asset Backed Securities / Mortgage Backed Securities	20%
Total of the following:	30%
■ Real estate*	15%
Private equity	10%
■ Commodities*	10%
Alternative investment strategies	25%

^{*}The sub-fund will not invest directly in real estate and commodities.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.55	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.20	0.20	0.20	0.20	0.20**	0.20

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	n/a	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Managed Solutions - Asia Focused Conservative

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return through an active asset allocation in a diversified portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as well as money market and cash instruments. The sub-fund will normally invest a minimum of 70 % of its net assets in Asian (including Asia Pacific and excluding Japan) based assets in both fixed income and equity markets including, but not limited to Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) equities, sovereign bonds and corporate bonds. The sub-fund may also invest in other non-Asian based assets such as global emerging market bonds and US Treasuries. Exposure to these assets may be achieved through direct investments and/or investments in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

^{**} This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

The sub-fund will invest in Investment Grade. Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies worldwide or companies in both developed and Emerging Markets. The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund will also invest in equity and equity equivalent securities. Such securities will predominantly be listed securities that are selected based on their market capitalisation, sector, country and stock valuation. There are no capitalisation restrictions, and the sub-fund will normally invest across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund may invest up to 50% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other subfunds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The asset allocation may change over time depending on the Investment Adviser's view on market opportunities.

The sub-fund will normally be exposed to currencies of Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) as well as other emerging and developed market currencies

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes only. However, the sub-fund may also invest in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs which may use financial derivative instruments for investment and/or hedging purposes.

Asset Class Exposure Limits

For the specific group of asset classes described in the table below, the sub-fund will have a total maximum exposure limit as follows:

Asset classes*	Maximum exposure
Equity	30%
Fixed Income, including Bonds, Money Market	100%
instruments, other Fixed Income instruments and Cash	

^{*} Exposure to these asset classes may be achieved through direct investments and/or investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

The Investment Adviser will seek to maximize the portfolio's risk-adjusted expected long term total return by investing in a diversified portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as well as money market and cash instruments. Exposure to each asset class will be determined by taking into account valuation, risk and liquidity. In principle, the Investment Adviser will overweight asset classes with the most attractive growth prospects and underweight those that appear as overvalued, by taking into account the risk profile. Asset allocation to various asset classes will be managed with a view to grow capital throughout a market cycle. The sub-fund will remain diversified to maintain a balance between risk and return. Within each asset class, the Investment Adviser seeks to add further value through security selection.

Investment Restrictions

In addition to the restrictions outlined under Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions", Appendix 3 "Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments" and Appendix 4 "Additional restrictions", the sub-fund's investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs shall be subject to the following restrictions:

- Not more than 10% of the net asset value of the sub-fund may be invested in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs that are non-recognised jurisdiction schemes, as defined under the Hong Kong Code on unit trust and mutual funds (the "Hong Kong Code") and not authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong.
- (2) No investment may be made in any UCITS or other Eligible UCI which invests primarily in investments prohibited by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code; and where the objective of the UCITS or other Eligible UCI is to invest primarily in investments restricted by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code, such holdings may not be in contravention of the relevant restriction.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	0.70	0.50	1.00	0.50	0.45	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	0.80	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class P Shares

Class	N	linimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding	
Class P	USD		100.000

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Managed Solutions - Asia Focused Growth

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for long term total return through an active asset allocation in a diversified portfolio of equity and fixed income securities as well as money market and cash instruments. The sub-fund will normally invest a minimum of 70 % of its net assets in Asian (including Asia Pacific and excluding Japan) based assets in both equity and fixed income markets including, but not limited to Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) equities, sovereign bonds, and corporate bonds. The sub-fund may also invest in other non-Asian based assets such as global developed and emerging market equities, US Treasuries and global closed-ended REITs. Exposure to these assets may be achieved through direct investments and/or investments in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

The sub-fund will invest in equity and equity equivalent securities. Such securities will predominantly be listed securities that are selected based on their market capitalisation, sector, country and stock valuation. There are no capitalisation restrictions, and the sub-fund will normally invest across a range of market capitalisations.

The sub-fund will also invest in Investment Grade, Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies worldwide or companies in both developed and Emerging Markets. The sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in securities issued by or guaranteed by any single sovereign issuer with a credit rating below Investment Grade.

The sub-fund may invest up to 50% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other sub-funds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The asset allocation may change over time depending on the Investment Adviser's view on market opportunities.

The sub-fund will normally be exposed to currencies of Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) countries as well as other emerging and developed market currencies.

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes only. However, the sub-fund may also invest in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs which may use financial derivative instruments for investment and/or hedging purposes.

Asset Class Exposure Limits

For the specific group of asset classes described in the table below, the sub-fund will have a total maximum exposure limit as follows:

Asset classes*	Maximum exposure
Equity	100%
Fixed Income, including Bonds, Money Market	50%
instruments, other Fixed Income instruments and Cash	
Others, including Real Estate	30%

^{*} Exposure to these asset classes may be achieved through direct investments and/or investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

The Investment Adviser will seek to maximize the portfolio's risk-adjusted expected return in investing in a diversified portfolio of bonds, equity and currency. Exposure to each asset class will be determined taking into account valuation, risk and liquidity. In principle, we will mainly focus on overweighing asset classes with the most attractive growth prospects and underweighing those that appear as overvalued. Asset allocation to various asset classes will be managed with a view to grow capital throughout a market cycle. The sub-fund will remain diversified among different asset classes to maintain a balance between risk and return. Within each asset class, the Investment Adviser seeks to add further value through security selection.

Investment Restrictions

In addition to the restrictions outlined under Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions", Appendix 3 "Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments" and Appendix 4 "Additional restrictions", the sub-fund's investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs shall be subject to the following restrictions:

- (1) Not more than 10% of the net asset value of the sub-fund may be invested in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs that are non-recognised jurisdiction schemes, as defined under the Hong Kong Code on unit trust and mutual funds (the "Hong Kong Code") and not authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong.
- (2) No investment may be made in any ÚCITS or other Eligible UCI which invests primarily in investments prohibited by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code; and where the objective of the UCITS or other Eligible UCI is to invest primarily in investments restricted by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code, such holdings may not be in contravention of the relevant limitation.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E		Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.50	0.75	2.00	0.75	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.25	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class ** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class P Shares

Class	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding		
Class P	USD	100,0	00

HSBC Global Investment Funds - Managed Solutions - Asia Focused Income

Reference Currency

USD

Investment Objective

The sub-fund invests for income and moderate capital growth through an active asset allocation in a diversified portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as well as money market and cash instruments. The sub-fund will normally invest a minimum of 70% of its net assets in Asian ex-Japan based income oriented assets in both fixed income and equity markets including, but not limited to corporate bonds, sovereign bonds and higher yielding equities. The sub-fund may also invest in other non-Asian based assets such as global emerging market bonds, US Treasuries and global closed-ended REITs. Exposure to these assets may be achieved through direct investments and/or investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

The sub-fund will invest in Investment Grade, Non-Investment Grade and unrated fixed income securities issued or guaranteed by governments, government agencies or supranational bodies worldwide or companies in both developed and Emerging Markets.

The sub-fund will also invest in equity and equity equivalent securities, particularly those that offer above average dividend yields and/or the potential for sustainable dividend growth.

The sub-fund may invest up to 50% of its net assets in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs (including other subfunds of HSBC Global Investment Funds).

The asset allocation may change over time depending on the Investment Adviser's view on market opportunities.

The sub-fund will normally be exposed to currencies of Asian and Emerging Markets countries and USD.

The sub-fund may use financial derivative instruments for hedging purposes only. However, the sub-fund may also invest in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs which may use financial derivative instruments for investment and/or hedging purposes.

Asset Class Exposure Limits

For the specific group of asset classes described in the table below, the sub-fund will have a total maximum exposure limit as follows:

Asset classes*	Maximum exposure
Equity	50%
Fixed Income, including Bonds, Money Market	100%
instruments, other Fixed Income instruments and Cash	
Others, including Real Estate	30%

^{*} Exposure to these asset classes may be achieved through direct investments and/or investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs.

Asset allocation to different income oriented assets will be managed to maximize the sub-fund's risk-adjusted yield and total return. Exposure to each asset class will be determined based on its level of expected yield premium (i.e. its yield above cash rate), risk and liquidity. In principle, the higher the risk-adjusted yield premium, the higher the exposure to such asset classes. Asset allocation will vary over market cycles as both the yield and risks of different asset classes evolve. The sub-fund will remain diversified among different asset classes to maintain a balance between risk, return and income. Within each asset class, the Investment Adviser seeks to add further value through security selection.

Investment Restrictions

In addition to the restrictions outlined under Appendix 3 "Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments" and Appendix 4 "Additional restrictions", the sub-fund's investment in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs shall be subject to the following restrictions:

- (1) Not more than 10% of the net asset value of the sub-fund may be invested in units or shares of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs that are non-recognised jurisdiction schemes, as defined under the Hong Kong Code on unit trust and mutual funds (the "Hong Kong Code") and not authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission.
- (2) No investment may be made in any UCITS or other Eligible UCI which invests primarily in investments prohibited by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code; and where the objective of the UCITS or other Eligible UCI is to invest primarily in investments restricted by Chapter 7 of the Hong Kong Code, such holdings may not be in contravention of the relevant limitation.

Risk Management

The commitment approach is used to measure and monitor the level of risk for this sub-fund.

Profile of the Typical Investor

Core Plus category

Investment Adviser

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Fees and Expenses

Class of Shares*	Α	В	E	ı	Х	Z
Management Fee (%)	1.25	0.625	1.55	0.625	0.60	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	0.35	0.35	0.35	0.25	0.20**	0.25

Class of Shares*	J	Р	W
Management Fee (%)	n/a	1.00	0.00
Operating, Administrative and Servicing Expenses (%)	n/a	0.35	0.00

^{*} For further details regarding the Dealing Currencies or Share Class Reference Currencies of the different Class of Shares, please refer to Section 1.3. "Share Class Information".

** This percentage is a maximum. The amount paid will be disclosed in the semi-annual and annual reports of the Company.

Minimum Investment / Minimum Holding for Class P Shares

Class	ı	Minimum Initial Investment Minimum Holding
Class P	USD	100.000

3.3. Sub-Fund specific risk considerations

General risk considerations are defined in Section 1.4. "General Risk Considerations".

The following risk factors do not purport to be a complete explanation of the risks involved in investing in the Shares. Prospective investors should read the entire Prospectus and Key Investor Information Documents and consult with their legal, tax and financial advisors before making any decision to invest in any sub-fund.

(1) Chinese Equity

Asia ex Japan Equity, Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies, Asia Pacific ex Japan Equity High Dividend, BRIC Equity, BRIC Markets, BRIC Markets Equity, China Consumer Opportunities, Chinese Equity, Chinese Equity Smaller Companies, Global Emerging Markets Equity, Global Equity Volatility Focused, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Conservative, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Growth and Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Income.

Investors should be aware of a number of special risk factors attendant on investment in Emerging Markets generally and the markets in China in particular.

- (a) Emerging Markets can be significantly more volatile than developed markets, so that the price of Shares may be subject to large fluctuations. The sub-fund's investments are subject to changes in regulations and tax policies going forward as China has now joined the WTO and engages in continuing market liberalisation.
- (b) The Chinese currency, the Renminbi, is not a freely convertible currency. The State Council's securities regulation body, the CSRC, also supervises the two official stock exchanges in China (the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Securities Exchange) on which shares of Chinese issuers are listed in two categories, of which the "B" shares are quoted and traded in foreign currencies (currently Hong Kong Dollars and US dollars) and are available to foreign investors.
- (c) The China "B" share market is relatively illiquid so that the choice of investments will be limited by comparison with that of major international stock exchanges.
- (d) The sub-funds will invest directly in securities quoted on the regulated Stock Exchanges in China and also in securities of companies listed in other Stock Exchanges which have substantial business or investment links in China. For this purpose, Chinese Equity will generally only invest in companies listed outside China where those companies are owned or controlled by Chinese interests, or where at least 40% of the earnings, production facilities, turnover, assets or investments of such companies are based in or derived from China.

The sub-funds may invest in equity markets in China other than the Shanghai and Shenzhen exchanges once such markets have been established and approved by the authorities in China.

(2) China

Asia ex Japan Equity, Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies, Asia Pacific ex Japan Equity High Dividend, BRIC Equity, BRIC Markets, BRIC Markets Equity, China Consumer Opportunities, Chinese Equity, Chinese Equity Smaller Companies, Global Emerging Markets Equity, Global Equity Volatility Focused, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Conservative, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Growth, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Income.

(a) Chinese markets risk

Investing in emerging markets such as the PRC subjects the sub-fund to a higher level of market risk than investments in a developed country. This is due to, among other things, greater market volatility, lower trading volume, political and economic instability, settlement risk, greater risk of market shut down and more governmental limitations on foreign investment than those typically found in developed markets.

Investors should be aware that for more than 50 years, the Chinese government has adopted a planned economic system. Since 1978, the Chinese government has implemented economic reform measures which emphasise decentralisation and the utilisation of market forces in the development of the Chinese economy. Such reforms have resulted in significant economic growth and social progress.

On 21 July 2005, the PRC government introduced a managed floating exchange rate system to allow the value of RMB to fluctuate within a regulated band based on market supply and demand and by reference to a basket of currencies. There can be no assurance that such exchange rate will not fluctuate widely against the United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars or any other foreign currency in the future. Any appreciation of RMB will increase the value of any dividends that the sub-fund may receive from its PRC investments and the value of investments, which will be reported in currency, and vice versa.

Many of the economic reforms in China are unprecedented or experimental and are subject to adjustment and modification, and such adjustment and modification may not always have a positive effect on investment in the companies in China.

The national regulatory and legal framework for capital markets and joint stock companies in China is not well developed when compared with those of developed countries.

Both the Shanghai and Shenzhen securities markets are in the process of development and change. This may lead to trading volatility, difficulty in the settlement and recording of transactions and difficulty in interpreting and applying the relevant regulations.

Under the prevailing tax policy in China, there are certain tax incentives available to foreign investment. There can be no assurance, however, that the aforesaid tax incentives will not be abolished in the future.

Investments in China will be sensitive to any significant change in political, social or economic policy in China. Such sensitivity may, for the reasons specified above, adversely affect the capital growth and thus the performance of these investments.

The Chinese government's control of currency conversion and future movements in exchange rates may adversely affect the operations and financial results of the companies invested in by the sub-funds, and the abilities of such companies to make payment of dividends declared in respect of the shares in the China companies.

(b) Accounting and reporting standards

PRC companies are required to follow PRC accounting standards and practice which, to a certain extent, follow international accounting standards to certain extent. However, the accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards and practices applicable to PRC companies may be less rigorous, and there may be significant differences between financial statements prepared by accountants following the PRC accounting standards and practice and those prepared in accordance with international accounting standards. For example, there are differences in the valuation methods of properties and assets and in the requirements for disclosure of information to investors which may result in non-disclosure of certain material information of the investee entities the Investment Adviser invest in for the account of the sub-fund.

As the disclosure and regulatory standards in China are less stringent than in more developed markets, there might be substantially less publicly available information about Chinese issuers. Therefore, disclosure of certain material information may not be made, and less information may be available to the Investment Adviser and other investors.

(c) Taxation in the PRC

The Investment Adviser may decide to make or not to make any tax provisions in respect of the sub-fund. Even if tax provisions are made, such provisions may be more than or less than the sub-fund's actual PRC tax liabilities and it is possible that such tax provisions made by the Investment Adviser may be insufficient. In case of a difference between the sub-fund's provision for taxes and its actual PRC tax liabilities, the relevant amounts shall be credited to or debited from the sub-fund's assets (as the case may be). As a result, the income from, and/or the performance of, the sub-fund may/may not be adversely affected and the impact/degree of impact on individual shareholders of the sub-fund may vary, depending on factors such as the level of the sub-fund's provision for taxes (if any) and the amount of the difference at the relevant time and when the relevant shareholders subscribed for and/or redeemed their Shares in the sub-fund.

Any tax provision, if made by the Investment adviser, will be reflected in the net asset value of the relevant sub-fund at the time of debit or refund and thus will only impact on Shares which remain in such sub-fund at that time. Shares which are redeemed prior to such time will not be affected by any debit of insufficient tax provisions. Likewise, such Shares will not benefit from any refund of excess tax provisions. Investors should note that no shareholders who have redeemed their Shares in the sub-fund before the distribution of any excess provision shall be entitled to claim in whatsoever form any part of the withholding amounts distributed to the sub-fund, which amount would be reflected in the value of Shares in the sub-fund. In the event the Investment Adviser considers it necessary to adopt any tax provision (whether in respect of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law or any other applicable tax regulation/laws in the PRC) on a retrospective basis, the prevailing and/or future net asset value of the sub-fund may be negatively impacted.

The Investment Adviser will review and make adjustments to its tax provision policy as and when it considers necessary from time to time and as soon as practicable upon issuance of further notices or clarification issued by the PRC tax authority in respect of the application of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax and/or any other applicable tax regulations/laws and the respective implementation rules.

There is a possibility that the current tax laws, rules, regulations and practice in mainland China and/or the current interpretation or understanding thereof may change in the future and such change(s) may have retrospective effect. The subfund could become subject to additional taxation that is not anticipated as at the date hereof or when the relevant investments are made, valued or disposed of. Any of those changes may reduce the income from, and/or the value of, the relevant investments in the sub-fund.

(d) RMB Currency and Exchange risk

Investors should be aware of the fact that the Chinese Renminbi (RMB) is subject to a managed floating exchange rate based on market supply and demand with reference to a basket of currencies. Currently, the RMB is traded in two markets: one in Mainland China, and one outside Mainland China (primarily in Hong Kong). The RMB traded in Mainland China is not freely convertible and is subject to exchange controls and certain requirements by the government of Mainland China. The RMB traded outside Mainland China, on the other hand, is freely accessible to any person or entity for any purpose.

In calculating the value of the investments denominated in RMB, the Investment Adviser will normally apply the exchange rate for RMB traded outside Mainland China. This rate may be at a premium or discount to the exchange rate for RMB traded in Mainland China and there may be significant bid and offer spreads.

In addition, there may be liquidity risk associated with RMB products, especially if such investments may not have an active secondary market and their prices subject to significant bid and offer spread.

(3) China Consumer Opportunities Concentration Risk

The portfolio of China Consumer Opportunities may have a high concentration in companies with growing revenues in the luxury and consumer sectors that have appeal to consumers in China; a decrease in purchasing power of the consumers in China may negatively impact the value of the assets of the sub-fund.

(4) Sector risk

BRIC Equity, BRIC Markets, BRIC Markets Equity and Russia Equity.

The portfolios of the sub-funds listed above, may have a high concentration in the natural resources sector. Because these investments are limited to a relatively narrow segment of the economy, the sub-funds" investments are not as diversified as most mutual funds. This means that these sub-funds tend to be more volatile than other mutual funds and their portfolio values

can increase or decrease more rapidly. The performance of each sub-fund may differ in direction and degree from that of the overall stock market.

(5) Small capitalisation

Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies, Chinese Equity Smaller Companies and Euroland Equity Smaller Companies.

The investments of the sub-funds listed above, which include smaller capitalisation companies, may involve greater risk than sub-funds investing in larger, more established companies. For example, small capitalisation companies may have limited product lines, markets and financial or managerial resources. As a result, price movements in securities of smaller capitalisation companies may be more volatile.

Transaction costs in securities of smaller capitalisation companies can be higher than those of larger capitalisation companies and there may be less liquidity.

(6) Mauritius subsidiary

Global Emerging Markets Equity and India Equity.

By investing through the Mauritius subsidiary, the sub-fund to date has benefited from the double tax treaty concluded between Mauritius and India, as described more fully in Section 2.18. "Taxation". The Indian Budget announced on 16 March 2012 introduced provisions for a GAAR to be effective from 1 April 2012. The implementation of the GAAR has now been deferred until 1 April 2016. A GAAR gives considerable discretion to the tax authorities and may be used to seek to deny treaty benefits to foreign investors. Such actions could result in a significant financial cost for investors, as short term gains (those held for less than 1 year) will become taxable in India.

In addition, applicable law in Mauritius asserts the total separation between a subsidiary and the sub-fund in cases involving the subsidiary's commitments toward third parties. In exceptional cases, however, there is a risk that the sub-fund could be held responsible for such commitments.

(7) Asset Backed Securities and Mortgage Backed Securities

Euro Credit Bond Total Return, Global Asset-Backed Bond, Global Asset-Backed High Yield Bond, Global Bond, Global Bond, Global Bond, Global Return, Global Corporate Bond, Global Government Bond, Global High Income Bond, Global High Yield Bond, Global Multi-Asset Income, Global Short Duration Bond, Global Short Duration High Yield Bond and US Dollar Bond

The sub-funds listed above may invest their net assets in Asset Backed Securities (ABS) and/or Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) as follows:

- Global Asset-Backed Bond, Global Asset-Backed High Yield Bond: up to 100%
- US Dollar Bond: up to 50%
- Global Bond: up to 30%
- Global Bond Total Return, Global Corporate Bond, Global High Income Bond, Global Multi-Asset Income, Global Short Duration High Yield Bond: up to 20%
- Euro Credit Bond Total Return, Global Government Bond, Global High Yield Bond, Global Short Duration Bond: up to 10%

In general, ABS and MBS are debt securities with interest and capital payments backed by a pool of financial assets such as mortgages and loans, with collateral backing often provided by physical assets such as residential or commercial property. Some ABS is supported by unsecured loan cash flows without physical asset backing. ABS and MBS securities are subject to risks detailed in Section 1.4. "General Risk Considerations", including market risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, counterparty risk, non-investment grade credit risk and liquidity risk, in addition to the further risks detailed below.

MBS generally refers to mortgage securities issued by US government-sponsored enterprises such as the Federal Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac). ABS usually refers to privately sponsored asset backed securities. The main categories are Residential Mortgage Backed Securities (RMBS), Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities (CMBS), Collateralised Loan Obligations (CLO) and Consumer ABS (for example credit cards, auto loans and student debt). In a typical ABS deal, the securities are separated into tranches which have different rights. The senior tranches usually receive the loan repayments first and the junior tranches absorb the first losses. To compensate for the higher capital risk, the junior holders are paid a higher rate of interest than the senior note holders.

RMBS represent interests in pools of residential mortgage loans secured by the underlying residential property. Some loans may be prepaid at any time. The collateral underlying CMBS generally consists of mortgage loans secured by income-producing property, such as shopping centres, office buildings, industrial or warehouse properties, hotels, rental apartments, nursing homes, senior living centres and self-storage properties.

The investment characteristics of MBS and ABS differ from traditional debt securities. The major difference is that the principal is often paid in stages and may be fully repaid at any time because of the terms of the underlying loans. This variability in timing of cash flows makes estimates of future asset yield and weighted average life uncertain.

The broad ABS market also includes synthetic CDOs. These usually have shorter maturities, typically five years, and are referenced to debt obligations or other structured finance securities.

(a) Prepayment risk

The frequency at which prepayments occur on loans underlying ABS will be affected by a variety of factors including interest rates as well as economic, demographic, tax, social, legal and other factors. Generally, fixed rate mortgage obligors often prepay their mortgage loans when prevailing mortgage rates fall below the interest rates on their mortgage loans subject to mortgage finance availability and no material change in the value of the property or the borrowers credit worthiness.

(b) Subordinated risk

Investments in subordinated ABS involve greater risk of default and loss than the senior classes of the issue or series. ABS deals are structured into tranches such that holders of the most junior securities absorb losses before more senior tranches. When losses have been absorbed by the most junior tranche, the next most junior tranche will absorb subsequent losses. Investors in junior tranches can carry high capital risk and may face a complete loss.

(c) Capital Value risk

The rate of defaults and losses on residential mortgage loans will be affected by a number of factors, including general economic conditions and those arising in the property location, the borrower's equity in the mortgaged property and the financial circumstances of the borrower. If a residential mortgage loan is in default, foreclosure of such residential mortgage loan may be a lengthy and difficult process, and may involve significant expenses. Furthermore, the market for defaulted residential mortgage loans or foreclosed properties may be very limited.

Most commercial mortgage loans underlying MBS are full recourse obligations of the borrower which is usually a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). If borrowers are not able or willing to refinance or dispose of encumbered property to pay the principal and interest owed on such mortgage loans, payments on the subordinated classes of the related MBS are likely to be adversely affected. The ultimate extent of the loss, if any, to the subordinated classes of MBS may only be determined after a negotiated discounted settlement, restructuring or sale of the mortgage note, or the foreclosure (or deed in lieu of foreclosure) of the mortgage encumbering the property and subsequent liquidation of the property. Foreclosure can be costly and delayed by litigation and/or bankruptcy. Factors such as the property's location, the legal status of title to the property, its physical condition and financial performance, environmental risks, and governmental disclosure requirements with respect to the condition of the property may make a third party unwilling to purchase the property at a foreclosure sale or to pay a price sufficient to satisfy the obligations with respect to the related MBS. Revenues from the assets underlying such MBS may be retained by the borrower and the return on investment may be used to make payments to others, maintain insurance coverage, pay taxes or pay maintenance costs. Such diverted revenue is generally not recoverable without a court-appointed receiver to control collateral cash flow.

Where a loan originator has assigned specific loans to an ABS structure and the originator has faced financial difficulties, creditors of the originator have sometimes challenged the validity of the assigned loans. Such challenges can weaken the asset backing for ABS securities.

(d) Economic risk

Performance of a commercial mortgage loan depends primarily on the net income generated by the underlying mortgaged property. The market value of a commercial property similarly depends on its income-generating ability. As a result, income generation will affect both the likelihood of default and the severity of losses with respect to a commercial mortgage loan. Any decrease in income or value of the commercial real estate underlying an issue of CMBS could result in cash flow delays and losses on the related issue of CMBS.

The value of the real estate which underlies mortgage loans is subject to market conditions. Changes in the real estate market may adversely affect the value of the collateral and thereby lower the value to be derived from a liquidation. In addition, adverse changes in the real estate market increase the probability of default, as the incentive of the borrower to retain equity in the property declines.

(e) Re-financing risk

Mortgage loans on commercial and residential properties often are structured so that a substantial portion of the loan principal is not amortised over the loan term but is payable at maturity and repayment of the loan principal thus often depends upon the future availability of real estate financing from the existing or an alternative lender and/or upon the current value and saleability of the real estate. Therefore, the unavailability of real estate financing may lead to default.

(8) Real Estate

Global Multi-Asset Income, Global Real Estate Equity, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Growth and Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Income

Investments in equity securities issued by companies or in shares/units of REITs/units of real estate collective investment scheme which are principally engaged in the business of real estate will subject the strategy to risks associated with the direct ownership of real estate. These risks include, among others, possible declines in the value of real estate. Risks related to general and local economic conditions, possible lack of availability of mortgage funds, overbuilding, extended vacancies of properties, increases in competition, real estate taxes and transaction, operating and foreclosure expenses, changes in zoning laws, costs resulting from the clean-up of, and liability to third parties for damages resulting from, environmental problems; casualty or condemnation losses, uninsured damages from natural disasters and acts of terrorism, limitations on and variations in rents; and changes in interest rates. The strategy may invest in securities of small to mid-size companies which may trade in lower volumes and be less liquid than the securities of larger, more established companies or other collective investment schemes. There are therefore risks of fluctuations in value due to the greater potential volatility in their share prices.

Exposure to real estate will normally be achieved by investment in either closed-ended REITs or in other open or closed-ended collective investment schemes (including other UCITS).

(9) REITs

Global Multi-Asset Income, Global Real Estate Equity, Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Growth and Managed Solutions – Asia Focused Income

Investors should note that insofar as the sub-fund directly invests in REITs, any dividend policy or dividend payout at the sub-fund level may not be representative of the dividend policy or dividend payout of the relevant underlying REIT.

The legal structure of a REIT, its investment restrictions and the regulatory and taxation regimes to which it is subject will differ depending on the jurisdiction in which it is established.

(10) India

India Fixed Income

(a) Investing in Indian Securities

In order to invest in debt securities of the Indian Government and/or Indian companies, the sub-fund must hold a Foreign Institutional Investor (FII)/sub-account license, which is issued by the SEBI. The total outstanding FII investments in Government bonds and in corporate bonds cannot exceed the limits as allotted by SEBI.

Such limits are allocated to FII license holders through auction processes and/or applications submitted directly to regulators. The sub-fund may not be granted any quota to invest in such markets. In this case, the sub-fund may be closed to new subscriptions as the monies from new subscriptions could not be invested in such markets by the Investment Adviser.

Simultaneously, there are periods of time once allocations are made available for FII license/sub-account holders to make the investment effective. These depend on the type of security (government or corporate) and the method used to obtain such allocation (auction process or application). Limits that had been allocated and not made effective within such periods may be lost

(b) Loss of FII Registration

The sub-fund will seek to register with SEBI as a sub-account of the Company, which is in turn registered as an FII. The investment by the sub-fund is dependent on the continued registration of the Company as an FII and the sub-fund as its sub-account. In the event the registration of the Company as an FII or the sub-fund as a sub-account is terminated or is not renewed, the sub-fund could potentially be forced to redeem the investments held in the sub-fund, and such forced redemption could adversely affect the returns to the shareholders, unless the approval of SEBI has been obtained to transfer the sub-account to another FII or the sub-fund registers itself with SEBI as an FII.

(c) Limitations on Investments

The sub-fund's debt investments cannot exceed the limits as allotted by SEBI. FII's cannot explicitly invest in INR denominated Certificate of Deposits and Fixed Deposits issued by banks in India.

(d) Indian Capital Gains Tax and Taxation of Interest Income

Under current laws and regulations, short term capital gains are taxed at 30% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) and long term capital gains are taxed at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess).

Interest income arising from Indian securities will be subject to income tax at the rate of 20% on gross interest (plus applicable surcharge and education cess).

India domestic tax laws are currently under review and may be subject to change.

The interpretation and application of tax law by the Indian tax authorities may be subject to retrospective change. In such circumstances the net asset value of India invested funds may suffer a drop in value and shareholders in these funds may suffer a loss.

(11) Index Sub-Funds

Economic Scale Index GEM Equity, Economic Scale Index Global Equity, Economic Scale Index Japan Equity and Economic Scale Index US Equity

(a) Index replication risk

As the sub-fund will seek to track (replicate) an index, by investing directly in the components of the index, any fluctuation/volatility of the index may result in increases/decreases of the sub-fund valuation. The Investment Adviser will not seek to select stocks or take defensive positions in declining markets. Therefore, should the Index fall, index sub-funds tracking such index would also fall and investors may lose a significant part of their investments.

(b) Tracking Error

There is no guarantee that the investment objective of any sub-fund will be achieved. In particular, no financial instrument enables the returns of any Index to be reproduced exactly. Changes in the investments of any sub-fund and re-weightings of the relevant Index may give rise to various transaction costs (including in relation to the settlement of foreign currency transactions), operating expenses, custody costs, taxes, corporate actions, cash flows into and out of a sub-fund from dividend/reinvestments or inefficiencies which may adversely impact a sub-fund's tracking of the performance of an Index. Furthermore, the total return on investment in the Shares of a sub-fund will be reduced by certain costs and expenses which are not taken into account in the calculation of the applicable Index. Moreover, in the event of the temporary suspension or

interruption of trading in the Investments comprising the Index, or of market disruptions, rebalancing a sub-fund's investment portfolio may not be possible and may result in deviations from the returns of the Index.

(c) Concentration risk

An Index may be concentrated in companies operating in certain markets or securities listed in certain stock exchanges; therefore any situation impacting such markets or stock exchanges may also impact the index and the sub-fund performance.

(d) Index calculation risk

The Index Sponsor has entered into an agreement with Euromoney Indices (the Calculation Agent). Under such agreement the Calculation Agent. will calculate the index on behalf of the Index Sponsor which will be used by the Investment Adviser to manage the sub-funds. The agreement is subject to an annual review.

The sub-fund may be terminated if the index ceases to be compiled or published and there is no replacement Index using the same or substantially similar formula for the method of calculation as used in calculating the relevant Index.

The index is calculated by the Calculation Agent on behalf of the Index Sponsor without any consideration to the performance of the sub-funds. The Calculation Agent and the Index Sponsor make no representation or warranty, express or implied, to investors in the sub-funds or other persons regarding the advisability of investing in the sub-funds. There is no assurance that the Calculation Agent will compile the Index accurately, or that the Index will be determined, composed or calculated accurately. In addition, the process and the basis of computing and compiling the Index and any of its related formulae, constituent companies and factors may at any time be changed or altered without notice.

(e) Composition of the Index risk

The composition of the index may change (e.g. securities delisted). The Investment Adviser will seek to implement any change to the index composition but there is no guarantee the sub-fund will accurately reflect the composition of the index at any given time.

(f) Definitions

<u>Full Replication</u>: where a sub-fund buys all, or nearly all, of the constituents (or equivalent instruments) of the tracked index, generally in the same proportion in which they are included in the tracked index.

Optimised Replication: No assurance can be given that the strategy of Optimised Replication will achieve its objective of replicating the performance of the Index as the strategy reflects only a representative sample of securities that the Index represents. As a result of employing the strategy of Optimised Replication the sub-fund could be exposed to losses disproportionate to market declines in the Index, if there are disproportionately greater adverse price movements in the specific securities held by the sub-fund. Whilst Optimised Replication may therefore result in higher tracking error, the sub-fund is likely to incur lower costs due to the lower number of securities held.

(g) Factors which may impact the ability of a sub-fund to track an index

- Transaction costs incurred as a result of an index rebalance: in order to maintain the proportion of each security aligned with
 the tracked index, a sub-fund will need to buy/sell securities whenever the tracked index re-balances/changes its
 components. These will include any transaction taxes.
- Custody costs: these are incurred by a sub-fund for holding the securities it invests in. Custody costs vary by market.
- Dividend/reinvestments: a sub-fund may receive dividends as a result of owning stocks. This will usually be paid in cash. A sub-fund will usually retain a proportion of cash to be able to deal with day-to-day sub-fund management operations to minimise the need to sell any securities. Dividends may sometimes be kept in cash until enough payments have accumulated in order to reinvest in the sub-fund's securities.
- Taxes: a sub-fund may be liable for taxes such as withholding tax or capital gains tax.
- Currency costs: foreign exchange transactions are generally executed against a determined index benchmark (e.g. Reuters). In some instances, a sub-fund may not be able to execute FX transactions at the same point due to specific currency restrictions by some markets (e.g. Emerging Markets countries).
- Corporate actions: in some instances, the treatment of specific corporate actions (e.g. dividend payments) by the index may
 differ from how the fund treats such corporate action and calculates its NAV.

(12) Reserve Sub-Funds

Euro Reserve

In certain exceptional market and/or economic conditions such as extremely low short term money market interest rates or negative short term money market interest rates, the Net Asset Value (NAV) of the sub-fund could move marginally lower for a short period of time or possibly longer. In this case, the yield of the sub-fund may no longer be sufficient to cover its management fee.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Glossary

1915 Law Luxembourg Law of 10 August 1915 relating to Commercial Companies, as amended.

2010 Law Luxembourg Law of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment, implementing

UCITS IV directive 2009/65/EC into the Luxembourg law.

Administration Agent HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. until 14 November 2014; HSBC Bank Plc,

Luxembourg Branch from 15 November 2014..

Application Form The application form available from distributors and the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

Articles of Incorporation The articles of incorporation of the Company, as amended from time to time.

ASEAN The Association of Southeast Asian Nations.

Board of Directors The board of directors of the Company.

BRIC Brazil, Russia, India and China (including Hong Kong SAR).

Business Day A day on which banks are open for normal banking business in Luxembourg.

CHF Swiss France

China or PRC The People's Republic of China, but for the purposes of the sub-fund's investment objective and

investment approach only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and

Taiwan.

Class(es) of Shares/ Share Class(es)/ Class(es) Pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may decide to issue, within each sub-fund, separate classes of Shares (hereinafter referred to as a "Share Class" or "Class of Shares" or "Class", as appropriate) whose assets will be commonly invested but where a specific initial or redemption charge structure, fee structure, minimum subscription amount, currency, dividend policy or other feature may be applied. If different Classes are issued within a sub-fund, the details of each Class are described under Section "1.3. Share Class Information".

Company HSBC Global Investment Funds.

Connected Person In relation to a company means:

 any person or company beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the ordinary share capital of that company or able to exercise directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the total votes in that company; or

 any person or company controlled by a person who or which meets one or both of the descriptions given in (a); or

any member of the group of which that company forms part; or

- any director or officer of that company or of any of its connected persons as defined in

(a), (b) or (c).

CSRC China Securities Regulatory Commission.

CSSF Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier, the Luxembourg supervisory authority.

Dealing Day

Unless otherwise provided in Section 3. "Sub-Fund Information" in relation to the "Net Asset

Value Calculation" for a specific sub-fund, Dealing Day means any Business Day (other than days during a period of suspension of dealing in Shares) and which is also for each sub-fund, a day where stock exchanges and Regulated Markets in countries where the sub-fund is materially invested are open for normal trading.

The Business Days which are not Dealing Days will be listed in the annual report and semiannual reports and available at the registered office of the Company. Any amendments to such lists are also available at the registered office of the Company.

Depositary Bank HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. until 14 November 2014; HSBC Bank Plc,

Luxembourg Branch from 15 November 2014.

distributors Entities listed in Appendix 6 "Directory".

Duration The weighted average maturity of the present value of all future cash flows of a security.

Eligible State Any Member State of the EU or any other state in Eastern and Western Europe, Asia, Africa,

Australia, North America, South America and Oceania.

Emerging Markets Emerging markets are those markets in countries that are not amongst the following groups of

industrialised countries: United States and Canada, Switzerland and Members of the European Economic Area, Japan, Australia and New Zealand, and may include those countries in the

preceding groups that do not have fully developed financial markets.

EquitisationA process of simulating equity exposure within an investment portfolio using derivatives. This is often done with cash holdings so as to maximise the investment opportunity within a portfolio as

cash typically provides lower returns than equities. Investment of idle cash balances in equity-

based instruments, such as index futures or exchange-traded funds, according to mandated instructions. Equity risk is taken against idle cash balances, with the prospect of generating additional gains from long-term growth in equity markets.

ΕU European Union.

EUR Furo

FII Foreign Institutional Investor, as defined in the Regulations issued by the Securities and

Exchange Board of India.

Include but are not limited to the following countries: Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Botswana, Frontier Markets

Bulgaria, Cambodia, Colombia, Croatia, Cyprus, Ecuador, Egypt, Estonia, Georgia, Ghana, Indonesia, Ivory Coast, Jamaica, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Kuwait, Latvia, Lebanon, Lithuania, Morocco, Namibia, Nigeria, Oman, Pakistan, Panama, Peru, Philippines, Qatar, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Sri Lanka, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, United Arab Emirates,

Venezuela, Vietnam, Zambia and Zimbabwe.

GBP Pound Sterling.

GEM Global Emerging Markets.

Global Distributor HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A., acting as global distributor of the Company.

G20 The informal group of twenty finance ministers and central bank governors from twenty major

economies: Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, France, Germany, India, Indonesia, Italy, Japan, Mexico, Russia, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, South Korea, Turkey, UK, USA and the

European Union.

HKD Hong Kong Dollar.

Hong Kong SAR Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Fixed income securities that are at least rated Baa3/BBB- by Moody's, Standard & Poor's, or **Investment Grade**

another recognised credit rating agency.

INR Indian Rupee. .IPY Japanese Yen.

Consists of South America, Central America, Mexico and parts of the Caribbean. **Latin America**

Management Company HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S A

Member State A Member State of the European Union. The States that are contracting parties to the Agreement

creating the European Economic Area other than the Member States of the European Union, within the limits set forth by this Agreement and related acts, are considered as equivalent to

Member States of the European Union.

Mémorial Mémorial C, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations, Luxembourg legal gazette.

money market instruments

Instruments normally dealt in on the money market which are liquid, and have a value which can

be accurately determined at any time.

Net Asset Value.

Net Asset Value(s) per

Share

In relation to any Shares of any Class, the value per Share determined in accordance with the relevant provisions described under the heading "NAV Calculation Principles" under Section 2.6.

"Prices of Shares and Publication of Prices and NAV"

Non-Investment Grade Fixed income securities that are rated Ba1/BB+ or lower by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or

another recognised credit rating agency.

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

Qualified foreign institutional investor approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission QFII(s)

(CSRC) pursuant to the Administration of Domestic Securities Investments Measures 2006.

Qualifying Day Any day which is a Dealing Day for sub-funds involved in a conversion.

Real Brazilian Real (the currency in Brazil).

Reference Currency The Reference Currency is the base currency of a sub-fund, and the currency in which the Net

Asset Value of the sub-fund will ordinarily be calculated. Individual Share Classes may have different currency denominations which denote the currency in which the Net Asset Value per

Share is expressed.

However it does not necessarily correspond to the currency in which the sub-fund's assets are

invested at any point in time.

Registrar and Transfer

Agent

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A. acting as registrar and transfer agent of the Company. until 14 November 2014; HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch from 15 November

Regulated Market

A regulated market as defined in the directive 2004/39/EC of 21 April 2004 on markets in financial instruments (Directive 2004/39/EC), namely a market which appears on the list of the regulated markets drawn up by each Member State, which functions regularly, is characterized by the fact that regulations issued or approved by the competent authorities define the conditions for the operation of the market, the conditions for access to the market and the conditions that

must be satisfied by a financial instrument before it can effectively be dealt in on the market, requiring compliance with all the reporting and transparency requirements laid down by the Directive 2004/39/EC and any other market which is regulated, operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public in an Eligible State.

REIT

An entity that is dedicated to owning, and in most cases, managing real estate. This may include, but is not limited to, real estate in the residential (apartments), commercial (shopping centres, offices) and industrial (factories, warehouses) sectors. Certain REITs may also engage in real estate financing transactions and other real estate development activities.

RMB

The official currency of the People's Republic of China (PRC) - to be read as a reference to onshore Renminbi (CNY) and/or offshore Renminbi (CNH) as the context requires.

SAT

State Administration of Taxation of the PRC.

Savings Directive

Directive 2003/48/EC of 3 June 2003 on taxation of savings income in the form of interest payments.

SEBI

Securities and Exchange Board of India.

SEK SGD Swedish Krona. Singapore Dollar.

Shares

Shares in the Company

Subsidiaries

Mauritian companies wholly-owned by the Company in which a sub-fund intends to invest part or all of the net proceeds of the issue of Shares, as further detailed in the relevant investment policy.

Total Return Swap

A Total Return Swap ("TRS") is the generic name for any non-traditional swap agreement where one party agrees to pay the other the "total return" of a defined underlying asset, usually in return for receiving a stream of fixed or variable rate cash-flows. The TRS may be applied to any underlying asset but is most commonly used with equity indices, single stocks, bonds and defined portfolios of loans and mortgages.

For all sub-funds using instruments that might swap the performance of one asset into the performance of another (a TRS), the underlying exposure(s) of the TRS, or an instrument with similar characteristics, is taken into account when considering the sub-funds' investment limits.

Counterparty Risk, also known as 'default risk', refers to the risk that a counterparty will fail to fulfil its contractual obligations, either by failing to pay or by failing to deliver securities. The Company employs a variety of mechanisms to manage and mitigate Counterparty Risk including but not limited to the following:

- Counterparty approval using external credit ratings and/or a credit review consisting of three years' worth of audited financial accounts,
- Counterparties are also reviewed at least annually to ensure that they remain
 appropriate for the requirements of the business. Counterparties are monitored on a
 continual basis and any adverse information concerning the credit worthiness of
 approved counterparties is considered as a matter of urgency,
- Counterparty exposures are monitored on a daily basis by a function independent of the front office.
- Exposures may also be managed through a collateral and margining arrangement supported by appropriate and legally enforceable trading agreements.

transferable securities

Shares and other securities equivalent to shares, bonds and other debt instruments and any other negotiable securities which carry the right to acquire any such transferable securities by subscription or exchange, excluding techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and money market instruments.

UCITS

An Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities authorised pursuant to directive 2009/65/EC, as amended.

other Eligible UCI

An open-ended Undertaking for Collective Investment within the meaning of Article 1 paragraph (2) points a) and b) of Directive 2009/65/EC and complying with the following:

- it is authorised under laws which provide that it is subject to supervision considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in Community law, or if cooperation between authorities is sufficiently ensured;
- the level of protection for its unitholders is equivalent to that provided for unitholders in a UCITS, and in particular that the rules on assets segregation, borrowing, lending, and uncovered sales of transferable securities and money market instruments are equivalent to the requirements of the UCITS Directive 2009/65/EC, as amended;
- its business is reported in half-yearly and annual reports to enable an assessment of the assets and liabilities, income and operations over the reporting period;
- no more than 10% of its assets can, according to its management regulations or instruments of incorporation, be invested in aggregate in units of other UCITS or other UCIs.

Closed-ended UCIs are not considered as other Eligible UCIs, but may qualify as transferable securities.

USD

United States Dollar.

Appendix 2 General Investment Restrictions

Each sub-fund of the Company shall be regarded as a separate UCITS for the purposes of this Appendix.

- I. (1) The Company may invest in:
 - a) transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to or dealt in on a regulated market;
 - b) transferable securities and money market instruments dealt in on another market in a Member State which is regulated, operates regularly and open to the public;
 - c) transferable securities and money market Instruments admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a non-Member State of the European Union or dealt in on another market in a non-Member State of the European Union which is regulated, operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public provided that the choice of the stock exchange or market has been provided for in the constitutional documents of the Company;
 - d) recently issued transferable securities and money market instruments, provided that the terms of issue include an undertaking that application will be made for admission to official listing on a stock exchange or on another regulated market which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public, provided that the choice of the stock exchange or the markets has been provided for in the constitutional documents of the Company and such admission is secured within one year of the issue;
 - e) units of UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs, whether situated in a Member State or not, provided that:
 - such other Eligible UCIs have been authorised under the laws which provide that they are subject to supervision
 considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in European Community law, and that cooperation
 between authorities is sufficiently ensured,
 - the level of protection for unitholders in such other Eligible UCIs is equivalent to that provided for unitholders in a
 UCITS, and in particular that the rules on assets segregation, borrowing, lending, and uncovered sales of
 transferable securities and money market instruments are equivalent to the requirements of Directive
 2009/65/EC, as amended,
 - the business of such other Eligible UCIs is reported in half-yearly and annual reports to enable an assessment of the assets and liabilities, income and operations over the reporting period,
 - no more than 10% of the assets of the UCITS or of the other Eligible UCIs, whose acquisition is contemplated, can, according to their constitutional documents, in aggregate be invested in units of other UCITS or other Eligible UCIs;
 - f) deposits with credit institutions which are repayable on demand or have the right to be withdrawn, and maturing in no more than 12 months, provided that the credit institution has its registered office in a country which is a Member State or if the registered office of the credit institution is situated in a third country provided that it is subject to prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in European Community law;
 - g) financial derivative instruments, including equivalent cash-settled instruments, dealt in on a regulated market referred to in subparagraphs a), b) and c) above and/or financial derivative instruments dealt in over-the-counter ("OTC derivatives"), provided that:
 - the underlying consists of instruments covered by this Section (I) (1), financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, in which the sub-fund may invest according to its investment objective;
 - the counterparties to OTC derivative transactions are institutions subject to prudential supervision, and belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF; and
 - the OTC derivatives are subject to reliable and verifiable valuation on a daily basis and can be sold, liquidated or closed by an offsetting transaction at any time at their fair value at the Company's initiative;

and/or

- h) money market instruments other than those dealt in on a regulated market and defined in Appendix 1 "Glossary" above, if the issue or the issuer of such instruments are themselves regulated for the purpose of protecting investors and savings, and provided that such instruments are:
 - issued or guaranteed by a central, regional or local authority or by a central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the EU or the European Investment Bank, a non-Member State or, in case of a Federal State, by one of the members making up the federation, or by a public international body to which one or more Member States belong, or
 - issued by an undertaking any securities of which are dealt in on Regulated Markets referred to in subparagraphs a), b) or c) above, or
 - issued or guaranteed by an establishment subject to prudential supervision, in accordance with criteria defined by the European Community law, or by an establishment which is subject to and complies with prudential rules considered by the Luxembourg supervisory authority to be at least as stringent as those laid down by European Community law, or

- issued by other bodies belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF provided that investments in such instruments are subject to investor protection equivalent to that laid down in the first, the second or the third indent and provided that the issuer is a company whose capital and reserves amount to at least ten million euro (Euro 10,000,000) and which presents and publishes its annual accounts in accordance with the fourth directive 78/660/EEC, is an entity which, within a group of companies which includes one or several listed companies, is dedicated to the financing of the group or is an entity which is dedicated to the financing of securitisation vehicles which benefit from a banking liquidity line.
- (2) In addition, the Company may invest a maximum of 10% of the net assets of any sub-fund in transferable securities or money market instruments other than those referred to under paragraph (1) above.
- II. The Company may hold ancillary liquid assets.
- III. a) (i) The Company will invest no more than 10% of the net assets of any sub-fund in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same issuing body.
 - (ii) The Company may not invest more than 20% of the net assets of any sub-fund in deposits made with the same body. The risk exposure of a sub-fund to a counterparty in an OTC derivative transaction may not exceed 10% of its net assets when the counterparty is a credit institution referred to in paragraph I. (1) f) above or 5% of its net assets in other cases.
 - b) Moreover, where the Company holds on behalf of a sub-fund investments in transferable securities and money market instruments of issuing bodies which individually exceed 5% of the net assets of such sub-fund, the total of all such investments must not account for more than 40% of the total net assets of such sub-fund.

This limitation does not apply to deposits and OTC derivative transactions made with financial institutions subject to prudential supervision.

Notwithstanding the individual limits laid down in paragraph a), the Company shall not combine, where this would lead to investing more than 20% of its assets in a single body, any of the following for each sub-fund:

- investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by that body;
- deposits made with that body; or
- exposure arising from OTC derivative transactions undertaken with that body.
- c) The limit of 10% laid down in sub-paragraph a) (i) above is increased to a maximum of 35% in respect of transferable securities or money market instruments which are issued or guaranteed by a Member State, its public local authorities, or by another Eligible State or by public international bodies of which one or more Member States are members
- d) The limit of 10% laid down in sub-paragraph a) (i) is increased to 25% for certain bonds when they are issued by a credit institution which has its registered office in a Member State and is subject by law, to special public supervision designed to protect bondholders. In particular, sums deriving from the issue of these bonds must be invested in conformity with the law in assets which, during the whole period of validity of the bonds, are capable of covering claims attaching to the bonds and which, in case of bankruptcy of the issuer, would be used on a priority basis for the repayment of principal and payment of the accrued interest.

If a sub-fund invests more than 5% of its net assets in the bonds referred to in this sub-paragraph and issued by one issuer, the total value of such investments may not exceed 80% of the net assets of the sub-fund.

e) The transferable securities and money market instruments referred to in paragraphs c) and d) shall not be included in the calculation of the limit of 40% in paragraph b).

The limits set out in paragraphs a), b), c) and d) may not be aggregated and, accordingly, investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same issuing body, in deposits or in financial derivative instruments effected with the same issuing body may not, in any event, exceed a total of 35% of any sub-fund's net assets.

Companies which are part of the same group for the purposes of the establishment of consolidated accounts, as defined in accordance with directive 83/349/EEC or in accordance with recognised international accounting rules, are regarded as a single body for the purpose of calculating the limits contained in this Section III.

The Company may cumulatively invest up to 20% of the net assets of a sub-fund in transferable securities and money market instruments within the same group.

- f) Notwithstanding the above provisions, the Company is authorised to invest up to 100% of the net assets of any sub-fund, in accordance with the principle of risk spreading, in transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by any Member State, by one or more of its local authorities or agencies, a non-Member State of the EU or by another Member State of the OECD, Singapore or any member state of the Group of Twenty or by public international bodies of which one or more Member States of the EU are members, provided that such sub-fund must hold securities from at least six different issues and securities from one issue do not account for more than 30% of the net assets of such sub-fund.
- IV. a) Without prejudice to the limits laid down in Section V., the limits provided in Section III. are raised to a maximum of 20% for investments in shares and/or bonds issued by the same issuing body if the aim of the investment policy of a sub-fund is to replicate the composition of a certain stock or bond index which is sufficiently diversified, represents an

adequate benchmark for the market to which it refers, is published in an appropriate manner and disclosed in the relevant sub-fund's investment policy.

- b) The limit laid down in paragraph a) is raised to 35% where this proves to be justified by exceptional market conditions, in particular on Regulated Markets where certain transferable securities or money market instruments are highly dominant. The investment up to this limit is only permitted for a single issuer.
- V. a) The Company may not acquire shares carrying voting rights which should enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.
 - b) The Company may acquire no more than:
 - 10% of the non-voting shares of the same issuer;
 - 10% of the debt securities of the same issuer;
 - 10% of the money market instruments of the same issuer.
 - c) These limits under second and third indents may be disregarded at the time of acquisition, if at that time the gross amount of debt securities or of the money market instruments or the net amount of the instruments in issue cannot be calculated.

The provisions of paragraph V. shall not be applicable to transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities or by any other Eligible State, or issued by public international bodies of which one or more Member States of the EU are members.

These provisions are also waived as regards shares held by the Company in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-Member State of the EU which invests its assets mainly in the securities of issuing bodies having their registered office in that State, where under the legislation of that State, such a holding represents the only way in which the Company can invest in the securities of issuing bodies of that State provided that the investment policy of the company from the third country of the EU complies with the limits laid down in paragraphs III., V. and VI. a), b), and c).

- VI. a) The Company may acquire units of the UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs referred to in paragraph I. (1) e), provided that no more than 10% of a sub-fund's net assets be invested in the units of UCITS or other Eligible UCIs or in one single sub-fund of such UCITS or other Eligible UCI (including Target Sub-Funds as defined in Section VII below), unless otherwise provided in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details".
 - b) The underlying investments held by the UCITS or other Eligible UCIs in which the Company invests do not have to be considered for the purpose of the investment restrictions set forth under Section III. above.
 - c) If the Company invests in shares or units of UCITS (including other sub-funds of the Company) and/or other Eligible UCIs that are managed directly or indirectly by the Management Company itself or a company with which it is linked by way of common management or control or by way of a direct or indirect stake of more than 10% of the capital or votes, then there will be no duplication of management, subscription or repurchase fees between the Company and the UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs into which the Company invests. In derogation of this, if the Company invests in shares of HSBC ETFs PLC, then there may be duplication of management fees for any sub-funds. The Company will indicate in its annual report the total management fees charged both to the relevant sub-fund and to HSBC ETFs PLC.

If any sub-fund's investments in UCITS and other Eligible UCIs constitute a substantial proportion of the sub-fund's assets, the total management fee (excluding any performance fee, if any) charged both to such sub-fund itself and the other UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs concerned shall not exceed 3.00 % of the relevant assets. The Company will indicate in its annual report the total management fees charged both to the relevant sub-fund and to the UCITS and other Eligible UCIs in which such sub-fund has invested during the relevant period.

- d) The Company may acquire no more than 25% of the units of the same UCITS or other Eligible UCI. This limit may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of the units in issue cannot be calculated. In case of a UCITS or other Eligible UCI with multiple compartments, this restriction is applicable by reference to all units issued by the UCITS or other Eligible UCI concerned, all compartments combined.
- e) To the extent that, pursuant to Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details", a sub-fund may invest more than 10% of its net assets in the units of UCITS or other Eligible UCIs or in one single such UCITS or other Eligible UCIs (including Target Sub-Funds), the following will apply:
 - The sub-fund may acquire units of the UCITS and/or other Eligible UCIs referred to in paragraph I (1) e), provided that no more than 20% of the sub-fund's net assets be invested in the units of a single UCITS or other Eligible UCI.
 - For the purpose of the application of the investment limit, each compartment of a UCITS and/or UCI with multiple compartments is to be considered as a separate issuer provided that the principle of segregation of the obligations of the various compartments vis-à-vis third parties is ensured.
 - Investments made in units of other Eligible UCIs may not in aggregate exceed 30% of the net assets of the sub-fund.
- VII. A sub-fund (the "Investing Sub-Fund") may subscribe, acquire and/or hold securities to be issued or issued by one or more sub-funds of the Company (each a "Target Sub-Fund") without the Company being subject to the requirements of the 1915 Law with respect to the subscription, acquisition and/or the holding by a company of its own shares;

under the condition however that:

- a. The Investing Sub-Fund may not invest more than 10% of its net asset value in a single Target Sub-Fund, this limit being increased to 20% if the Investing Sub-Fund is permitted, pursuant to Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details", to invest more than 10% of its net assets in the units of UCITS or other Eligible UCIs or in one single such UCITS or other Eligible UCIs; and
- b. The Target Sub-Fund(s) do(es) not, in turn, invest in the Investing Sub-Fund invested in this (these) Target Sub-Fund(s); and
- c. The investment policy(ies) of the Target Sub-Fund(s) whose acquisition is contemplated does not allow such Target Sub-Fund(s) to invest more than 10% of its(their) net asset value in UCITS and other Eligible UCIs; and
- d. Voting rights, if any, attaching to the Shares of the Target Sub-Fund(s) held by the Investing Sub-Fund are suspended for as long as they are held by the Investing Sub-Fund concerned and without prejudice to the appropriate processing in the accounts and the periodic reports; and
- e. In any event, for as long as these securities are held by the Investing Sub-Fund, their value will not be taken into consideration for the calculation of the net assets of the Company for the purposes of verifying the minimum threshold of the net assets imposed by the 2010 Law; and
- f. There is no duplication of management/subscription or repurchase fees between those at the level of the Investing Sub-Fund(s).
- VIII. The Company shall ensure for each sub-fund that the global exposure relating to derivative instruments does not exceed the net assets of the relevant sub-fund.

The exposure is calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, foreseeable market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions. This shall also apply to the following subparagraphs.

If the Company invests in financial derivative instruments, the exposure to the underlying assets may not exceed in aggregate the investment limits laid down in paragraph III above. When the Company invests in index-based financial derivative instruments, these investments do not have to be combined to the limits laid down in Section III.

When a transferable security or money market instrument embeds a derivative, the latter must be taken into account when complying with the requirements of this paragraph VIII.

- IX. a) The Company may not borrow for the account of any sub-fund amounts in excess of 10% of the net assets of that sub-fund, any such borrowings to be from banks and to be effected only on a temporary basis, provided that the Company may acquire foreign currencies by means of back-to-back loans.
 - b) The Company may not grant loans to or act as guarantor on behalf of third parties.
 - This restriction shall not prevent the Company from (i) acquiring transferable securities, money market instruments or other financial instruments referred to in paragraph I. (1) e), g) and h) which are not fully paid, and (ii) performing permitted securities lending activities, that shall not be deemed to constitute the making of a loan.
 - c) The Company may not carry out uncovered sales of transferable securities, money market instruments or other financial instruments.
 - d) The Company may not acquire movable or immovable property.
 - e) The Company may not acquire either precious metals or certificates representing them.
- X. a) The Company need not comply with the limits laid down in the above mentioned investment restrictions when exercising subscription rights attaching to transferable securities or money market instruments which form part of its assets. While ensuring observance of the principle of risk spreading, recently created sub-funds may derogate from paragraphs III., IV. and VI. a), b) and c) for a period of six months following the date of their creation.
 - b) If the limits referred to in paragraph a) are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of the Company or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, it must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interest of its shareholders.

Appendix 3 Restrictions on the use of techniques and instruments

Financial derivative instruments may be used for investment, hedging and efficient portfolio management purposes. Securities lending and repurchase agreements under a) and b) below may be used for efficient portfolio management purposes. Additional restrictions or derogations for certain sub-funds will be disclosed in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details" in relation to the relevant sub-fund

I. Efficient Portfolio Management

Efficient Portfolio Management ("EPM") refers to techniques and instruments which relate to transferable securities which fulfil the following criteria:

- 1. They are economically appropriate in that they are realised in a cost-effective way,
- 2. They are entered into for one or more of the following specific aims:
 - reduction of risk (e.g. to perform an investment hedge on a portion of a portfolio),
 - reduction of cost (e.g. be short term cash flow management or tactical asset allocation),
 - generation of additional capital or income, with a level of risk that is consistent with the risk profile of a sub-fund (e.g. Securities Lending and/or Repurchase (and Reverse Repurchase) agreements where the collateral is not reinvested for any form of leverage).

The use of financial derivative instruments introduces an additional exposure of counterparty risk by the sub-fund, although this is managed through internal risk control mechanisms and according to the diversification and concentration requirements of the UCITS regulation.

The use of these EPM instruments/techniques does not change the objective of a sub-fund or add substantial risks in comparison to the original risk policy of a sub- fund.

Any EPM instruments/techniques are included within the Company's liquidity risk management process to ensure that the Company can continue to meet redemptions within the obligated timeframe.

HSBC Global Asset Management is responsible for managing any conflict that might exist such that conflicts are prevented from negatively impacting shareholders.

All revenues generated from EPM techniques are returned to the sub-fund. Revenues received by third party facilitators (e.g. third-party agent lenders or broker-dealers) or affiliates, must be commercially justifiable given the level of service.

II. Global exposure

The global exposure of each sub-fund relating to derivative instruments may not exceed the net assets of the relevant sub-fund.

The exposure is calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, foreseeable market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions. This shall also apply to the next two sub-paragraphs.

If the Company invests in financial derivative instruments, the exposure to the underlying assets may not exceed in aggregate the investment limits laid down in item III. a) to e) of Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions" above. When the Company invests in index-based financial derivative instruments, these investments do not have to be combined to the limits laid down in item III. a) to e) of Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions" above.

When a transferable security or money market instrument embeds a derivative, the latter must be taken into account when complying with the requirements set out in the preceding subparagraph.

III. Securities Lending and Repurchase Transactions

To the maximum extent allowed by, and within the limits set forth in, the regulations, in particular the provisions of (i) article 11 of the Grand-Ducal regulation of 8 February 2008 relating to certain definitions of the law of 20 December 2002 relating to undertakings for collective investments, (ii) CSSF Circular 08/356 relating to the rules applicable to undertakings for collective investment when they use certain techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and money market instruments (iii) ESMA's Guidelines of 1 August 2014 on ETFs and other UCITS issues (ESMA/2014/937EN) and (iv) CSSF Circular 14/592 (as these pieces of regulations may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time), each sub-fund may for the purpose of generating additional capital or income or for reducing costs or risks and subject to the relevant laws and regulations:

- a) enter, either as purchaser or seller, into optional as well as non-optional repurchase transactions (it is not currently the intention of the Company to engage any sub-fund in such transaction); and
- b) engage in securities lending.

The Company may enter into a securities lending transaction only if the counterparty meets the following criteria:

- it is subject to prudential supervision rules, considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in European Community Law;
- b) if the counterparty is a related party to the Management Company, attention must be paid to conflicts of interest

which might result therefrom to ensure that such transactions are to be effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm's length; and

c) it is an intermediary (such as banks, broker-dealers and so on) acting on his own account.

The securities lending agent of the Company will limit the securities lending counterparties to highly rated, well capitalized global banks broker-dealers and any central counterparties accepted from time to time by the CSSF. A comprehensive annual review and supplementary quarterly reviews are performed on each counterparty, based upon financial and strategic business analysis. Additionally, daily monitoring of market events, financial positions and company exposures are performed. Finally, communication with credit analysts and management of the counterparties occurs on a continual basis. In addition, the borrowers not qualifying as central counterparties will have a minimum credit rating of A2 as defined by Standard and Poor's Rating Agency or an equivalent as decided by other recognised rating agencies.

The Management Company or the securities lending agent will review the value of such collateral on a daily basis to ensure that its value is at least equal to the value of the securities delivered under such transactions on a daily mark to market basis with an aim to ensure that the sub-fund's exposure in this area is fully covered.

The Company may also obtain from time to time from a third party a guarantee covering 100% of the global valuation of the securities lent.

The Company may engage in securities lending transactions either directly or through a standardised lending system organised by a recognised clearing institution or by a financial institution specialised in this type of transaction and subject to the prudential supervision rules which are considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to those laid down by European Community law. Where securities lending transactions are carried out through an affiliate entity either acting as a counterparty or a securities lending agent, such transactions shall be effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm's length.

Any incremental income generated from securities lending transactions, deducted by the fees mentioned below and any fees due to the Administration Agent or the securities lending agent in relation to the securities lending programme, will be payable to the relevant sub-fund of the Company.

It is expected that the implementation of the above-mentioned securities lending programme will have no impact on the risk profile of the participating sub-funds of the Company.

IV. Collateral

Under the investment advisory agreements, the Investment Advisers have authority to agree the terms for collateral arrangements, duly advising the Management Company of what arrangements have been made, for purposes of managing counterparty risk where transactions in over-the-counter ("OTC") Financial Derivative Instruments ("FDIs") have been executed. Transactions in FDIs can only be executed with approved counterparties. Such transactions will at all times be governed by approved Group standard documentation such as a legally enforceable bilateral ISDA, and an accompanying Credit Support Annex ("CSA") where it has been agreed that collateral will form part of the transaction.

Assets received by the Company as collateral in the context of EPM techniques and in the context of OTC FDIs will comply with the following criteria at all times:

- Liquidity: any collateral received other than cash should be highly liquid and traded on a regulated market or multilateral trading facility with transparent pricing in order that it can be sold quickly at a price that is close to pre-sale valuation. Collateral received will also comply with the provisions of paragraph V of Appendix 2 "General Investment Restrictions".
- Valuation: eligible collateral, as determined is valued daily by an entity that is independent from the counterparty on a mark-to-market basis.
- Issuer credit quality: non cash collateral received is of high credit quality (at least A3 and A-).
- Haircut policy: haircuts will take into account the characteristics of the assets such as the credit standing or the price
 volatility. Assets that exhibit high price volatility will not be accepted by the Company as collateral unless suitably
 conservative haircuts are in place. Haircuts are reviewed by the Management Company on an ongoing basis to ensure that
 they remain appropriate for eligible collateral taking into account collateral quality, liquidity and price volatility.
- Correlation: collateral received by the Company is issued by an entity that is independent from the counterparty or by one that is expected not to display a high correlation with the performance of the counterparty.
- Diversification: collateral received by the Company will remain sufficiently diversified such that no more than 20% of the net asset value of a sub-fund will be held in a basket of non-cash collateral (and reinvested collateral) with the same issuer.
- Enforceability: collateral received by the Company is capable of being fully enforced by the Company at any time without reference to or approval from the counterparty.
- Non-cash collateral received should not be sold, reinvested or pledged.

qualifying HSBC products.

- Reinvestment of cash collateral: where received by the Company, reinvested cash collateral will remain sufficiently diversified in accordance with the diversification requirements applicable to non-cash collateral and may only be:
 - Placed on deposit with credit institution having its registered office in a country which is a Member State or with a credit institution having its registered office in a third country provided that it is subject to prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in European Community law;
 - Invested in short-term money market funds as defined in the Guidelines on a Common Definition of European Money Market Funds approved by the Management Company.
 The Management Company may delegate authority to the securities lending agent to invest cash collateral into
- A sub-fund that receives collateral for at least 30% of its net assets will have an appropriate stress testing policy in place to
 ensure regular stress tests are carried out under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions to enable the Company
 to assess the liquidity risk attached to the collateral. This stress testing policy will:
 - ensure appropriate calibration, certification and sensitivity analysis;
 - consider an empirical approach to impact assessment, including back-testing of liquidity risk estimates;
 - · establish reporting frequency and limit/loss tolerance threshold/s; and

- consider mitigation actions to reduce loss including haircut policy and gap risk protection.
- Other risks other risks linked to the management of collateral, such as operational and legal risks, are identified, managed and mitigated by the risk management process.

Collateral received by the Company sub-funds in respect of securities lending arrangements with HSBC Bank Plc (acting as agent through its securities services) will comply with the following haircut requirements:

- Eligible cash collateral will be subject to a minimum positive haircut of 105%;
- Other eligible non-cash collateral will be subject to a minimum positive haircut of 105% for fixed income securities and 110% for equities.

Appendix 4 Additional restrictions

I. Although the Company is now authorised in Luxembourg as a UCITS under the 2010 Law and the Prospectus has been updated to incorporate new investment restrictions, for as long as the Company and the sub-funds remain authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission ("SFC") in Hong Kong and unless otherwise approved by the SFC, the Management Company confirms its intention to operate the sub-funds authorised in Hong Kong (other than the sub-funds exercising the wider derivatives powers as indicated in the relevant investment objective of such sub-funds) in accordance with the investment principles of chapter 7 of the Hong Kong code on unit trusts and mutual funds and to comply with any other requirements or conditions imposed by the SFC in respect of the relevant sub-funds.

For as long as the Company and the sub-funds remain authorised by the SFC, the Management Company may not obtain a rebate on any fees or charges levied by an underlying scheme or its management company.

Unless otherwise indicated in the investment objective of a sub-fund in Section 3.2. "Sub-Fund Details", investments in China A-shares and B-shares dealt in on the stock exchanges in China (excluding Hong Kong) shall not exceed 10% of the net asset value of the sub-fund (including indirect exposure.) At least one month' prior notice will be given to relevant shareholders before any increase in exposure to China A-shares and B-shares can be made.

II. In order for the following sub-funds to claim eligibility to the French "Plan d'Epargne en Actions" and as long as they are registered with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers in France, the additional restriction, that for each sub-fund, the total amount invested in Equity or Equity-equivalent securities (as defined by art. L- 221-31 of the French Monetary and Financial Code, § I-1°, a, b and c), which have their registered office in a country member of:

- the FU: or
- the European Economic Area provided that the said country has concluded with France a bilateral tax cooperation agreement with a clause of administrative assistance aiming at fighting against tax fraud or evasion;

will be not less than 75% at any point in time for the following sub-funds:

Euroland Equity; Euroland Equity Smaller Companies; European Equity; UK Equity.

The definition given by art. L- 221-31 of the French Monetary and Financial Code, § I-1°, a, b and c, excludes equities or equity-equivalent securities issued by corporates which are not subject to corporate tax at the normal rate applying in their home country, and which in particular excludes shares of listed real estate corporates ("SIIC" - sociétés d'investissements immobiliers cotées").

The annual and semi-annual reports of the Company will mention the actual percentage invested in the above mentioned securities for those sub-funds.

III. Shares of the Company may not be offered or sold for sale or sold to any "U.S. Person within the meaning of the Articles of Incorporation, i.e. a citizen or resident of the United States of America (the "United States"), a partnership organised or existing under the laws of any state, territory or possession of the United States, or a corporation organised or existing under the laws of the United States or of any state, territory or possession thereof, or any estate or trust, other than an estate or trust the income of which from sources outside the United States is not includible in gross income for purposes of computing United States income tax payable by it).

Any Shareholders or beneficial owner of Shares identified as US Persons under the above definition will be prevented from switching between sub-funds/share classes within a sub-fund and making additional investments. Any switch shall be treated as redemption followed by a subscription. The subscription shall be refused. Appropriate information shall be provided the relevant person.

Shares of the Company may not be offered or sold to any other "U.S. Person" (an "Other USP"). For the purposes of this restriction, the term Other USP shall mean the following:

- 1. An individual who is deemed a resident of the U.S. under any U.S. law or regulation
- 2. An entity:
 - i. that is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other business entity:
 - a. that was created or organized under U.S. federal or state law including any non-U.S. agency or branch of such entity; or
 - b. where regardless of place of formation or organization, was organized principally for passive investment (such as an investment company or fund or similar entity other than an employee benefit plan or employee pension scheme for the employees, officers, or principals of a non-U.S. entity having its principal place of business outside the United States);
 - and owned directly or indirectly by one or more Other USPs, with respect to which such Other USPs (unless defined as a Qualified Eligible Person under CFTC Regulation 4.7(a)) directly or indirectly hold in the aggregate 10% or greater beneficial interest; or
 - where an Other USP is the general partner, managing member, managing director or other position with authority for directing the entity's activities; or
 - was formed by or for an Other USP principally for the purpose of investing in securities not registered with the SEC; or
 - where more than 50% of its voting ownership interests or non-voting ownership interests are directly or indirectly owned by Other USPs; or
 - c. that is any agency or branch of a non-U.S. entity located in the U.S.; or
 - d. has its principal place of business in the U.S.; or

- ii. that is a trust created or organized under U.S. federal or state law or regardless of the place of creation or organization:
 - a. where one or more Other USPs has the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; or
 - b. where the administration of the trust or its formation documents are subject to the supervision of one or more U.S. courts: or
 - where any settlor, founder, trustee, or other person responsible for decisions related to the trust is an Other USP: or
- iii. that is an estate of a deceased person regardless of where the person resided while alive where an executor or administrator is an Other USP.
- 3. An employee benefit plan established and administered in accordance with the laws of the U.S.
- A discretionary or non-discretionary investment account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a non-U.S. or U.S. dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of an Other USP (as defined above).

For the purpose of this definition, the "United States" and "U.S." means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia), its territories, possessions and other areas of subject to its jurisdiction."

If, subsequent to a shareholder's investment in the Company, the shareholder becomes an Other USP, such shareholder (i) will be restricted from making any additional investments in the Company and (ii) as soon as practicable have its shares compulsorily redeemed by the Company (subject to the requirements of the Articles of Incorporation and the applicable law). The Company may, from time to time, waive or modify the above restrictions.

IV. The shares described in this Prospectus may only be distributed in Canada through HSBC Global Asset Management (Canada) Limited, and this Prospectus may not be used to solicit, and will not constitute a solicitation of, an offer to buy shares in Canada unless such solicitation is made by HSBC Global Asset Management (Canada) Limited. A distribution or solicitation may be deemed to occur in Canada where a distribution or solicitation is made to a person (including an individual, corporation, trust, partnership or other entity, or other legal person) resident or otherwise located in Canada at the applicable time. For these purposes, the following persons will generally be considered to be a Canadian resident:

- 1. An individual, if
 - the individual's primary principal residence is located in Canada; or
 - ii. the individual is physically located in Canada at the time of the offer, sale or other relevant activity.
- 2. A corporation, if
 - i. the corporation's head office or principal office is located in Canada; or
 - ii. securities of the corporation that entitle the holder to elect a majority of the directors are held by Canadian Resident individuals (as described above) or by legal persons resident or otherwise located in Canada; or
 - iii. the individuals that make investment decisions or provide instructions on behalf of the corporation are Canadian Resident individuals (as described above).
- 3. A trust, if
 - i. the principal office of the trust (if any) is located in Canada; or
 - ii. the trustee (or in the case of multiple trustees, the majority of trustees) are Canadian Resident individuals (as described above) or are legal persons resident or otherwise located in Canada; or
 - iii. the individuals that make investment decisions or provide instructions on behalf of the trust are Canadian Resident individuals (as described above).
- 4. A partnership, if
 - i. the partnership's head office or principal office (if any) is located in Canada; or
 - ii. the holders of the majority of the interests of or in the partnership are held by Canadian Residents (as described
 - iii. the general partner (if any) is a Canadian Resident (as described above); or
 - iv. the individuals that make investment decisions or provide instructions on behalf of the partnership are Canadian Resident individuals (as described above).

V. The Company is authorized and regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. HSBC Holding Plc ("HSBC") is the parent company of a number of affiliates involved in the management, investment management and distribution of the Company. HSBC is regulated by the Federal Reserve in the United States as a Financial Holding Company ("FHC") under the Bank Holding Company Act (and its associated the rules and regulations) (the "BHCA"). As an FHC, the activities of HSBC and its affiliates are subject to certain restrictions imposed by the BHCA.

Although HSBC does not own a majority of the Shares of the Company, the relationship with HSBC means that HSBC may be deemed to "control" the Company within the meaning of the BHCA. Investors should note that certain operations of the Company, including its investments and transactions, may therefore be restricted in order to comply with the BHCA.

For example, in order to comply with the BHCA a sub-fund may be:

- (i) restricted in its ability to make certain investments;
- (ii) restricted in the size of certain investments,
- (iii) subject to a maximum holding period on some or all of its investments; and/or
- (iv) required to liquidate certain of its investments.

In addition, certain investment transactions made between the Company and the Investment Advisers, the Board of Directors, HSBC and their affiliates may be restricted.

Any actions required pursuant to the BHCA will be executed in compliance with applicable law and in a manner consistent with the best interests of the shareholders of each sub-fund. Investors should also refer to Section 2.17 "Conflicts of Interest" below.

There can be no assurance that the bank regulatory requirements applicable to HSBC and/or indirectly to the Company, will not change, or that any such change will not have a material adverse effect on the investments and/or investment performance of

the sub-funds. Subject to applicable law, HSBC and the Company may in the future, undertake such actions as they deem reasonably necessary (consistent with ensuring any actions remain in the best interests of the shareholders of the sub-funds) in order to reduce or eliminate the impact or applicability of any bank regulatory restrictions on the Company and its sub-funds.

Appendix 5 Directory

REGISTERED OFFICE

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

George Efthimiou, Global Chief Operating Officer (Chairman)
 HSBC Global Asset Management Limited, 78 St James's Street, London SW1A 1HL, United Kingdom

Dr. Michael Boehm, Chief Operating Officer
 HSBC Global Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, Königsallee 21/23, 40212 Düsseldorf, Germany

Jean de Courrèges, Independent Director
 Carne Global Financial Services Luxembourg S.à.r.l, European Banking and Business Centre
 6B route de Trèves, L-2633 Senningerberg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

■ Eimear Cowhey, Independent Director

Dublin, Ireland

Peter Dew, Independent Director London, United Kingdom

■ Dean Lam, Managing Director

HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited, 6th Floor, HSBC Centre, 18 CyberCity, Ebene, Mauritius

John Li, Independent Director

The Directors' Office S.A.. 19 rue de Bitbourg, L-1273 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Edmund Stokes, Global Head of Product (Chairman)

HSBC Global Asset Management Limited, 78 St James's Street, London, SW1A 1HL, United Kingdom

Alexa Coates, Global Chief Financial Officer

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited, 78 St James's Street, London, SW1A 1HL, United Kingdom

Tony Corfield, Chief Operating Officer

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited, 78 St James's Street, London, SW1A 1HL, United Kingdom

Cecilia Lazzari, Conducting Officer

HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A., 16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Richard Long, Head of Global Funds Operations

HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A., 16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

■ Edgar K M Ng, Head of Business Support Asia Pacific

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited, HSBC Main Building, 1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Sylvie Vigneaux, Head of Regulatory and Wealth Engineering
 HSBC Global Asset Management (France), Immeuble IIe de France, 4, Place de la Pyramide, La Défense 9, 92800
 Puteaux, France

INVESTMENT ADVISERS

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Immeuble lle de France, 4, Place de la Pyramide, La Défense 9, 92800 Puteaux, France

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Level 22, HSBC Main Building, Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

■ HSBC Global Asset Management (Singapore) Limited

21 Collyer Quay, #10-01 HSBC Building, Singapore 049320, Singapore

■ HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

8, Canada Square, London E14 5HQ, United Kingdom

HSBC Global Asset Management (USA) Inc.

452 Fifth Avenue, 7th Floor, New York, NY 10018, USA

■ HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. – Banco Múltiplo

Travessa Oliviera Belo, 11-B, 80020-030 Curitiba, Brazil

HSBC Portfoy Yonetimi A.S.

Esentepe Mahallesi, Büyükdere Caddesi, No:128, 34394 Sisli, Istanbul, Turkey

SHARE DISTRIBUTORS

Global Distributor

HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Austria, Eastern Europe and Germany Distributor

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG

Königsallee 21/23, D-40212, Düsseldorf, Germany

Hong Kong Representative and Distributor

HSBC Investment Funds (Hong Kong) Limited

HSBC Main Building, 1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

United Kingdom Representative and Distributor

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

8 Canada Square, London E14 5HQ, United Kingdom

Republic of Ireland Distributor

HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited

8 Canada Square, London E14 5HQ, United Kingdom

■ Republic of Ireland Representative

HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited

HSBC House, 1 Grand Canal Square, Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, Ireland

Jersey Representative and Distributor

HSBC Global Asset Management (International) Limited

HSBC House, Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 8WP Channel Islands

Singapore Representative and Distributor

HSBC Global Asset Management (Singapore) Limited

21 Collyer Quay, #06-01 HSBC Building, Singapore 049320, Singapore

Swiss Representative

Until 30 September 2014

ACOLIN Fund Services AG

Stadelhoferstrasse 18, CH-8001 Zurich, Switzerland

From 1 October 2014

HSBC Global Asset Management (Switzerland) Ltd.

Bederstrasse 49, P.O. Box, CH-8002 Zurich, Switzerland

Korea Representative and Distributor

HSBC Korea Limited

HSBC Building #25, 1-Ka, Bongrae-Dong, Chung-Ku, Seoul, Korea

■ Distributor for Continental Europe

HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

Immeuble IIe de France, 4, Place de la Pyramide, La Défense 9, 92800 Puteaux, France

DEPOSITARY BANK

Until 14 November 2014.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

From 15 November 2014.

HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

ADMINISTRATION AGENT

Until 14 November 2014.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

From 15 November 2014.

HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Until 14 November 2014.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

From 15 November 2014.

HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

DOMICILIARY AGENT

Until 14 November 2014.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

From 15 November 2014.

HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

CENTRAL PAYING AGENT

Until 14 November 2014.

HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

From 15 November 2014.

HSBC Bank Plc, Luxembourg Branch

16, boulevard d'Avranches, L-1160 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

PAYING AGENT IN HONG KONG

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited HSBC Main Building, 1 Queen's Road, Central, Hong Kong

REPRESENTATIVE AND PAYING AGENT IN POLAND

HSBC Bank Polska S.A.

Kraków Business Park 200, Ul. Krakowska 280, 32-080 Zabierzów, Poland

PAYING AGENT IN SWITZERLAND

HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) S.A.

Quai des Bergues 9-17, Case postale 2888, CH-1211 Geneva 1, Switzerland

AUDITORS

KPMG Luxembourg S.à.r.l., Réviseurs d'Entreprises Agrée 9, allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

LEGAL ADVISERS

Elvinger, Hoss & Prussen

2, Place Winston Churchill, L-1340 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Additional Information for investors in the Czech Republic

This document as the full prospectus of the HSBC Global Investment Funds Umbrella may contain subfunds which are not notified in the Czech Republic. The inclusion of subfunds that are not notified in the Czech Republic is not by any means intended as a solicitation, nor a recommendation for the purchase or sale. The shares of those subfunds are not publically distributed to Czech investors.

The following subfunds are duly notified with the Czech National Bank and are therefore available to Czech investors:

- Asia ex Japan Equity
- Asia ex Japan Equity Smaller Companies
- Asia Pacific ex Japan Equity High Dividend
- Brazil Bond
- Brazil Equity
- BRIC Equity
- BRIC Markets Equity
- Chinese Equity
- Economic Scale Index Global Equity¹
- Economic Scale Index Japan Equity²
- Economic Scale Index US Equity³
- Euro Bond
- Euro Credit Bond
- Euro High Yield Bond
- Euro Reserve
- Euroland Equity
- Euroland Equity Smaller Companies
- Euroland Growth
- European Equity
- Global Bond
- Global Emerging Markets Bond
- Global Emerging Markets Equity
- Global Emerging Markets Local Debt
- Global Macro
- Hong Kong Equity
- Indian Equity
- Korean Equity
- Latin American Equity
- Russia Equity
- Singapore Equity
- Taiwan Equity
- Thai Equity
- Turkey Equity
- UK Equity
- US Dollar Bond

¹ Until 16 February 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Global Equity.

 $^{^{2}}$ Until 16 February 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – Japanese Equity.

 $^{^3}$ Until 15 March 2015 the name of the sub-fund is HSBC Global Investment Funds – US Equity.